AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2018

Agendas and Minutes are on our website at www.oakdaleirrigation.com

CALL TO ORDER 9:00 a.m., the Boardroom of the District Office
1205 East F Street, Oakdale, California 95361

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL Directors Orvis, Altieri, Doornenbal, Santos, DeBoer

ADDITIONS OR DELETION OF AGENDA ITEMS

ACTION TO TAKE VARIOUS ITEMS OUT OF SEQUENCE

PUBLIC COMMENTS - ITEM 1

1. The Board of Directors welcomes participation in meetings. This time is
provided for the public to address the Directors of the District on matters of
concern that fall within the jurisdiction of the Board that are not on the agenda.

Speakers are encouraged to consult District Management or Directors prior to
agenda preparation regarding any District operation or responsibility as no
action will be taken on non-agenda issues. It is not required, but speakers may
provide their name and address.

Because these are non-agenda matters, generally no discussion or comment
by the Board should be expected except to properly refer the matter for review
or action as appropriate.

Public Comments will be limited to five minutes per speaker.

CONSENT CALENDAR -ITEMS 2-8

Agenda items listed under the Consent Calendar may be acted upon individually, in whole
or in part. Subsequently, should discussion on a particular item be desired, you should
identify the item now so as to remove it from the list of items to be approved under one
motion. Any items removed from the list on Consent Calendar items will be discussed and
acted upon individually following action on the remaining Consent Calendar items if so
moved.




. Approve the Board of Directors’ Minutes of the Regular Meeting of
November 6, 2018 and Resolution Nos. 2018-56, 2018-57, and 2018-58

. Approve Oakdale Irrigation District Statement of Obligations

. Approve Work Release No. 046 to General Services Agreement 2013-
GSA-032 with Northern Steel, Inc. for Cutting, Bending and Placement
of Rebar for One (1) ea. Headwall Structure Located on the Kearney
Lateral

. Approve Work Release No. 047 to General Services Agreement 2013-
GSA-032 with Northern Steel, Inc. for Cutting, Bending and Placement
of Rebar for One (1) ea. Drop Structure Located on the Lower Cometa
Lateral

. Approve Work Release No. 008 to Professional Services Agreement 2011-
PSA-003 with Bumgardner Biological Consulting to Provide Biological
Services for the South Main Canal Segment Four Project

. Approve Professional Services Agreement 2018-PSA-003 with
Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. and Authorize General
Manager to Execute

. Approve Deferred Conditions of Approval Agreement (APNS: 010-011-
072/073/074/077/078/080/081/082/083/084/085/086/089/090/091 —
Montpelier Farming Corporation)

ACTION CALENDAR - ITEMS 9

. Review and take possible action to Adopt the 2019 Budget

COMMUNICATIONS - ITEM 10

10. Oral Reports and Comments

A. General Manager’s Report on Status of OID Activities

B. Committee Reports

C. Directors’ Comments/Suggestions




CLOSED SESSION - ITEM 11

11. Closed Session to discuss the following:

A. Government Code §54957.6 - Conference with Labor Negotiator
Agency Negotiator: General Manager
Represented Employee Organization : Operations Employees (OE3)
Unrepresented Employee Organizations: Non-Exempt Confidential,
Exempt Supervisory, and Exempt Management Bargaining Groups

B. Government Code §54956.9(d)(4) — Initiation of Litigation
Two (2) Cases

OTHER ACTION - ITEM 12

12. Adjournment:

A. The next Special Board Meeting of the Oakdale Irrigation District Board of
Directors is scheduled for Tuesday, December 11, 2018 at 9:00 a.m. in the
board room at 1205 East F Street, Oakdale, CA. The Board Meetings
Scheduled for December 4 and 18, 2018 have been cancelled.

B. The next Joint Board Meeting of the South San Joaquin and Oakdale
Irrigation Districts serving the Tri-Dam Projects and Tri-Dam Authority
and other joint business matters is scheduled for Thursday, December 20,
2018 at 9:00 a.m. in the board room of the South San Joaquin Irrigation
District, 11011 East Highway 120, Manteca, CA.

Writings distributed to Board Members in connection with the open session items on this agenda are available
for public inspection in the office of the Board Secretary. Any person who has a question concerning any of
the agenda items may call the Administrative Assistant at (209) 840-5507.

ADA Compliance Statement: In compliance with the Americans with Disability Act, if you need special
assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the Administrative Assistant at (209) 840-5507.
Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure
accessibility to this meeting.




PUBLIC COMMENTS

No Information Included

BOARD MEETING OF
NOVEMBER 20, 2018




AGENDA ITEMS
CONSENT CALENDAR

BOARD MEETING OF
NOVEMBER 20, 2018




BOARD AGENDA REPORT

Date: November 20, 2018
Item Number: 2
APN: N/A

SUBJECT: APPROVE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING
OF NOVEMBER 6, 2018 AND RESOLUTION NOS. 2018-56, 2018-57, AND 2018-58

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the Board of Directors’ Minutes of the Regular Meeting of
November 6, 2018 and Resolution Nos. 2018-56, 2018-57, and 2018-58

ATTACHMENTS:
> Draft Minutes of the Board of Directors’ Regular Meeting of November 6, 2018
> Draft Resolution No. 2018-56
> Draft Resolution No. 2018-57
> Draft Resolution No. 2018-58

Board Motion:

Motion by: Second by:

VOTE:
Orvis (Yes/No) Altieri (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) DeBoer (Yes/No)

Action(s) to be taken:




MINUTES

Oakdale, California
November 6, 2018

The Board of Directors of the Oakdale lrrigation District met at the hour of 9:04 a.m. in
Regular Session following the Board of Directors Special Meeting of the Financing
Corporation where the Pledge of Allegiance and roll call were conducted. There remained
present the following Directors:

Directors: Tom Orvis, President
Gail Altieri, Vice President
Herman Doornenbal
Brad DeBoer

Absent: Linda Santos

Staff Present: Steve Knell, General Manager/Secretary
Jason Jones, Support Services Manager
Eric Thorburn, Water Operations Manager
Sharon Cisneros, Chief Financial Officer
Kim Bukhari, Human Resources Analyst

Also Present: Fred A. Silva, General Counsel

ADDITION OR DELETION OF
AGENDA ITEMS

There were no additions or deletions of agenda items.

ACTION TO TAKE VARIOUS ITEMS OUT OF SEQUENCE

There were no items taken out sequence.
At the hour of 9:05 a.m. the Board welcomed public comment.

PUBLIC COMMENT
ITEM NO. 1

Robert Frobose commented about the Board being more forward thinking by helping lands
outside the district get water. President Orvis reminded Mr. Frobose that the District is in
the process of developing The Basin Plan which is doing exactly what is being asked. All
of those opportunities will be provided to those landowners to participate and that will come
back to the Board for adoption. There are definitely opportunities.

There being no further public comment, public comment closed at 9:10 a.m.

Director Altieri requested that Item No. 2 be pulled from the Consent Calendar.



OID Board Minutes November 6, 2018
Page 2

CONSENT ITEMS
ITEM NOS. 3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11, 12,13

ITEM NO. 3
APPROVE OAKDALE IRRIGATION
DISTRICT STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director Altieri, and was
unanimously supported to approve the Oakdale lrrigation District's Statement of
Obligations.

ITEM NO. 4
APPROVE OID IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT’S STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director Altieri, and was
unanimously supported to approve the OID Improvement District's Statement of
Obligations.

ITEM NO. 5
APPROVE THE MONTHLY TREASURER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER’S REPORTS FOR THE MONTH ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director Altieri, and was
unanimously supported to approve the Monthly Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer’s
Reports for the month ending September 30, 2018.

ITEM NO. 6
APPROVE ASSIGNMENT OF CAPITOL WORK ORDER NUMBERS

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director Altieri, and was
unanimously supported to approve Assignment of Capital Work Order Numbers.

Facility Project Description Estimated Cost Work Order No.
Hirschfeld Lateral Labor and equipment to install private $12,100 2018-051

irrigation system to facilitate 30’ easement.
(APN: 002-005-031)

ITEM NO. 7
APPROVE RENEWAL OF MEMBERSHIPS WITH VARIOUS
ORGANIZATIONS (ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA
WATER AGENCIES AND CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DISTRICTS)

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director Altieri, and was
unanimously supported to approve the renewal of memberships with various organizations
(Association of California Water Agencies and California Special Districts).



OID Board Minutes November 6, 2018
Page 3

ITEM NO. 8
APPROVE IT SYSTEMS ADMINISTRATOR JOB
DESCRIPTION AND AMEND THE 2018 ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director Altieri, and was
unanimously supported to approve the IT Systems Administrator Job Description and
amend the 2018 Organizational Chart.

ITEM NO. 9
APPROVE AWARD OF BID TO PAPE MACHINERY FOR ONE
(1) — SIX WHEEL DRIVE MOTOR GRADER WITH RIPER ATTACHMENT

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director Altieri, and was
unanimously supported to award the bid to Pape Machinery for one (1) — six wheel drive
motor grader with riper attachment.

ITEM NO. 10
APPROVE WORK RELEASE NO. 045 TO GENERAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT 2013-GSA-032 WITH NORTHERN STEEL, INC. FOR CUTTING,
BENDING, AND PL PLACEMENT OF REBAR FOR ONE (1) EA. HEADWALL AND
TWO (2) EA. DROP STRUCTURES LOCATED ON THE KEARNEY LATERAL

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director Altieri, and was
unanimously supported to approve Work Release No. 045 to General Services Agreement
2013-GSA-032 with Northern Steel, Inc. for cutting, bending, and placement of rebar for
one (1) ea. headwall and two (2) ea. drop structures located on the Kearney Lateral.

ITEM NO. 11
APPROVE AMENDMENT NO. 02 TO PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES AGREEMENT 2009-PSA-001 WITH PROVOST &
PRITCHARD ENGINEERING FOR REVISED HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director Altieri, and was
unanimously supported to approve Amendment No. 02 to Professional Services Agreement
2009-PSA-001 with Provost & Pritchard Engineering for revised hourly rate schedule.

ITEM NO. 12
APPROVE WORK RELEASE NO. 002 TO GENERAL
SERVICES AGREEMENT 2017-GSA-001 WITH APPLIED TECHNOLOGY
GROUP, INC. FOR WORK ASSOCIATED WITH THE NORTH
SIDE REGULATING RESERVOIR SCADA TOWER PROJECT

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director Altieri, and was
unanimously supported to approve Work Release No. 002 to General Services Agreement
2017-GSA-001 with Applied Technology Group, Inc. for work associated with the North
Side Regulating Reservoir SCADA Tower Project.



OID Board Minutes November 6, 2018
Page 4

ITEM NO. 13
APPROVE QUITCLAIM OF DEFERRED CONDITIONS OF
APPROVAL AGREEMENT (APN: 002-004-007 — MILAZZO)

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director Altieri, and was
unanimously supported to approve the Quitclaim of Deferred Conditions of Approval
Agreement (APN: 002-004-007 — Milazzo).

PULLED CONSENT ITEMS
ITEM NO. 2

ITEM NO. 2
APPROVE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING
OF OCTOBER 16, 2018 AND RESOLUTION NOS. 2018-53, 2018-54, AND 2018-55

A motion was made by Director Altieri, seconded by Director DeBoer, and was
unanimously supported to approve the Board of Directors’ Minutes of the Regular Meeting
of October 16, 2018 and Resolution Nos. 2018-53, 2018-54 and 2018-55 once the
correction is made to Director Altieri's Directors’ Comment.

ACTION CALENDAR
ITEM NOS. 14, 15, 16, 17

ITEM NO. 14
REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT A
RESOLUTION SETTING AGRICULTURAL WATER USER RATES FOR 2019

A motion was made by Director DeBoer and seconded by Director Doornenbal to increase
the Fixed Charge and the Volumetric Charge 3% and adopt the Resolution Setting
Agricultural Water User Rates for 2019 and was voted by the following roll call vote:

Director Altieri No
Director Doornenbal Yes
Director Orvis No
Director DeBoer Yes

The motion failed by a 2-2 vote.

President Orvis asked General Counsel Fred A. Silva if the Board could vote separately on
the Fixed Charge and the Volumetric Charge: General Counsel Fred Silva stated that the
action could be voted on separately.

A motion was made by Director Orvis, seconded by Director DeBoer and was unanimously
supported to increase the Fixed Charge 3%.



OID Board Minutes November 6, 2018
Page 5

A motion was made by Director Orvis and seconded by Director Altieri to leave the
Volumetric Charge the same as in 2018, and was voted by the following roll call vote:

Director Altieri Yes
Director Doornenbal No
Director Orvis No
Director DeBoer No

The motion failed by a 1-3 vote.

A motion was made by Director DeBoer and was seconded by Director Orvis to increase
the Volumetric Charge 1.5% and adopt the Resolution Setting Agricultural Water User
Rates for 2019, and was voted by the following roll call vote:

Director Altieri No

Director Doornenbal Yes
Director Orvis Yes
Director DeBoer Yes

The motion passed by a vote of 3-1.

ITEM NO. 15
REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION TO
ADJUST THE HOLIDAY BOARD MEETING DATES

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director Altieri, and was
unanimously supported to adjust the holiday Board Meeting Dates, as follows:

Cancel the December 4 and December 18, 2018 Board Meetings and
Schedule a Special Board Meeting on December 11, 2018; cancel the
January 1 and 15, 2019 Board Meetings and Schedule Special Board
Meetings for January 8 and 22, 2019

ITEM NO. 16

REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION ON REQUEST
TO WAIVE THE $100 DEPOSIT PLACED ON RURAL

WATER ACCOUNT (APN: 010-068-020 —- WORMHOOD)

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal and seconded by Director DeBoer to deny the
request to waive the $100 deposit placed on rural water account (APN: 010-068-020 —
Wormhood) and was voted by the following roll call vote:

Director Altieri No
Director Doornenbal Yes
Director Orvis Yes

Director DeBoer Yes



OID Board Minutes November 6, 2018
Page 6

The motion passed by a vote of 3-1.

ITEM NO. 17
REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION
OPPOSING STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD’S
BAY-DELTA PLAN, PHASE 1 DRAFT SUBSTITUTE ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENT

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director Altieri, and was
unanimously supported to adopt the Resolution Opposing State Water Resources Control
Board’s Bay-Delta Plan, Phase 1 Draft Substitute Environmental Document.

COMMUNICATIONS
ITEM NO. 18

A. GENERAL MANAGERS REPORT

General Manager Steve Knell discussed the following:

» The new legislation intended to protect employees from workplace harassment and
retaliation under the Fair Employment and Housing Act under Senate Bill SB1300;

> The Acting Secretary Andrew Wheeler's letter that was sent to Water Resources
Control Board regarding the Draft Bay-Delta Plan Update for the Lower San Joaquin
River and Southern Delta and its shortcomings in meeting the requirements of the
EPA,

» The Two-Mile Bar Tunnel Project and the video that is being made on the
development of the project. He also commented that jackets will be given to all
employees of the District and Directors as a celebration of the completion of the
tunnel. He also stated that a dedication ceremony will be held sometime in
February; and

> Gave an update on the Stanislaus River Basin Plan.

B. COMMITTEE REPORTS
There were no committee reports.

C. DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS/SUGGESTIONS

Director Altieri

Director Altieri stated that she received the email regarding the Salmon Project and highly
recommended that the Directors attend Krista Smith’s presentation on the Salmon Project
at Knights Ferry.

Director Doornenbal

Director Doornenbal thanked staff for doing a great job in extending the water season. He
stated that he irrigated right up to the 26" because things have been dry and it looks like
this will continue into December. It was really nice to get the last irrigation and the trees
look really healthy. He also commented on the tunnel project and stated that it was a good
project with a good company doing the work. He also commented that staff did a good job




OID Board Minutes November 6, 2018
Page 7

overseeing the project. He stated that the irrigation season went very well and the DSOs
did a great job. He stated that he was very proud of OID. He thanked everyone for a great
season and thanked staff for a great job.

Director DeBoer

Director DeBoer renewed his comment that he made several meetings ago. He has come
to appreciate, as he has caught little bits and pieces of conversations, that our Board
President spends a lot of time representing this Board beyond the normal meeting and
committee meetings. He goes above and beyond the normal presidential things that have
to be done. Director DeBoer stated that he would like to ask that at the next meeting or as
soon as possible, that an option be given to us as a Board to increase the compensation for
our Board President an additional $250 per month. He stated that whoever is Board
president has to put this additional time in so it is not just about the current President, it is
really about recognizing the additional burden of time for any President. He stated that he
would really like to see this placed on the agenda and the Board consider at a future
meeting a policy change.

Director Orvis

Director Orvis thanked Director DeBoer for his request. He stated that he would recuse
himself from the discussion if it is brought to the Board. We know what we are getting into
when we sign up for the position and sometimes we are given additional duties and that is
part of the job. He also thanked the staff and welcomed aboard the new staff. Director
Orvis stated that Donald Belletto wanted the District to know that this irrigation season was
one of the best years that they have had with their peaches. Mr. Belletto stated that he
appreciates the staff at OID and the DSOs that they worked with on a day-to-day basis.
Director Orvis reminded everyone to exercise their right and vote.

Robert Frobose commented on Closed Session ltems C. and D.
At the hour of 10:35 a.m. the meeting adjourned to closed session.

CLOSED SESSION
ITEM NO. 19

A. Government Code §54957.6 - Conference with Labor Negotiator
Agency Negotiator: General Manager
Represented Employee Organization : Operations Employees (OE3)
Unrepresented Employee Organizations: Non-Exempt Confidential, Exempt
Supervisory, and Exempt Management Bargaining Groups

B. Government Code §54957.6 - Conference with Labor Negotiator
Agency Negotiator: General Manager
Unrepresented Employee Organizations: Non-Exempt Confidential, Exempt
Supervisory, and Exempt Management Bargaining Groups

C. Government Code §54956.9(d)(4) — Initiation of Litigation
Two (2) Cases



OID Board Minutes November 6, 2018
Page 8

D. Government Code §54956.9(d)(2) — Significant Exposure to Litigation
One (1) Case

At the hour of 11:43 a.m. the Board reconvened to open session. Coming out of Closed
Session, Director Orvis reported that the Board unanimously voted to deny the request for
an unredacted copy of the Modesto Reservoir Conveyance System Feasibility Study.

OTHER ACTION
ITEM NO. 20

At the hour of 11:45 a.m. the Board meeting was adjourned. The next Regular Board
Meeting of the Oakdale Irrigation District Board of Directors is scheduled for Tuesday,
November 20, 2018 at 9:00 a.m. in the board room at 1205 East F Street, Oakdale, CA.

The next Joint Board Meeting of the South San Joaquin and Oakdale Irrigation Districts
serving the Tri-Dam Projects and Tri-Dam Authority and other joint business matters is
scheduled for Thursday, November 15, 2018 at 9:00 a.m. in the board room of the Oakdale
Irrigation District, 1205 East F Street, Oakdale, CA.

Thomas D. Orvis, President
Attest:

Steve Knell, P.E., Secretary



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-56

AUTHORIZING QUITCLAIM OF
DEFERRED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL - MILAZZO

APN: 002-004-007

WHEREAS, the above-noted parcel was subdivided into two (2) new parcels by Stanislaus
County Parcel Map 2007-17, recorded in Book 56 of Parcel Maps on Page 17 on November 21,
2008; and

WHEREAS, during the review process, Oakdale Irrigation District (OID) requested a Deferred
Conditions of Approval Agreement (Agreement) for independent irrigation improvements; and

WHEREAS, on May 3, 2011 the OID Board of Directors approved the Agreement for landowner
Daniel Milazzo, which was recorded on June 15, 2011 as Instrument No. 2011-0049864 in the
Office of the Stanislaus County Recorder; and

WHEREAS, the parcel split has never been formally completed and new APNs have not been
assigned by Stanislaus County, which is a process that initiates enforcement of the OID
Subdivision Parcel Map Policy and therefore the need for an Agreement. Additionally, Mr. Milazzo
continues to irrigate the parcel as one orchard. Therefore the existing Deferred Conditions of
Approval Agreement that was recorded in the office of the Stanislaus County Recorder on June
15, 2011 as Instrument No. 2011-0049864-00, does not apply and may now be quitclaimed.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that any interest in said Deferred Conditions of Approval
Agreement for Mr. Milazzo be quitclaimed, and that said Deferred Conditions of Approval
Agreement for Mr. Milazzo in its entirety is incorporated by reference and attached to this
Resolution.

Upon Motion of Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director Altieri, and duly submitted to the Board
for its consideration, the above-titled Resolution was adopted this sixth day of November, 2018.

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

Thomas D. Orvis, President
Board of Directors

Steve Knell, P. E.
General Manager/Secretary



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-57

AGRICULTURAL WATER USER RATES
FOR THE WATER YEAR 2019

WHEREAS, California Water Code Section 22280, et seq. provides that the District may
levy charges in lieu of assessments; and

WHEREAS, Water Code Section 22283 provides that the District may prescribe reasonable
rules to carry out the provisions of the Water Code section 22280, et seq.; and

WHEREAS, said change is exempt from CEQA under Public Resources Code Section
21080(a) (8); and

WHEREAS, on October 21, 2014, the District accepted and approved the increase in
agricultural water user rates as identified in Exhibit A as the maximum that could be imposed
without being subject to the requirements of Article XIIl D(8) of the California Constitution;
and

WHEREAS, the District declares the following:

(1) The revenues derived from these rates do not exceed the funds required to
provide subject properties related services.

(2) The revenues derived from the rates will not be used for any purpose other
than that for which the rates are imposed.

(3)  The amount of a rate imposed shall not exceed the proportional cost of the
service; and

NOW BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED, the District desires to implement Agricultural
Water User Rates for the 2019 water year as follows:

(1) FIXED CHARGE to be implemented.

(2) VOLUMETRIC CHARGE to be implemented.

3) DROUGHT SURCHARGE will not be implemented.

(4) Three-percent ANNUAL INFLATION to be implemented.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all charges as identified in this Resolution shall be
applicable to each separate parcel, as shown on the District records of Stanislaus County
and San Joaquin County Assessor’'s Parcel Maps.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that each said fixed charge shall be collected in two equal
installments, the first of which is due on December 31, 2018, and the second on June 20,



2019. If payment for the first installment is not received at the District office by 5:00 p.m. on
the aforementioned due date the payment will be considered delinquent, and penalty
charges will be made according to current policy. If payment for the second installment is
not received at the District office by 5:00 p.m. on the aforementioned due date the payment
will be considered delinquent, and penalty charges will be made according to current policy.
Postmarks are not accepted.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the District shall charge and collect, in accordance with
California Water Code sections 26077 and 26078, the following penalties on fixed charges
that become delinquent:

Fixed Charge
Ten percent (10%) on the first installment.

Five percent (5%) on the second installment plus $5.00 service charge.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that each volumetric billing is due within 30 days of said
statement date. Irrigation water deliveries will continue if not paid by the below due dates,
and no penalties will be applied. If the current year's volumetric charges are not paid by
December 31, 2018 at 5:00 p.m. at the District office, penalties will be applied. Postmarks
will not be accepted.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the District shall charge and collect, in accordance with
California Water Code sections 26077, the following penalties on volumetric charges that
become delinquent:

Volumetric Charge
Ten percent (10%)

BE IT RESOLVED that said volumetric charge will be billed for the following periods:

e Start of the irrigation season through May 31t each year,
e June 1%tthrough July 318!, each year,
e August 1% through the end of the irrigation season each year.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that parcels of lands with outstanding
current year charges as of December 315t each year will not be furnished irrigation water for
the subsequent irrigation season until these charges are paid in full.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution supersedes any other previous resolution
relating to the above subject matter.



Upon motion of Director DeBoer and seconded by Director Orvis and duly submitted to the
Board for its consideration, the above titled resolution was adopted this 6" day of November
2018 by the following roll call vote:

Director Altieri No
Director Doornenbal Yes
Director Orvis Yes
Director DeBoer Yes
Director Santos Absent

The motion passed by a vote of 3-1

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

Tom Orvis, President
Board of Directors

Steve Knell, P.E.
General Manager/Secretary



EXHIBIT A

SCHEDULE OF AGRICULTURAL WATER USER RATES
2019

FIXED CHARGE

$28.64 per acre (with a minimum rate of $57.28)

VOLUMETRIC CHARGE

Tier 1: $ 3.29 per acre-foot per acre / up to 3 acre-feet

Tier 2: $ 6.54 per acre-foot per acre / for each additional acre-foot up to 5 acre-feet
Tier 3: $ 8.68 per acre-foot per acre/ for each additional acre-foot up to 7 acre-feet
Tier 4: $10.87 per acre-foot per acre / for each additional acre-foot up to 8 acre-feet
Tier 5: $21.69 per acre-foot per acre / for each additional acre-foot over 8 acre-feet

DROUGHT SURCHARGE — Not implemented

$6.47 per acre



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-58

OPPOSING STATE WATER RESOURCES
CONTROL BOARD’S BAY-DELTA PLAN, PHASE 1
DRAFT SUBSTITUTE ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENT

WHEREAS, the State Water Resources Control Board's (SWRCB) Bay-Delta Plan, Phase 1
Draft Substitute Environmental Document (SED) issued in December 2012 proposed to require
the Stanislaus, Tuolumne, and Merced rivers release 35 percent of unimpaired flows from
February to June each year for environmental benefit; and

WHEREAS, the SWRCB, after a hearing in March 2013 and submittal of comments regarding
the adequacy and sustainability of the SED, has now revised and increased the
recommendations of the Draft SED to 40% unimpaired flows, with the ultimate intention of
finalizing the SED and updating the Bay-Delta Water Quality Control Plan with its Board for
adoption at a date to be determined; and

WHEREAS, flows described in the SED will create "significant and unavoidable" lasting impacts
that will harm the socioeconomic welfare of those within Stanislaus, San Joaquin and Merced
county as well as Northern California counties who will be impacted under Phase 2; and

WHEREAS, water supply impacts of flows described in the SED include the loss of hundreds of
thousands of acre-feet of surface water that is used for agriculture - the region's economic
engine. This loss of water would destroy our agricultural communities; and

WHEREAS, groundwater impacts of flows described in the SED include increased groundwater
pumping at a time when California is working to implement the landmark Sustainable
Groundwater Management Act. The SED estimates additional and significant groundwater
impacts resulting from an increased reliance on groundwater pumping. The reduced surface
water deliveries proposed in the SED will severely hamper the ability to conjunctively use
surface water deliveries on farms thereby reducing groundwater recharge; and

WHEREAS, there is reasonable and significant doubt that the flows described in the SED will
benefit native fish populations or promote ecosystem restoration. The SED focuses narrowly on
flows as a solution to environmental concerns while ignoring non-flow alternatives such as
predator suppression and fish habitat restoration. Such non-flow management measures are
often less costly and more effective; and



THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Oakdale Irrigation District urges the State Water
Resources Control Board to pursue a comprehensive solution, which takes into account, rather
than dismisses, the impacts listed above. This solution must prioritize non-flow measures to
protect native fish species, such as predation reduction programs in-river and in-delta, restore
habitat, provide drought off-ramps, address climate change concerns, etc. before requiring flow
increases that would threaten the economic vitality of our region's counties, cities and small family
farms. Furthermore, the Oakdale Irrigation District opposes any action by the SWRCB that does
not take these factors into account and opposes any plan that does not directly address these
items.

Upon motion of Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director Altieri, and duly submitted to the
Board for its consideration, the above titled resolution was unanimously adopted this 16th day of
October 2018.

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

Thomas D. Orvis, President
Board of Directors

Steve Knell, P.E.
General Manager/Secretary



BOARD AGENDA REPORT

Date: November 20, 2018
Item Number: 3
APN: N/A

SUBJECT: APPROVE OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT’S STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Statement of Obligations

TOP TEN OBLIGATIONS

Vendor

Drill Tech Drilling & Shoring, Inc.
Oakdale Joint Unified School District
Rinker Materials

Rubicon, Inc.

Kaiser Foundation Health Plan, Inc.
PG&E

Sutter Health Plus

Dennis Wing Trucking

Hilmar Lumber, Inc.

Allied Concrete and Supply Co., Inc.

FISCAL IMPACT: $1,474,478.23

ATTACHMENTS:

Purpose
WR #001

Grant - Learning Site

72" Concrete Pipes, 72" Gaskets
FlumeGates, FlumeMeters

Health Insurance — December

Electricity

Health Insurance — December

Haul Dirt

12", 24" & 36" PVC Tees, Elbows, Gaskets
Concrete

» Statement of Obligations — Accounts Payable

Amount
$700,185.05
200,000.00
127,245.75
113,353.69
62,413.16
37,170.94
36,322.58
31,970.00
20,946.96
12,243.82

Board Motion:

Motion by:

Second by:

VOTE:
Orvis (Yes/No) Altieri (Yes/No)

Action(s) to be taken:

Doornenbal (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) DeBoer (Yes/No)




OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

STATEMENT
OF
OBLIGATIONS

November 20, 2018



Accounts Payable
Check Register - November 20, 2018

Oakdale Irrigation District
1205 East F Street

Oakdale, CA 95361

Check
No  Check Date Vendor Name Amount Description
24562 11/2/2018 California State Disbursement Unit $207.69 Levy
24563 11/2/2018 California State Disbursement Unit $364.60 Levy
24564  11/2/2018 Franchise Tax Board $175.00 Levy
24565 11/2/2018 Principal Financial Group $915.90 Life Insurance - November
24566 11/2/2018 State Water Resources Control Board $694.00 Permit Fee - Kearney & Hirschfeld Lateral
24567 11/13/2018 AT&T $79.54 Phone Charges - 10/25/18 - 11/24/18
24568 11/13/2018 City of Oakdale - Utilities $975.48 Water/Sewer - 9/16/18 - 10/15/18
24569 11/13/2018 Martin & Chapman Co. $17.75 Wall Calendars
24570 11/20/2018 Accela, Inc. #774375 $945.00 Server Migration
24571 11/20/2018 Ace Hardware $1,348.41 Y-Strainer, Adapters, Circular Saws, Drills, Tape Measures
24572 11/20/2018 ACWA-JPIA $9,193.21 Dental/Vision Insurance - December
24573 11/20/2018 Allied Concrete and Supply Co., Inc. $12,243.82 Concrete
24574  11/20/2018 All Rigging Company $627.62 Anchor Shackle, Nylon Sling
24575 11/20/2018 Battery Systems $716.81 Batteries - #30, #185
24576 11/20/2018 BG Agri Sales & Service $463.30 Pumps
24577 11/20/2018 Boutin Jones, Inc. $294.00 Attorney Fees
24578 11/20/2018 Bukhari, Kim $107.83 Benefits Fair Door Prizes
24579 11/20/2018 Cain, Robert $1,527.19 Reissue Stale Dated Check No. 503774
24580 11/20/2018 Cal-Sierra Pipe, Inc. $10,612.08 12" Pipes
24581 11/20/2018 Casey Moving Systems Records Management $96.00 Shredding - October
24582 11/20/2018 CH2M Hill $283.80 WR #015
24583 11/20/2018 Chicago Title $32.50 Refund - APN: 006-088-004
24584 11/20/2018 Coffee Break Service, Inc. $147.00 Coffee Service
24585 11/20/2018 Comcast Business $321.11 Office Phone Charges - November
24586 11/20/2018 Condor Earth Technologies, Inc. $2,013.75 WR# 010
24587 11/20/2018 Consumers Choice Pest Control $75.00 Quarterly Pest Control
24588 11/20/2018 Corelogic Solutions, LLC $275.00 Real Quest - October
24589 11/20/2018 Custom Fire Protection $140.35 Spring Brackets
24590 11/20/2018 Cutting Edge Supply $720.96 Parabolic Teeth
24591 11/20/2018 CW Wraps & Marketing, Inc. $641.23 Jackets
24592 11/20/2018 Davids Engineering, inc. $7,270.50 WR # 006, WR # 008
24593 11/20/2018 Denair Lumber Company, Inc. $80.14 Douglas Fir
24594 11/20/2018 Dennis Wing Trucking $31,970.00 Haul Dirt
24595 11/20/2018 Devnalysis $60.00 Hosting - savethestan.org, oidwaterresourcesplan.org
24596 11/20/2018 Diesel Emissions Service $1,047.30 Glow Plugs, Gaskets, Blower Motor Assembly
24597 11/20/2018 Dirill Tech Drilling & Shoring, Inc. $700,185.05 WR #001
24598 11/20/2018 Fastenal Company $1,600.63 Blades, Jobber Drill Bits, Crimp Rings, Batteries
24599 11/20/2018 Fiez, Nichole $4,375.00 Employee Tuition Contract
24600 11/20/2018 George Reed, Inc. $3,672.19 Crushed Rock, Sand
24601 11/20/2018 GGD Oakdale LLC $2,444.66 DSO Office Lease - December
24602 11/20/2018 Gilton Resource Recovery Transfer Facility, Inc. $4,419.46 Waste Disposal - September
24603 11/20/2018 Gilton Solid Waste Management, Inc. $296.83 Refuse Charges - October
24604 11/20/2018 Green Rubber-Kennedy Ag $32.71 Brass Coupler
24605 11/20/2018 Grover Landscape Services, Inc. $495.00 Monthly Landscape Maintenance - October
24606 11/20/2018 Haidlen Ford $4,595.27 Step & Tube Assembly, Weather Strips, Injector Kits, Elements
24607 11/20/2018 Hilmar Lumber, Inc. $20,946.96 12", 24" & 36" PVC Tees, Elbows, Gaskets, PVC Primer/Cement
24608 11/20/2018 Hixco $876.75 Ladders, Respirators
24609 11/20/2018 Holt of California, Inc. $368.13 Filters, Switch Assembly, Keys



Accounts Payable
Check Register - November 20, 2018

Oakdale Irrigation District
1205 East F Street

Oakdale, CA 95361

Check
No Check Date Vendor Name Amount Description
24610 11/20/2018 House Of Beef $2,699.08 Benefits Fair / End of Season BBQ
24611 11/20/2018 Hughson Farm Supply $936.79 Carb Kit, Turbo Nozzle, Nozzle Pack, Chain Saw
24612 11/20/2018 Interstate Truck Center $602.76 Install Kit, Bearings, Gasket, Bushing, Seal - #46
24613 11/20/2018 Kaiser Foundation Health Plan, Inc. $62,413.16 Health Insurance - December
24614 11/20/2018 Knell, Steve $30.71 SSJID Field Day - Lunch
24615 11/20/2018 Lowes $854.78 Concrete, Pallets
24616 11/20/2018 McMaster-Carr $1,723.31 Worm - Drive Clamps, Chain Wrenches, Bolt/Chain Cutter
24617 11/20/2018 Mission Uniform Service $2,981.91 Uniform Service, Lockers
24618 11/20/2018 Modesto Irrigation District $441.64 Electricity
24619 11/20/2018 Morrill Industries, Inc. $32.29 2" Flanges
24620 11/20/2018 Newegg Business, Inc. $136.80 Ethernet Cables
24621 11/20/2018 NorCal Kenworth $987.53 Bushing & Adapter Beam Kit, Center Bushing Kit, Back Up Alarms
24622 11/20/2018 Oakdale Automotive Repair & Tire $1,252.77 Tires - #182, #186
24623 11/20/2018 Oakdale Auto Parts $529.14 Hoses, Chain Roller, Chain Link, Connector, Hose Fittings
24624 11/20/2018 Oakdale Leader $1,076.78 Employment Ad - Assistant Engineer, Farm & Ranch Publication
24625 11/20/2018 Oakdale Joint Unified School District $200,000.00 Grant - Learning Site
24626 11/20/2018 Oak Valley Hospital $375.00 Pre-Employment Exams
24627 11/20/2018 Office Depot $574.52 Office Supplies
24628 11/20/2018 O'Laughlin & Paris LLP $8,172.50 Attorney Fees
24629 11/20/2018 Ontel Security Services, Inc. $275.00 Security Monitoring - October
24630 11/20/2018 PG&E $37,170.94 Electricity
24631 11/20/2018 Pakmail $30.58 Shipping Charges
24632 11/20/2018 P & L Concrete Products, Inc. $242.62 Concrete
24633 11/20/2018 Pridestaff $3,682.80 Temp Employee - Finance Dept
24634 11/20/2018 Ray Morgan Company $205.76 Copier Usage - 9/24/18 - 10/23/18
24635 11/20/2018 Redwood Health Services $252.75 125 Cafeteria Plan & Cobra - December
24636 11/20/2018 Rinker Materials $127,245.75 72" Concrete Pipes, 72" Gaskets
24637 11/20/2018 Rubicon, Inc. $113,353.69 FlumeGates, FlumeMeters
24638 11/20/2018 Samba Holdings, Inc. $162.00 Fleet Watch - October
24639 11/20/2018 San Joaquin Farm Bureau Federation $425.00 2019 Membership Dues
24640 11/20/2018 Sierra Control Systems, LLC $5,735.00 WR # 005
24641 11/20/2018 Sierra Northern Railway $8,040.00 Railroad Track Repair
24642 11/20/2018 Spray & Son Janitorial, Inc. $2,675.00 Monthly Janitorial Service - October
24643 11/20/2018 Stanislaus County Farm Bureau $350.00 2019 Membership Dues
24644 11/20/2018 Streamline $400.00 Monthly Website Fee - October
24645 11/20/2018 Sutter Care at Home $2,368.00 Biometrics Screening - 2018 Employee Benefits Fair
24646 11/20/2018 Sutter Health Plus $36,322.58 Health Insurance - December
24647 11/20/2018 Target Specialty Products $846.68 Milestone
24648 11/20/2018 Toste, David $75.00 Steel-Toe Boot Reimbursement
24649 11/20/2018 United Rentals Northwest, Inc. $839.03 Motor, Seals, Valve Kit, Rings
24650 11/20/2018 Verizon Wireless $2,104.81 Cimis Station, Cell Phone Charges - October
24651 11/20/2018 W. H. Breshears, Inc. $12,225.30 Fuel
24652 11/20/2018 White Cap Construction Supply $1,504.78 EZ Up Tents, Concrete Washouts
24653 11/20/2018 Wholesale Trailer Supply $327.41 Tie Downs
24654 11/20/2018 Wienhoff Drug Testing, Inc. $325.00 Random Selection Drug Testing - October
24655 11/20/2018 Wille Electric Supply Co., Inc. $478.77 Fuse Disconnects, Fuses, Adapters

1,474,478.23



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS
November 6, 2018

VOIDED Check No. 22857 and 23303

THE FOREGOING CLAIMS, NUMBERED 24462 Through 24655 INCLUSIVE
ARE APPLIED TO THE GENERAL FUND OF OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
AND ARE OBLIGATIONS AUTHORIZED THERETO.



BOARD AGENDA REPORT

Date: November 20, 2018
[tem Number: 4
APN: N/A

SUBJECT: APPROVE WORK RELEASE NO. 046 TO GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
2013-GSA-032 WITH NORTHERN STEEL, INC. FOR CUTTING, BENDING, AND
PLACEMENT OF REBAR FOR ONE (1) EA. HEADWALL STRUCTURE LOCATED
ON THE KEARNEY LATERAL

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Work Release No. 046 to General Services Agreement 2013-
GSA-032 with Northern Steel, Inc. for Cutting, Bending and Placement
of Rebar for One (1) ea. Headwall Structure Located on the Kearney
Lateral and Authorize General Manager to Execute

BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY:

Northern Steel, Inc. will furnish all necessary labor, tools, equipment, transportation, and materials for
the cutting, bending and placement of rebar for one (1) ea. headwall structure located on the Kearney
Lateral. The Work will be performed on a lump sum basis and completed by March 1, 2019.

Staff recommends that the Board authorize the General Manager to execute the Work Release No.

046 for General Services Agreement 2013-GSA-032 for the furnishing, cutting, bending, and placement
of rebar. For the inclusions and exclusions see the attached Exhibit “A” for details.

FISCAL IMPACT: $5,900.00

ATTACHMENTS:
» Work Release No. 046 w/ Exhibit A

Board Motion:

Motion by: Second by:

VOTE:
Orvis (Yes/No) Altieri (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) DeBoer (Yes/No)

Action(s) to be taken:




Northern Steel, Inc. November 20, 2018
General Services Agreement
2013-GSA-032

ra

iED
ﬁ'

| CAXOALE FRIGATON DETRCT

lodha )
gt\‘“"\*

Work Release No. 046

Supply Rebar and Tie in Place for One (1) ea.
Headwall Structure located on the
Kearney Lateral — OID #2017-036

Scope of Work

Furnish all necessary labor, tools, equipment, transportation, and materials for the supply,
cutting, bending, and tying in place of rebar for one (1) ea. headwall structure located on the
Kearney Lateral. The price will include two field trips per structure to complete the Scope of
Work. The Work will be performed for a Lump Sum amount based on discussions and
drawings previously provided to Northern Steel, Inc.

Lump Sum Amount: $5,900.00
See Exhibit “A” for terms, disclaimers, inclusions and exclusions.

Schedule

The Schedule will be for the Work to be performed and completed before March 1, 2019.
The OID contact will be Mr. Jason Jones, Support Services Manager who will coordinate the
work. Mr. Jones can be contacted at his office, the telephone number is (209) 840-5535, or
at his cell phone number (209) 495-3672.

Terms and Conditions

All Terms and Conditions identified in General Services Agreement 2013-GSA-032 will
remain in effect for Work Release No. 046.

All work over $1,000.00 will be at prevailing wage rates.

Oakdale Irrigation District Northern Steel, Inc.

By: By:

Name: Steve Knell, P.E. Name: Michael Jackson
Title: General Manager Title: CFO

Date: Date:




Exhibit “A”

INSI

NORTHERN STEEL, INC.

Customer:  Oakdale Irrigation District
1205 East "F" Street
Oakdale, CA 95361

Date: 11/6/2018

Job Name: Kearney Lateral Siphon #3
Plan Date: 10/30/18

Addenda:

BID PROPOSAL

1636 Culpepper Ave.
Modesto, CA 95351
p:209-527-7934

f: 209-527-8765
northernsteel@gmail.com

Material & Labor Price

Total

Rebear tied in place for a 13' wall x 20’ long 2 trips

5,900.00

TERMS: This bid is good for 30 days. Payment terms are 30 days from billing for labor
performed and materials consumed or delivered to job site. Past due accounts will be
charged a finance charge at a periodic rate of 1.5% per month, which is an annual
percentage rate of 18%. No retention is to be held more than 30 days after installation is
complete. This page must be included as an addendum to any contract you provide. All
applicable taxes are included. We are union signatories.

Total $5,900.00

EXCLUSIONS: Unless specified in the description, all of the following are excluded from the cost of this bid: C.J. Dowels, masonry
reinforcement, light pole footings, welding, welded bars, pour watchman, rebar guards, labor on existing reinforcement, cost of
bonds, liquidated damages, city/ county standards reinforcement, reinforcement not shown on bid plans, testing, inspection, drilling,
grouting, misc. iron, engineers allowance, galvanized or epoxy coated rebar, anchor bolt ties, pre-cast reinforcement, threaded rods,
inserts, mechanical couplers, and rebar protection. Where other trades’ connections go through footing, rebar and labor needed to

install will be extra. Unless specified, NO SITE WORK IS INCLUDED.

CONTRACTOR PROVIDES: Lines, grades, templates, scaffold, hoisting, lowering, clear access to structures, lay down area within
50° of each structure, safe working environment, layout (including layout of masonry dowels), wooden templates for dowels, field
measurements, clear access to excavations (no doubling up of forms; added time will be billed as an extra).




BOARD AGENDA REPORT

Date: November 20, 2018
ltem Number: 5
APN: N/A

SUBJECT: APPROVE WORK RELEASE NO. 047 TO GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
2013-GSA-032 WITH NORTHERN STEEL, INC. FOR CUTTING, BENDING AND
PLACEMENT OF REBAR FOR ONE (1) EA. DROP STRUCTURE LOCATED ON THE
LOWER COMETA LATERAL

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Work Release No. 047 to General Services Agreement 2013-
GSA-032 with Northern Steel, Inc. for Cutting, Bending and Placement
of Rebar for One (1) ea. Drop Structure Located on the Lower
Cometa Lateral and Authorize General Manager to Execute

BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY:

Northern Steel, Inc. will furnish all necessary labor, tools, equipment, transportation, and materials for
the cutting, bending and placement of rebar for one (1) ea. drop structure located on the Lower Cometa
Lateral. The Work will be performed on a lump sum basis and completed by March 1, 2019.

Staff recommends that the Board authorize the General Manager to execute the Work Release No.

047 for General Services Agreement 2013-GSA-032 for the furnishing, cutting, bending, and placement
of rebar. For the inclusions and exclusions see the attached Exhibit “A” for details.

FISCAL IMPACT: $7,500.00

ATTACHMENTS:
» Work Release No. 047 w/ Exhibit A

Board Motion:

Motion by: Second by:

VOTE:
Orvis (Yes/No) Altieri (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) DeBoer (Yes/No)

Action(s) to be taken:




Northern Steel, Inc. November 20, 2018
General Services Agreement
2013-GSA-032

QARLOALE FROATION DEIRCT

ﬁ

Aa. o)
e

Work Release No. 047

Supply Rebar and Tie in Place for One (1) ea.
Drop Structure located on the
Lower Cometa Lateral — OID #2018-044

Scope of Work

Furnish all necessary labor, tools, equipment, transportation, and materials for the supply,
cutting, bending, and tying in place of rebar for one (1) ea. drop structure located on the
Lower Cometa Lateral. The price will include two field trips per drop structure to complete
the Scope of Work. The Work will be performed for a Lump Sum amount based on
discussions and drawings previously provided to Northern Steel, Inc.

Lump Sum Amount: $7,500.00
See Exhibit “A” for terms, disclaimers, inclusions and exclusions.

Schedule

The Schedule will be for the Work to be performed and completed before March 1, 2019.
The OID contact will be Mr. Jason Jones, Support Services Manager who will coordinate the
work. Mr. Jones can be contacted at his office, the telephone number is (209) 840-5535, or
at his cell phone number (209) 495-3672.

Terms and Conditions

All Terms and Conditions identified in General Services Agreement 2013-GSA-032 will
remain in effect for Work Release No. 047.

All work over $1,000.00 will be at prevailing wage rates.

Oakdale Irrigation District Northern Steel, Inc.

By: By:

Name: Steve Knell, P.E. Name: Michael Jackson
Title: General Manager Title: CFO

Date: Date:




Exhibit “A”

1636 Culpepper Ave.
Modesto, CA 95351
p: 209-527-7934

f: 209-527-8765

NORTHERN STEEL, INC northernsteel@gmail.com

Customer: Oakdale Irrigation District
1205 East "F" Street
Oakdale, CA 95361

Date: 11/13/2018
Job Name: Cometa Drop 3
Plan Date:

Addenda:

BID PROPOSAL

Material & Labor Price Total

Rebar tied in place for Cometa Drop 3 7,500.00

TERMS: This bid is good for 30 days. Payment terms are 30 days from billing for labor
performed and materials consumed or delivered to job site. Past due accounts will be

charged a finance charge at a periodic rate of 1.5% per month, which is an annual

percentage rate of 18%. No retention is to be held more than 30 days after installation is TOtaI $7 9 5 00 . 00
complete. This page must be included as an addendum to any contract you provide. All
applicable taxes are included. We are union signatories.

EXCLUSIONS: Unless specified in the description, all of the following are excluded firom the cost of this bid: C.J. Dowels. masonry
reinforcement, light pole footings, welding, welded bars, pour watchman, rebar guards, labor on existing reinforcement, cost of
bonds, liquidated damages, city/ county standards reinforcement, reinforcement not shown on bid plans, testing, inspection, drilling,
grouting, misc. iron, engineers allowance, galvanized or epoxy coated rebar, anchor bolt ties, pre-cast reinforcement, threaded rods,
inserts, mechanical couplers, and rebar protection. Where other trades’ connections go through footing, rebar and labor needed to
install will be extra. Unless specified, NO SITE WORK IS INCLUDED.

CONTRACTOR PROVIDES: Lines, grades, templates, scaffold, hoisting, lowering, clear access to structures, lay down area within
507 of each structure, safe working environment, layout (including layout of masonry dowels), wooden templates for dowels, field
measurements, clear access to excavations (no doubling up of forms; added time will be billed as an extra).




BOARD AGENDA REPORT

Date: November 20, 2018
Item Number: 6
APN: N/A

SUBJECT: APPROVE WORK RELEASE NO. 008 TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
2011-PSA-003 WITH BUMGARDNER BIOLOGICAL CONSULTING TO PROVIDE
BIOLOGICAL SERVICES FOR THE SOUTH MAIN CANAL SEGMENT FOUR
PROJECT

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Work Release No. 008 to Professional Services Agreement
2011-PSA-003 with Bumgardner Biological Consulting to Provide
Biological Services for the South Main Canal Segment Four Project and
Authorize General Manager to Execute

BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY:

The Oakdale Irrigation District (OID) is in the process of developing plans and specifications for the
relining and stabilization of the South Main Canal from the downstream portal of the Two Mile Bar
Tunnel Project to Tunnel No. 7. Prior to potential construction of this project OID needs to utilize the
services of Bumgardner Biological Consulting (Bumgardner) to conduct a reconnaissance level habitat
assessment for special status species or other sensitive biological resources along the alignment of the
project. Work Release No. 008 will allow Bumgardner to conduct a reconnaissance level habitat
assessment and provide a short summary report to the OID upon completion of the previously
mentioned task.

Bumgardner Biological Consulting will perform said professional services on an Estimated Not to
Exceed basis in the amount of $2,400.00. Staff recommends that the Board authorize the General
Manager to execute the Work Release No. 008 for professional services as described above.

FISCAL IMPACT: Estimated Not to Exceed Amount: $2,400.00

ATTACHMENTS:
> Work Release No. 008 w/ Exhibit “A”

Board Motion:

Motion by: Second by:

VOTE:
Orvis (Yes/No) Altieri (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) DeBoer (Yes/No)

Action(s) to be taken:




Bumgardner Biological Consulting November 20, 2018
Professional Services Agreement
2011-PSA-003

Work Release No. 008
Reconnaissance Level Habitat Assessment
for OID’s South Main Canal - Segment Four Project

Background

Bumgardner Biological Consulting has previously performed biological surveys and
monitoring services for several OID projects including the Two-Mile Bar Tunnel Project.

Scope of Work

The OID is anticipating work being conducted on the OID South Main Canal — Segment
Four Project which consists of relining and stabilization of a portion of the canal from the
OID Two Mile Bar Tunnel to tunnel seven. Prior to activities potentially commencing, a
reconnaissance level habitat assessment needs to be conducted to identify any special
status species or other sensitive biological resources. See the attached Exhibit “A” for a
detailed breakdown of the reconnaissance level habitat assessment.

Schedule

It is anticipated that the Schedule for the Work to be performed will be conducted as soon as
possible. The OID contact will be Mr. Eric Thorburn, Water Operations Manager who will
coordinate the work. Mr. Thorburn can be contacted at his office, the telephone number is
(209) 840-5525.

Pricing
Bumgardner Biological Consulting will perform the services on a Time and Material basis in
accordance with the attached “Exhibit A”. The estimated cost is noted below.

Estimated Not to Exceed Amount $ 2,400.00

This Estimated Not to Exceed amount cannot be exceeded without prior authorization from
OID.




Bumgardner Biological Consulting March 21, 2017
Professional Services Agreement
2011-PSA-003

Terms and Conditions

All Terms and Conditions identified in Professional Services Agreement 2011-PSA-003
will remain in effect for Work Release No. 008.

When submitting the invoice, include the Contract and Work Release Number on the
invoice. All invoices are to be sent to the attention of Oakdale Irrigation District’s Accounts
Payable department.

Oakdale Irrigation District Bumgardner Biological Consulting
By: By:

Name: Steve Knell, P.E. Name: Michael Bumgardner
Title: General Manager Title: Owner

Date: Date:




Exhibit “A”

Scope of Work to Provide Biological Services for the
OID South Main Canal Segment 4 Relining and Stabilization Project

Task 1 — Reconnaissance-Level Habitat Assessment

Bumgardner Biological Consulting (BBC) will conduct a reconnaissance-level habitat assessment
for special-status species or other sensitive biological resources along Segment 4 of the OID South
Main Canal as it relates to the relining and stabilization of the segment. The habitat assessment
will include the following:

1.

Conduct at least one visit covering the project area including areas that will be directly or
indirectly impacted by the project. Survey adjoining areas within 250 ft, or more where direct
or indirect effects could potentially extend offsite. If lawful access cannot be achieved to
adjacent areas, surveys can be performed with a spotting scope, binoculars or other suitable
methods.

Prior to the site visit, compile relevant biological information for the site and surrounding area
to provide a local and regional context from sources that include, but are not limited to Google
Earth, California Natural Diversity Data Base, and eBird (http://ebird.org), etc.

Identify vegetation and habitat types potentially supporting special-status species in the project

- area and vicinity (particularly California tiger salamander and foothill vellow-legged frog).

Record and report on the following information:

a. A full description of the proposed project, including but not limited to, expected work
periods, daily work schedules, equipment used, activities performed (such as drilling,
construction, excavation, etc.) and whether the expected activities will vary in location or
intensity over the project’s timeline;

b. A regional setting map, showing the general project location relative to major roads and
other recognizable features (QID to provide);

C. A detailed map (preferably a USGS topo 7.5” quad base map) of the site and proposed
project, including the footprint of proposed land and/or vegetation-altering activities, base
map source, identifying topography, landscape features, a north arrow, bar scale, and legend
(OID to provide);

d. A written description of the biological setting, including location, acreage, topography, soils,
geographic and hydrologic characteristics;

e. Vegetation type and structure, vegetation height, habitat types and features in the project site

and surrounding area (particularly elderberry [Sambucus sp.]);



The results of the habitat assessment will be documented in a short summary report that will be
submitted to the client within 10 working days of completing the assessment. It should be noted
that the client will be responsible for assisting BBC in the preparation of any necessary maps or
figures. Note that no protocol surveys are proposed as part of this scope of work.

Budget Estimate: $2,400



BOARD AGENDA REPORT

Date: November 20, 2018
item Number: 7
APN: N/A

SUBJECT: APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 2018-PSA-003 WITH
ENVIRONMENTAL SYSTEMS RESEARCH INSTITUE, INC. AND AUTHORIZE
GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Professional Services Agreement 2018-PSA-003 with
Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. and Authorize General
Manager to Execute

BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY:

Professional Services Agreements are the mechanism in which an agency transfers risk from itself to
a consultant providing it services. The following consultant will be utilized by the District for services to
assist in migrating our irrigation GIS data from current structure to a standard irrigation data model and
versioned data management workflows. In order to be fully covered by their insurance for which we
are listed as the additional insured, the District needs to have a signed agreement.

Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. (Esri)

Staff is requesting approval to utilize the above consultant for professional services and authorize the
General Manager to execute Professional Services Agreement 2018-PSA-003 with Esri.

FISCAL IMPACT: $20,393.00

ATTACHMENTS:
> Professional Services Agreement 2018-PSA-003 with Exhibits

Board Motion:

Motion by: Second by:

VOTE:
Orvis (Yes/No) Altieri (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) DeBoer (Yes/No)

Action(s) to be taken:




Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. November 20, 2018
Professional Services Agreement
2018-PSA-003

BARMLL SO ST

ﬂw

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is effective as of the last date
executed below (the “Effective Date”) and expires on October 31, 2019, by and between
Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. (‘Consultant” or “Esri”), a California corporation
with offices at 380 New York Street, Redlands, California 92373-8100, and Oakdale Irrigation
District, an irrigation district organized pursuant to Division 11 of the California Water Code
(“Client”), with offices at 1205 East F Street, Oakdale, California 95361. The Agreement also
incorporates Esri Addendum No. 336431.

In consideration of the promises herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the
parties agree as follows:

1.

Services: Consultant and Client agree Consultant will perform the services identified as
defined in Exhibit “A” or on each Work Release issued. Consultant will perform the
following Scope of Work:

Professional Services

Independent Contractor Relationship: Consultant’s relationship with Client will be that
of an independent contractor, and nothing in this Agreement should be construed to
create a partnership, joint venture, or employer-employee relationship. Consultant is not
the agent of Client and is not authorized to make any representation, contract, or
commitment on behalf of Client. Consultant will not be entitled to any of the benefits
which Client may make available to its employees, such as group insurance, profit-
sharing or retirement benefits. Consultant will be solely responsible for all tax returns
and payments required to be filed with or made to any federal, state or local tax authority
with respect to Consultant'’s performance of services and receipt of fees under this
Agreement. Client will regularly report amounts paid to Consultant by filing Form 1099-
MISC with the Internal Revenue Service as required by law. Because Consultant is an
independent contractor, Client will not withhold or make payments for social security;
make unemployment insurance or disability insurance contributions; or obtain worker’s
compensation insurance on Consultant's behalf. Consultant agrees to accept exclusive
liability for complying with all applicable state and federal laws governing self-employed
individuals, including obligations such as payment of taxes, social security, disability and
other contributions based on fees paid to Consultant, its agents or employees under this
Agreement. Consultant hereby agrees to indemnify and defend Client against any and
all such taxes or contributions, including penalties and interest. Consultant warrants
that, to the best of its knowledge, there is no other existing contract or duty on
Consultant’s part inconsistent with this Agreement.

Prevailing Wages: Consultant shall pay its employees and agents not less than the

prevailing rate of per diem wages as determined by the Director of the California
Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Section 1770 of the California Labor

10of12




Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. November 20, 2018
Professional Services Agreement
2018-PSA-003

Code where determined to be necessary and appropriate in accordance with the law.
The rate shall be based on the prevailing rate of per diem wages at the time the actual
work is performed. Copies of the prevailing rate of per diem wages are on file at Client’s

offices and available to any interested party upon request or on the internet at
http://imww.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ index.htm.

4. Manner of Performance: The manner and means which Consultant chooses to
complete the Work are in Consultant's sole discretion and control. In completing the
Work, Consultant agrees to provide its own equipment, tools, and other materials at its
own expense. Consultant shall perform the services necessary to complete the Work in
a timely and professional manner consistent with industry standards.

5. Changes/Amendments. This Agreement may not be changed except by written
amendment signed by both parties. Services not expressly set forth in this Agreement
are excluded. If Consultant is delayed in performing its services due to an event beyond
its control, including but not limited to fire, flood, earthquake, explosion, strike,
transportation or equipment delays, act of war, or act of God, then the schedule or
payment under the Agreement shall be equitably adjusted, in Client’s reasonable
discretion, to compensate Consultant for any reasonable additional costs directly
attributable to the delay.

6. Fees for Services: All Work shall be performed on an as-needed basis. For each Task, a
Work Release will be issued. If the Work can be defined sufficiently prior to the Work
Release, a lump sum amount as payment for the Work will be negotiated and identified
on the Work Release. However, if the scope of Work cannot be defined, Work will be
paid for on a time-and-material basis. The rates will be in accordance with the attached
rates in Exhibit “B”. All rates will include payroll burdens and benefits, overhead, and
profit. The rates identified on Exhibit “B” shall remain fixed for the duration of the
Work; provided, however, that Consultant may request, in writing, a modification of such
rates. Any modifications may only take effect if and after approved by the Client's Board of
Directors, at which point Client and Consultant shall enter into a written modification of this
Agreement to reflect such increased rates. In no event will Client be held accountable for
any additional cost except in accordance with the terms and procedures of this
Agreement.

7. Payment: Payment shall be made for undisputed invoices within thirty (30) days of receipt
by Client of Consultant’s invoice and per the current rate schedule attached as
Exhibit “B”. If portions of the invoice are in dispute, the undisputed portions shall be paid.
Disputed invoices shall be returned as soon as possible but within seven (7) days after
receipt with an explanation setting forth the reasons in writing why the invoice is not proper.
If any other payment schedules are needed by Consultant, the Consultant must obtain
approval before the project begins. All invoices for project are to be sent to the Client's
accounts payable department with the project name listed on the invoice.

Monthly Invoices submitted to Client for payment shall include information such as labor
category descriptions, hourly rates, current hours, prior hours, cumulative hours,
currently billed, previously billed, cumulative billed, as well as other direct costs such as
travel-related expenses, as further described in Exhibit A. If the Client fails to pay
invoiced amounts within sixty (60) days after delivery of invoice, Consultant, at its sole
discretion, may suspend Work hereunder or may initiate collection proceedings,

2 0f 12




Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. November 20, 2018
Professional Services Agreement
2018-PSA-003

including mandatory binding arbitration, without incurring any liability or waiving any right
established hereunder or by law.

8. insurance: Consultant shall maintain insurance with the following required coverage
and minimum limits and, upon request, shall provide insurance certificates to the Client:

o Commercial General Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence
$2,000,000 aggregate
o Auto Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence
o Workers’ Compensation coverage:
° Consultant’s coverage is primary and Client’s coverage is noncontributory AM

Best Rating A = VII or better
e Thirty (30) day notice of cancellation, subject to policy provisions
. Professional Liability not less than:  $1,000,000

Said insurance will be evidenced by certification filed with the Client as otherwise
specified by this Agreement. All policies shall name “the Oakdale Irrigation District,
its directors, officers, employees and volunteers” as additional insured’s on the
General and Auto liability policies.

9. Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Insurance: Consultant shall
provide and maintain commercial general liability and automobile liability insurance as set
forth in this Agreement.

A. Coverage: Coverage for commercial general liability and automobile liability
insurance shall be at least as broad as the following:

i. Insurance Services Office (“ISO”") Commercial General Liability Coverage
(Occurrence Form CG 0001); and

il ISO Business Auto Coverage (Form CA 0001), covering Symbol 1 (any
auto).

B. Limits: Consultant shall maintain limits no less than the following limits:

i General liability of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence for
bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. |f Commercial General
Liability insurance or other form with a general aggregate limit or products-
completed operations aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate
limit shall apply separately to the project/location (with the ISO CG 2503, or
ISO CG 2504, or insurer’s equivalent endorsement provided to Client) or the
general aggregate limit and products-completed operations aggregate limit
shall be twice the required occurrence limit; and

30of12




Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. November 20, 2018
Professional Services Agreement
2018-PSA-003

10.

11.

12.

. Automobile Liability of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) for bodily injury and
property damage each accident limit.

C. Required Provisions: The General Liability and Automobile Liability policies are to
contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

i. Client, its directors, officers, employees, and authorized volunteers are to be
given insured status (ISO endorsement CG 2010, CG 2033, or insurer’s
equivalent for general liability coverage) as respects: liability arising out of
activities performed by or on behalf of the Consultant; products and
completed operations of Consultant; premises owned, occupied or used by
Consultant; and automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by
Consultant. The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope
of protection afforded to Client, its directors, officers, employees, or
authorized volunteers;

ii. For any claims related to the Work, Consultant's insurance shall be the
primary insurance, and any insurance, self-insurance, or other coverage
maintained by Client, shall be non-contributory.

iil. Any failure by Consultant to comply with reporting or other provisions of the
insurance policies including but not limited to a breach of any warranties
contained therein shall not affect coverage provided to Client, its directors,
officers, employees, or authorized volunteers; and

iv. Consultant’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom
a claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the
insurer’s liability.

D. Subrogation: Consultant shall waive all rights of subrogation against Client.

Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance: Consultant and all sub-
contractors shall insure (or be a qualified self-insured) under the applicable laws relating
to workers’ compensation insurance, all of their employees working on or about the
construction site, in accordance with the “Workers’ Compensation and Insurance Act’,
Division IV of the Labor Code of the State of California and any Acts amendatory
thereof. Consultant shall provide employer’s liability insurance with limits of no less than
One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) each accident, One Million Dollars ($1,000,000)
disease policy limit, and One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) disease each employee.

If Consultant is a Sole Proprietor, a Sole Proprietor Business Affidavit Form must be on file
with the Client prior to the start of work.

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions: Any deductible or self-insured retention must
be declared to and approved by Client.

Acceptability of Insurers: Consultant shall purchase the policies of insurance required
under this Agreement from insurers having a current A.M. Best Financial Strength Rating of
no less than A, and Financial Size Category of no less than VIl or as otherwise approved
by Client.

4 of 12




Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. November 20, 2018
Professional Services Agreement
2018-PSA-003

13.

14.

15.

Evidence of Insurance: Evidence of the insurance coverage required to be maintained by
Consultant under this Agreement, as represented by Certificates of Insurance issued by the
insurance carrier, must be furnished to Client prior to Consultant starting the Work. Such
Certificates of Insurance shall state that Client will be notified in writing thirty (30) days prior
to cancellation, of insurance. Consultant shall provide Client a certified copy of any and all
applicable insurance policies upon request of Client. Timely renewal certificates will be
provided to Client.

Continuation of Coverage: If any of the required coverages expire during the term of this
Agreement, Consultant shall deliver all applicable renewal certificates to Client at least ten
(10) days prior to the expiration date, subject to policy provisions.

Indemnity:

a. "Claim" means any claim, action, or demand by a third party.

b. "Indemnitees” means Client and its directors, officers, employees, and authorized
volunteers.

C. "Infringement Claim(s)" means any Claim alleging that Client’s use of or access

to Consultant Offerings or Services infringe a patent, copyright, trademark, or
trade secret.

d. "Loss(es)" means out-of-pocket loss, damage award, settlement amount, cost, or
expense, including awarded attorneys' fees.

Infringement Indemnity

a. Consultant will defend and hold all Indemnitees harmless from any Infringement
Claim and indemnify any Loss arising out of an Infringement Claim as set forth in
the following paragraphs.

b. If Consultant determines that an Infringement Claim is valid, Esri may, at its
expense, either (i) obtain rights for Client to continue using the Consultant
Offerings or Services or (ii) modify the Esri Offerings or Services while
maintaining substantially similar functionality. If neither alternative is
commercially reasonable, Esri may terminate Client’s right to use the Esri
Offerings or Services and will refund any (a) license fees that Client paid for the
infringing Consultant Offerings or Services acquired under a Perpetual License,
prorated on a 5-year, straight-line depreciation basis beginning from the initial
date of delivery or (b)unused portion of fees paid for Term Licenses,
Subscriptions, and Maintenance.

c. Consultant has no obligation to defend an Infringement Claim or to indemnify
Client to the extent the Infringement Claim arises out of (i) the combination or
integration of Consultant Offerings or Services with a product, process, system,
or element that Esri has not supplied or specified in the Specification;
(i) alteration of Consultant Offerings or Services by anyone other than Consultant
or its subcontractors; (iii) compliance with Client's specifications; or (iv) use of
Consultant Offerings or Services after Esri either provides a modified version to
avoid infringement or terminates Client’s right to use the Consultant Offerings or
Services.

General Indemnity. Consultant will defend and hold all Indemnitees harmless from, and

indemnify any Loss arising out of, any Claim for bodily injury, death, or tangible or real
property damage brought against any of the indemnified parties to the extent arising

50f 12




Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. November 20, 2018
Professional Services Agreement
2018-PSA-003

16.

17.

18.

19.

from any negligent act or omission or willful misconduct by Consultant or its directors,
officers, employees, or agents performing Services while on County's site.

Conditions for Indemnification. As conditions for indemnification, Indemnitee will
(i) promptly notify Consultant in writing of the Claim, (i) provide all available documents
describing the Claim, (iii) give Consultant sole control of the defense of any action and
negotiation related to the defense or settlement of any Infringement Claim, and
(iv) reasonably cooperate in the defense of the Infringement Claim at Consultant's
request and expense.

Laws, Regulations and Permits: Consultant shall give all notices required by law and
exercise due professional care to comply with all laws, ordinances, rules and regulations
pertaining to the conduct of the Work. Consultant shall be liable for all violations of the law
in connection with Work furnished by Consultant caused by Consultant's legal fault. If
Consultant observes that any drawings or specifications prepared in connection with the
Work are at variance with any law or ordinance, rule or regulation, Consultant shall
promptly notify Client in writing prior to proceeding with any Work in accordance therewith.

Safety, lliness and Injury Prevention Plan (IIPP): Client is not responsible for
Consultant’s means, techniques, sequences, or procedures, or the safety precautions
and programs incident thereto. All work will be performed in compliance to the
CAL/OSHA requirements and regulations. Consultant is not responsible for site safety
at any site. Client or contractor will be responsible for site safety.

Termination: Either party may terminate this Agreement upon Thirty (30) days’ written
notice to the other party. Client shall pay Consultant for all services rendered to the date
of termination. If either party defaults in its obligations under this Agreement (including
Client’s obligation to make payments hereunder), the non-defaulting party may suspend
performance under this Agreement, after giving seven (7) days written notice of its
intention to suspend performance under this Agreement and if cure of the default is not
commenced and diligently continued. Upon termination of the Agreement or earlier as
requested by Client, Consultant shall return to Client any and all Client-provided or
Client-owned materials (e.g. drawings, notes, memoranda, specifications, devices,
formulas, and documents, together with all copies thereof, and any other material
containing or disclosing any Client Work Product or Proprietary Information of Client).

Reuse of Work Products: Consultant owns and retains all rights, title, and interest in
Services Output. Consultant grants to Client a nonexclusive, royalty-free, worldwide
license to use, modify, and/or reproduce Services Output in connection with Client’s
authorized use of Consultant's COTS Software. Client shall have the right to make and
retain copies and use all Work Products; provided, however, the use shall be limited to
the intended use for which the services and Work Products are provided under this
Agreement. Client will indemnify and hold Consultant harmless if work product is used
for other than for its original intended purpose.

The Work Products shall not be changed or used for purposes other than those set forth
in this Agreement without approval of Consultant. If Client releases the Work Products
to a third party without Consultant’s prior written consent, or changes or uses the Work
Products other than as intended hereunder, Client does so at its sole risk and discretion
and CONSULTANT shall not be liable for any claims or damages resulting from or
connected with the release or any third party’s use of the Work Products. [f software is

6 of 12




Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. November 20, 2018
Professional Services Agreement
2018-PSA-003

20.

intended or expected to be developed under this Agreement, Client shall execute a
software license Agreement acceptable to Consuiltant.

Proprietary or Confidential Information: Consultant agrees during the term of this
Agreement and thereafter that it will take all steps reasonably necessary to hold Client’s
Proprietary or Confidential Information in trust and confidence, will not use Proprietary or
Confidential Information in any manner or for any purpose not expressly set forth in this
Agreement, and will not disclose any such Proprietary or Confidential Information to any
third party without first obtaining Client's express written consent on a case-by-case
basis. By way of illustration but not limitation, “Proprietary or Confidential Information”
means confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information that is disclosed by
disclosing party to the receiving party in writing and conspicuously marked by the
disclosing party or disclosed orally and confirmed in writing within thirty (30) days of
disclosure as “Confidential”, “Proprietary”, “Trade Secret’ or similar term, provided
however security information supplied by disclosing party to a receiving party does not
require such marking to be deemed “Proprietary or Confidential Information”.
Proprietary or Confidential Information includes (a) trade secrets, inventions, ideas,
processes, formulas, data, programs, other works of authorship, know-how,
improvements, discoveries, developments, designs, and techniques, (b) information
regarding plans for research, development, new products, marketing and selling,
business plans, budgets and unpublished financial statements, licenses, prices and
costs, suppliers and customers, and (c) information regarding the skills and
compensation of other employees of Client. Notwithstanding the other provisions of this
Agreement, nothing received by Consultant will be considered to be Client’s Proprietary
or Confidential Information if (1) it has been published or is otherwise readily available to
the public other than by a breach of this Agreement, (2) it has been rightfully received by
Consultant from a third party without confidential limitations, (3) it has been
independently developed for Consultant by personnel or agents having no access to the
Client Proprietary or Confidential Information, or (4) it was known to Consultant prior to
its first receipt from Client. Consultant agrees not to disclose to Client, or bring into
Client's premises, or induce Client to use any confidential information that belongs to
anyone other than Client or Consuiltant.

The following will not be exchanged between the parties under this Agreement:

a. Information, data, or technology controlled for export under the International
Traffic in Arms Regulations (ITAR);
b. Unclassified controlled technical information (UCTIl) or Covered Defense

Information (CDI) under DFARS 204.7300 (252.204-7012 Safeguarding Covered
Defense Information and Cyber Incident Reporting); and

c. Protected health information (PHI) under the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (HIPAA).

Term of Exchange of Proprietary or Confidential Information. The term for the exchange
of Proprietary or Confidential Information shall expire when this Agreement expires.
Termination of the right to exchange Proprietary or Confidential Information under this
Agreement may be made at any time by written notice to the other party specifically
referencing this Agreement. Obligations of receiving party to maintain confidentiality of
Proprietary or Confidential Information continue for a period of three (3) years after

7 of 12




Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. November 20, 2018
Professional Services Agreement
2018-PSA-003

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

termination, provided, however, that such obligations continue indefinitely as to financial
information, security information, trade secrets, or anything marked as a "Trade Secret."

Non-Interference: During and for a period of two (2) years immediately following
termination of this Agreement by either party, Consultant agrees not to solicit or induce
any employee or independent contractor to terminate an employment, contractual, or
other relationship with Client.

Limitation of Liability: No employee of Consultant shall have individual liability to
Client. To the extent permitted by law, the total liability of Consultant to Client for any
and all claims arising out of this Agreement, whether caused by negligence, errors,
omissions, strict liability, breach of contract or contribution, or indemnity claims based
upon third party claims, shall not exceed fifty thousand dollars ($50,000)

Consequential Damages: In no event and under no circumstances shall Consultant be
liable to Client for any interest, loss of anticipated revenues, earnings, profits, increased
expense of operations, loss by reason of shutdown or non-operation due to late
completion, or for any consequential, indirect or special damages.

Information Provided by Others: Client shall provide to Consultant in a timely manner
any information Consultant indicate is needed to perform the services hereunder.
Consultant may rely on the accuracy of information provided by Client and its
representatives.

Opinions of Cost: Consultant does not control the cost of labor, materials, equipment
or services furnished by others, nor does it control pricing factors used by others, nor
does it control pricing factors used by others to accommodate inflation, competitive
bidding or market conditions. Consultant estimates of operations expenses or
construction costs represent its best judgment as an experienced and qualified
professional and are not a guarantee of cost.

Miscellaneous:

A. This Agreement is binding upon the Client and Consultant. Consultant may not
assign its rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of
Client, which may be granted or withheld in Client’s sole discretion.

B. The parties agree that this Agreement and any amendments or exhibits hereto
shall be construed without regard to any presumption or rule requiring
construction against the party causing such instrument or any portion thereof to
be drafted, or in favor of the party receiving a particular benefit under the
Agreement. No rule of strict construction shall be applied against any party.

C. This Agreement, together with the exhibits hereto, is the final, complete, and
exclusive agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and
supersedes and merges all prior discussions between the parties. No
modification of or amendment to this Agreement, nor any waiver of any rights
under this Agreement, will be effective unless in writing and signed by Client and
Consultant.

8 of 12




Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. November 20, 2018
Professional Services Agreement

2018-PSA-003

D.

In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall, for
any reason, be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such
invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect the other provisions of this
Agreement, and this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or
unenforceable provision had never been contained herein. Moreover, if any one
or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any reason be
held to be excessively broad as to duration, geographical scope, activity or
subject, it shall be construed by limiting and reducing it, so as to be enforceable
to the extent compatible with the applicable law as it shall then appear.

This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the
laws of the State of California.

The parties agree that a breach of any of the promises or agreements contained
in this Agreement will result in irreparable and continuing damage to Client for
which there might be no adequate remedy at law, and Client is therefore entitled
to seek injunctive relief as well as such other and further relief as may be
appropriate.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this Agreement as of the dates indicated
below; provided, however, that the Agreement shall be deemed to be effective as of the
Effective Date identified above.

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT ENVIRONMENTAL SYSTEMS RESEARCH

INSTITUTE, INC. (ESRI)

Name: Steve Knell, P.E. Name: William Fleming
Position: General Manager Position: Managing Attorney
Date Date

9 of 12




Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. November 20, 2018
Professional Services Agreement
2018-PSA-003

EXHIBIT “A”
DESCRIPTION OF WORK

For each Scope of Work, a Work Release will be issued containing the Scope of
Work, Schedule, Pricing with the Terms and Conditions. Each Work Release will
have a unique number for the Work Release for the specified contract.

See Esri Quote No. P18-23855 (Remote Option) attached as “Exhibit A”

10 of 12




Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. November 20, 2018
Professional Services Agreement
2018-PSA-003

Exhibit B

TIME AND MATERIALS RATE SCHEDULE

Effective January 1, 2018

Hourly time and materials labor rates have been provided for each labor category for calendar years 2018 and 2019.
The hourly labor rates for services that are performed after 2019 may be escalated in an amount not to exceed five
percent (5%) each year. Other direct costs, such as travel, reproduction, subcontractor, telecommunication/freight, or
materials, will be charged a material handling fee and invoiced.

Labor Category CY 2018 | CY 2019
GIS Technical Specialist/Engineer (S1) $227 $235
GIS System/Software Developer (S2) $294 $304
Sr. GIS System/Software Architect (S3) $360 $373
GIS Consultant/Project Manager (M1) $275 $285
Sr. GIS Consultant/Project Manager (M2) $347 $359
Principal/GIS Consultant/Program Manager (M3) $457 $473
GIS Database Specialist/Analyst (DB) $191 $198

Labor Category Descriptions:
GIS Technical SpecialistEngineer (S1)

Staff members in this labor category work collaboratively with software designers to perform software coding and the
writing of software documentation according to design specifications developed by senior technical staff described
below. As a group, these staff members are experienced in the coding of software and the creation of digital
databases, as well as in software development associated with Esri's commercial off-the-shelf (COTS) software
products; web, desktop, or server software development languages; geospatial data formats; and other technologies.
These individuals also develop effective database designs, implement data conversion processes and procedures,
and perform software and database quality control. This category also includes staff involved in the development and
delivery of training and those with expertise in creating, editing, and teaching training content.

GIS System/Software Developer (S2)

Staff members in this labor category support the design of technical project specifications for the implementation of
application software projects and database development projects. They support the day-to-day technical activities of
the project team and ensure that standard system methodologies are employed. They also perform detailed software
design and detailed database conversion design and are directly involved in the coding and implementation of
complex and strategic portions of application software and database conversion projects. As a group, these staff
members are proficient in Esri COTS software products; web, desktop, and server software development languages;
geospatial data formats; and other technologies. These staff members design and develop QA/QC programs and
support design and code reviews, database reviews, and other QA/QC activities throughout the project life cycle. This
category of staff includes senior staff who apply subject-matter expertise to design, develop, and deliver training
content and supporting technologies, leveraging adult learning methodologies.

Senior GIS System/Software Architect (S3)

Staff members in this labor category provide the overall technical vision and system architecture for large, complex
systems. They support the application of sound software engineering principles and life cycle methodologies to
programs/projects. These individuals are actively involved in systems architecture design, application software
design, database process design, and the directing of coding development including the supervision of design and
code reviews. These staff members may serve as principal investigators in focused studies or research and
development projects. Individuals in this labor category have broad technical knowledge of geographic information

11 of 12




Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. November 20, 2018
Professional Services Agreement
2018-PSA-003

system (GIS) applications and related information technologies and may also provide specific expertise in areas such
as web-based software applications, service-oriented architectures, data warehousing, spatial analysis, and
modeling. As a group, these staff members are proficient in Esri COTS software products; software and database
design methodologies; web, desktop, and server software development languages; geospatial data formats; and
other technologies.

GIS Consultant/Project Manager (M1)

Staff members in this labor category provide day-to-day consulting and management for contracted projects within
Esri. These individuals work under the guidance of senior Esri managers described herein and support the design
and implementation of project work plans. These staff members may provide consulting services to several aspects
of GIS implementation. They may also conduct detailed requirements interviews, document application requirements,
develop logical and physical database designs using standard engineering diagramming methodologies, design
software and database QA/QC programs, and provide management oversight of daily technical activities. These staff
members work with senior consulting and technical staff to design comprehensive work plans that employ standard
system methodologies that define project deliverables, milestones, and realistic schedules. These individuals work
with Esri administrative staff to ensure that progress and financial reporting is provided according to contract
requirements. This category of staff may also consult and manage training development and delivery projects.

Senior GIS Consultant/Project Manager (M2)

Staff members in this labor category work as project managers or project advisers, providing strategic consulting and
project management activities for GIS and information technology (IT) projects. These staff members have
market/application domain expertise using extensive experience in GIS and related geospatial technologies to
support the successful completion of a project. Consulting activities may include strategic planning, GIS workshops
and seminars development, requirements definition, application and database design, and system integration.
Management activities may include defining project requirements and objectives, establishing budgets and
schedules, allocating staff and other resources, and managing and overseeing subcontractor activities. These
individuals may also design comprehensive work plans that employ standard system methodologies that define
project deliverables and milestones and realistic schedules.

Principal GIS Consultant/Program Manager (M3}

Staff members in this labor category work as program directors or project advisers, providing project vision, strategic
consulting, and program management activites for GIS and IT projects. These staff members apply
market/application domain expertise using extensive experience in GIS and related geospatial technologies to
support the successful completion of the program. Consulting activities may include strategic planning, review and
oversight of requirements definitions, application and database design, and system integration. Management
activities may include defining program requirements and objectives, establishing budgets and schedules, allocating
staff and other resources, and managing and overseeing subcontractor activities. Staff members in this labor
category work with senior client staff in coordination with Esri senior management to resolve issues and support
successful project completion.

GIS Database Specialist/Analyst (DB)

Staff members in this labor category provide database development support in creating cartographic and digital data
products. These staff members have expertise that includes the performance of hard copy to digital data conversion
tasks, data migration, and translation activities utilizing advanced processing techniques in ArcGIS. These individuals
design, develop, and implement efficient production tools and workflows in accordance with approved project plans
and design parameters.

12 of 12




Exhibit “A”

AN ESRI
PROPOSAL

September 11, 2018

Data Migration and Data
Management Consulting
Services

Prepared for:

Mr. Michael Ballinger, IT Manager
Oakdale Irrigation District

1205 EF St

Oakdale, CA 953614198

Esrl Quote Number: P18-23855

380 New York Street

Redlands, Calfornia 92373-8100 usa
209 793 2853

info@esri.com

esr,.com

édesri

THE
SCIENCE

OF
WHERE



Introduction:

Oakdale Irrigation District, Oakdale, CA (OID) has requested Environmental Systems Research
Institute, Inc. (Esri) Professional Services to provide consulting services to assist in migrating its
irrigation GIS data from current structure to a standard irrigation data model and versioned data
management workflows. The quote below describes the scope of services, schedule, pricing,
terms and conditions, and purchasing instructions.

Scope of Services:

Activity 1 Data Migration and Data Management Consulting Services

Esri will provide up to 48 hours of consulting services including preparation and travel time to
assist OID with irrigation data migration, quality control and versioned data editing workflows.
It is anticipated that consulting services will include the following topics:

e Review OID’s irrigation data

o Update standard irrigation data model schema

¢ Understand the mapping (source to target) that OID is creating

e Perform data migration and quality control

e Setup SQL Server SDE geodatabase

¢ Copy migrated data to SDE geodatabase

e Versioned data editing workflows

e Data management best practices

e Quality Control (QA/QC) best practices

Esri anticipates that 1 consultant will support this activity for up to 4 consecutive business days
on-site at OID’s facilities in Oakdale, CA. The Esri consultant will work with direction from
OID’s technical staff and management. Following the on-site visit, remaining hours can be used
for remote, ad-hoc services via telephone, e-mail, and/or webcast.

Activity 2 Remote Follow-up Support

Esri will provide up to 16 hours of GIS ad-hoc consulting services on an as-needed basis related
to SDE geodatabase, versioned data editing workflows, data management and QA/QC GIS
related items.

P18-23855 Oakdale Irrigation District
Data Migration and Data Management Consulling Services 1 September 11, 2018



This activity will be supported remotely from Esri’s offices. The Esri consultant will work with
direction from OID’s technical staff and management.

Esri Responsibilities

e Provide up to 64 hours of consulting services as described above.

OID Responsibilities

e Provide access data source data.
e Discuss the source to target data migration mapping items for data migration.
e Provide access to a workstation where necessary ArcGIS software’s are installed.

e Install Microsoft SQL Server where SDE geodatabase will be created.

Assumptions

e Days at client site are not to exceed 8 hours of work per day.

¢ Unless otherwise specified in this proposal, Esri will not be responsible for cleansing
data.

¢ Existing errors in the source data will not be corrected by Esri as part of any data upload.

¢ Instailing and configuring ArcGIS Enterprise is not included in this scope of work.

Schedule:

The schedule will be mutually agreed upon between OID and Esri within 10 days after contract
award. Esri understands the importance and timeliness of this effort, and will endeavor to meet
OID’s schedule goals.

Pricing:

The pricing provided below has been estimated based upon an anticipated award of a Time-and-
Materials (T&M) contract. The required labor hours, including preparation and travel time, and
other burdened direct cost items (ODCs) have been estimated based upon prior experience with
work of a similar nature. The total not-to-exceed (NTE) price for the quoted Scope of Services is
$20,393.

This quote is valid for a period of 90 days from the submittal date above. This price is exclusive
of any applicable federal, state and/or local taxes including any foreign taxes, value-added tax,
customs, or duties for which OID will remain responsible.

P18-23855 Oakdale Itrigation District
Data Migration and Data Management Consulting Services 2 September 11, 2018



Esri anticipates using staff from the GIS System/Software Developer (82) labor category.
Depending on the level of expertise required to perform certain activities during this
engagement, Esri may be required to utilize other Esri staff members with a different skill-set

and labor category.

The following table shows the proposed NTE pricing for this work by Activity.

Price by Activity
- . Estimated Estimated .
ATvigIDESTEplion Labor (§) | Travel Expenses (%) fifice
| — Data Migration and Data Management Consulting Services 14,112 $1.577 $15.689
2 —Remote Follow-up Support $4,704 - $4,704
Total Not-to-Exceed (NTE) Price: $20,393

T&M consulting services will be conducted under the following conditions:

e Inthe event Esri completes the Scope of Services for less than the NTE budget, OID will

only be invoiced for the actual hours expended plus ODCs.

o In the event Esri reaches the NTE budget limit before the Scope of Services is completed,
OID will have the option to either (a) increase the contract funding in order to allow the
work to continue; or (b) instruct Esri to stop work. If OID chooses to stop work, Esri will

do so without liability.

o Esri reserves the right to reallocate the project funding between Scope of Services
activities and/or ODCs, as necessary to facilitate the work effort, provided the overall

contract price is not exceeded.

All work will be accomplished in accordance with the Scope of Services with the deliverable
being consulting time. If additional work is requested by OID in writing beyond the scope of this
quote, Esri will provide an updated quote. Esri will perform and invoice Services on a time and
materials basis using the labor categories and rates specified for the performance period. Labor,
including travel time, will be invoiced on a monthly basis for actual hours expended during the
previous month. Meals will be invoiced on a “per diem” basis in accordance with the full daily
limits stated in the most current Federal Travel Regulations. Other direct costs (ODCs),
including travel-related expenses and meal per diem, will include a fifteen percent (15%) burden.
Invoices are to be paid within 30 days of receipt.

P18-23855 Oakdale Irrigation District
Data Migration and Data Management Consulting Services

3

September 11, 2018



Terms and Conditions:

By purchasing these services, the customer agrees to the Implementation Services Time and
Materials Addendum G-363-C, which will take precedence over any other terms and/or
customer ordering documents. If not attached, the terms and conditions can be found at:

http://www.esri.com/legal/service-agreements

Purchasing:

To order these services as quoted, please email the following items to Guru Ganesarethinam at
guru@esri.com or fax to (909) 798-2003.

1. Purchase Order:

o In the amount of the Total NTE Price above
o Referencing this Quote No. P18-23855, dated September 11, 2018

2. A copy of this quote.

When we receive these completed documents, Esri will contact you to discuss staff assignment
and schedule. We look forward to supporting you.

Contact:

Guru Ganesarethinam
Project Manager / Consultant
Esri Professional Services
380 New York Street
Redlands, CA 92373

(909) 793-2853 ext:1866
guru@esri.com

WWW.esti.com

P18-23856 Oakdale Irrigation District
Data Migration and Data Management Consulting Services 4 September 11, 2018



TIME AND MATERIALS RATE SCHEDULE
Effective January 1, 2018

Hourly time and materials labor rates have been provided for cach labor category for calendar ycar 2018. The hourly
labor rates for services that are performed after 2018 may be escalated in an amount not to exceed five percent (5%)
each year. Other direct costs, such as travel, reproduction, subcontractor, telecommunication/freight, or materials,
will be charged a material handling fee and invoiced.

GIS Technical Specialist/Engineer (S1) Hourly Rate: $227

Staff members in this labor category work collaboratively with software designers to perform software coding and
the writing of software documentation according to design specifications developed by senior technical staff
described below. As a group, these staff members are experienced in the coding of software and the creation of
digital databases, as well as in software development associated with Esri's commercial off-the-shelf (COTS)
software products; web, desktop, or server software development languages; geospatial data formats; and other
technologies. These individuals also develop effective database designs, implement data conversion processes and
procedures, and perform software and database quality control. This category also includes staff involved in the
development and delivery of training and those with expertise in creating, editing, and teaching training content.

GIS System/Software Developer (S2) Hourly Rate: $294

Staff members in this labor category support the design of technical project specifications for the implementation of
application software projects and database development projects. They support the day-to-day technical activities of
the project team and ensure that standard system methodologies are employed. They also perform detailed software
design and detailed database conversion design and are directly involved in the coding and implementation of
complex and strategic portions of application software and database conversion projects. As a group, these staff
members are proficient in Esri COTS software products; web, desktop, and server software development languages;
geospatial data formats; and other technologies. These staff members design and develop QA/QC programs and
support design and code reviews, database reviews, and other QA/QC activities throughout the project life cycle.
This category of staff includes senior staff who apply subject-matter expertise to design, develop, and deliver
training content and supporting technologies, leveraging adult learning methodologies.

Senior GIS System/Software Architect (S3) Hourly Rate: $360

Staff members in this labor category provide the overall technical vision and system architecture for large, complex
systems. They support the application of sound software engineering principles and life cycle methodologies to
programs/projects. These individuals are actively involved in systems architecture design, application software
design, database process design, and the directing of coding development including the supervision of design and
code reviews. These staff members may serve as principal investigators in focused studies or research and
development projects. Individuals in this labor category have broad technical knowledge of geographic information
system (GIS) applications and related information technologies and may also provide specific expertise in areas such
as web-based software applications, service-oriented architectures, data warehousing, spatial analysis, and modeling.
As a group, these staff members are proficient in Esri COTS software products; software and database design
methodologies; web, desktop, and server software development languages; geospatial data formats; and other
technologies.



GIS Consultant/Project Manager (M1) Hourly Rate: $275

Staff members in this labor category provide day-to-day consulting and management for contracted projects within
Esri. These individuals work under the guidance of senior Esri managers described herein and support the design
and implementation of project work plans. These staff members may provide consulting services to several aspects
of GIS implementation. They may also conduct detailed requirements interviews, document application
requirements, develop logical and physical database designs using standard engineering diagramming
methodologies, design software and database QA/QC programs, and provide management oversight of daily
technical activities. These staff members work with senior consulting and technical staff'to design comprehensive
work plans that employ standard system methodologies that define project deliverables, milestones, and realistic
schedules. These individuals work with Esri administrative staff to ensure that progress and financial reporting is
provided according to contract requirements. This category of staff may also consult and manage training
development and delivery projects.

Senior GIS Consultant/Project Manager (M2) Hourly Rate: $347

Staff members in this labor category work as project managers or project advisers, providing strategic consulting
and project management activities for GIS and information technology (IT) projects. These staff members have
market/application domain expertise using extensive experience in GIS and related geospatial technologies to
support the successful completion of a project. Consulting activities may include strategic planning, GIS workshops
and seminars development, requirements definition, application and database design, and system integration.
Management activities may include defining project requirements and objectives, establishing budgets and
schedules, allocating staff and other resources, and managing and overseein g subcontractor activities. These
individuals may also design comprehensive work plans that employ standard system methodologies that define
project deliverables and milestones and realistic schedules.

Principal GIS Consultant/Program Manager (M3) Hourly Rate: $457

Staff members in this labor category work as program directors or project advisers, providing project vision,
strategic consulting, and program management activities for GIS and IT projects. These staff members apply
market/application domain expertise using extensive experience in GIS and related geospatial technologies to
support the successful completion of the program. Consulting activities may include strategic planning, review and
oversight of requirements definitions, application and database design, and system integration. Management
activities may include defining program requirements and objectives, establishing budgets and schedules, allocating
staff and other resources, and managing and overseeing subcontractor activities. Staff members in this labor
category work with senior client staff in coordination with Esri senior management to resolve issues and support
successful project completion.

GIS Database Specialist/Analyst (DB) Hourly Rate: $191

Staff members in this labor category provide database development support in creating cartographic and digital data
products. These staff members have expertise that includes the performance of hard copy to digital data conversion
tasks, data migration, and translation activities utilizing advanced processing techniques in ArcGIS. These
individuals design, develop, and implement efficient production tools and workflows in accordance with approved
project plans and design parameters.



Copyright © 2017 Esri
All rights reserved.
Printed in the United States of America.

Notice of Proprietary Information:

The information in the attached document is proprietary to Esri and contains commercial or financia! information or trade secrets
that are confidential and exempt from disclosure to the public under the Freedom of Information Act. This information shall not be
disclosed outside of Customer’s organization (except for consultants under a confidentiality obligation who are involved in the
proposal evaluation process) without Esri’s prior permission. and shall not be duplicated, used, or disclosed in whole ot in part tor
any purpose other than to evaluate this proposal. If, however, a contract is awarded to Esri as a result of this information. the
Customer shall have the right to duplicate, use, or disclose the data to the extent provided in the contract. This restriction does not
limit the Customer's right to use information contained in this data if it is obtained from another source without restriction,

Esri, the Esri globe logo, ArcGIS, esri.com, and other Esri marks used in this document are trademarks, service marks, or registered
marks of Esri in the United States, the European Community, or certain other jurisdictions. Other companies and products or
services mentioned herein may be trademarks, service marks, or registered marks of their respective mark owners.



Implementation Services
Time and Materials Addendum

THE
SCIENCE
OF

WHERE™

& esri

Addendum No. 336431

This Implementation Services Time and Materials
Addendum (“Addendum”) is appended to and made a part
of the Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”)
between Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc.
(“Esri”), a California corporation with offices at 380 New York
Street, Redlands, California 92373-8100, and Oakdale
Irrigation District (“Client"), an irrigation district organized
pursuant to Division 11 of the California Water Code, with
offices at 1205 East F Street, Oakdale, California 95361.

1. DEFINITIONS

"Commercial Off-the-Shelf Software" or "COTS Software"
means all or any portion of Esri's proprietary software
technology accessed or downloaded from an authorized Esri
website or delivered on any media, in any format, including
backups, updates, service packs, patches, hot fixes, or
permitted merged copies, available under license to the
general public.

"Map Data" means any digital dataset(s) including
geographic, vector data, coordinates, raster, or associated
tabular attributes supplied by either party for use in the
performance of this Addendum.

"Services” means consulting support being performed by
Esri on a time and materials basis in exchange for
compensation from Client.

"Services Output” means any work product produced by
Esri as a result of Services provided under this Addendum.
Services Output can include, but is not limited to, reports,
training materials, and custom software code.

2. OWNERSHIP AND GRANT OF LICENSE

Except as specifically granted in this Addendum, Esri owns
and retains all rights, title, and interest in Services Output.
Subject to the terms and conditions in this Addendum, Esri
grants to Client a nonexclusive, royalty-free, worldwide
license to use, modify, and/or reproduce Services Output in
connection with Client's authorized use of Esri's COTS
Software.

3. PATENTS AND INVENTIONS

Esri and Client will retain title to any inventions, innovations,
and improvements ("Inventions") made or conceived solely by
its principals, employees, consultants, or independent
contractors ("Inventors") during the term of this Addendum.
Esri and Client will jointly own any inventions made or
conceived jointly by Inventors from both parties. Where
Inventions are jointly owned, each joint owner will share
equally the costs of acquiring protection for the Inventions and
furnish the other joint owner with assistance reasonably
required for acquiring protection. Neither Esri nor Client may
license, transfer, or sell its interest in jointly owned Inventions
without the written consent of the other party, which will not be
unreasonably withheld.

4. COMPENSATION

Esri will perform and invoice Services on a time and materials
basis using the labor categories and rates specified for the
performance period. Labor, including travel time, will be
invoiced on a monthly basis for actual hours expended during
the previous month. Meals will be invoiced on a "per diem”
basis in accordance with the full daily limits stated in the most
current Federal Travel Regulations. Other direct costs
(ODCs), including travel-related expenses and meal per diem,
will include a fifteen percent (15%) burden. Esri's payment
terms are net thirty (30) days. If Client's credit history has not
been established, Esri reserves the right to require full or
partial prepayment.

Esri may reallocate authorized funding between contracted
activities, labor categories, and ODCs as necessary to
facilitate the work requirements, provided the overall
authorized funding is not exceeded. In the event that Esri
reaches the not-to-exceed funding limit, Client may increase
the order funding to allow additional work to be performed, or
direct Esri to stop work without further obligation or liability. If
Services are required beyond the period of performance
stated in the original proposal or resultant order, Esri reserves
the right to escalate labor rates up to five percent (5%) per
calendar year.

5. LIMITED WARRANTY AND DISCLAIMER OF
WARRANTIES

Esri warrants for a period of ninety (90) days from the date of
performance that Services will substantially conform to the
professional and technical standards of the software industry.
If Services do not substantially conform to these standards,
Client may require Esri to reperform Services at no additional
cost to Client. Services Output is provided as is without
warranty of any kind.

Disclaimer of Warranties. With the exception of the
limited warranty set forth in this Article, Esri disclaims
and this Addendum expressly excludes all other
warranties, express or implied, oral or written, including,
without limitation, any and all warranties of
merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose.

In addition to and without limiting the preceding
paragraph, Esri does not warrant in any way Map Data.
Map Data may not be free of nonconformities, defects,
errors, or omissions; be available without interruption; be
corrected if errors are discovered; or meet Client's needs
or expectations. Client should not rely on any Map Data
unless Client has verified Map Data against actual data
from documents of record, field measurement, or
observation.

6. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY

In no event will Esri be liable to Client for procurement of
substitute goods or services; lost profits; lost sales;
business expenditures; investments; business
commitments; loss of goodwill; or any indirect, special,
exemplary, consequential, or incidental damages arising
out of or related to this Addendum, however caused or

G363C

Page 1 of 2

May 15, 2018



under any theory of liability, even if Esri has been
advised of the possibility of such damages.

Esri's total cumulative liability under this Addendum,
from all causes of action of any kind, will in no event
exceed the amount actually paid by Client for Services
under this Addendum from which the liability directly
arose.

7. CONFIDENTIALITY

Services Output is Esri confidential information, and Client
must preserve and protect the confidentiality of Services
Output. Client agrees not to reverse engineer or decompile
custom software delivered in object code, executable code, or
similar formats (collectively, "Secure Formats"). For custom
software delivered in source code or other human-readable
formats, Client will have met its obligations under this
provision if its disclosure of custom software is limited to
custom software in Secure Formats, provided that the means
for reverse engineering, decompiling, or disassembling the
custom software is withheld from such disclosure, and the
person or entity in receipt of the custom software similarly
agrees not to perform the prohibited acts described above or
allow others to do so.

Except as provided in the preceding paragraph, Client will not
disclose Services Output to third parties without the advance
written consent of Esri. Client may make disclosures to
Client's employees to the extent reasonably required to allow
Client to use Services Output in a manner authorized under
the applicable software licenses. Client must comply with
Article 8 in making any permitted disclosures. Before
disclosing all or any portion of Services Output to employees
or third parties as permitted in the preceding sentence, Client
will inform its employees or third parties of the obligations in
this Addendum and obtain their agreement to be bound by
them.

8. EXPORT CONTROLS

Client must comply with all applicable laws and regulations of
the United States including, without limitation, its export
control laws. Client expressly acknowledges and agrees not
to export, reexport, transfer, or release Services Output, in
whole or in part, to (i) any US embargoed country (including to
a resident of any US embargoed country); (ii) any person or
entity on the US Treasury Department's List of Specially
Designated Nationals; (iii) any person or entity on the US
Commerce Department's Lists of Parties of Concern; or

(iv) any person or entity where such export, reexport, or
provision violates any US export control laws or regulations
including, but not limited to, the terms of any export license or
licensing provision and any amendments and supplemental
additions to US export laws.

9. GENERAL PROVISIONS

9.1 Nonsolicitation. Neither party will directly solicit for hire
any employee of the other party who is associated with
Services called for under this Addendum during, and for a
period of one (1) year after, project completion. In the event
this provision is breached, liquidated damages equal to
twelve (12) months of the employee's compensation, plus any
legal expenses associated with the enforcement of this
provision, will be paid by the breaching party to the aggrieved

party. The foregoing will in no way restrict the parties from
publicly advertising positions for hire in newspapers,
professional magazines, or Internet postings.

9.2 Use of Subcontractors. Esri reserves the right to utilize

technically qualified subcontractor resources to support work
contracted under this agreement. Esri will remain responsible
for the quality of all work performed by an Esri subcontractor

resource.

9.3 Taxes. Services are quoted exclusive of all state, local,
value-added, or other taxes; customs; duties; or other charges
(other than income taxes payable by Esri). In the event such
taxes and/or charges become applicable to Esri's Services or
Services Output, Client will pay the applicable tax upon
receipt of written notice that it is due.

9.4 UCC Inapplicability. Services provided under this
Addendum will not be governed by the Uniform Commercial
Code (UCC) and will not be deemed "goods" within the
definition of UCC.

9.5 Order of Precedence. [Clause Deleted]

9.6 Equitable Relief. Client agrees that any breach of this
Addendum by Client may cause Esri irreparable damage. In
the event of a breach, in addition to any and all remedies at
law, Esri will have the right to seek an injunction, specific
performance, or other equitable relief in any court of
competent jurisdiction to prevent violation of these terms
without the requirement of posting a bond or undertaking or
proving injury as a condition of relief.

9.7 Governing Law. This Addendum will be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California
without reference to its conflict of laws principles.

9.8 Entire Agreement. [Clause Deleted]

G363C Page 2 of 2

May 15, 2018



BOARD AGENDA REPORT

Date: November 20, 2018
Item Number: 8
APN: 010-011-072/073/074/

077/078/080/081/082/083/
084/085/086/089/090/091

SUBJECT: APPROVE DEFERRED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL AGREEMENT
(APNS: 010-011-072/073/074/077/078/080/081/082/083/084/085/086/089/090/091-
MONTPELIER FARMING CORPORATION)

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Deferred Conditions of Approval Agreement for Montpelier
Farming Corporation

BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY:

The parcels noted above were created as a result of a parcel split and are required to have independent
irrigation and drainage per OID’s Parcel Map Policy. Montpelier Farming Corporation has requested
that OID allow the parcels to continue irrigating as they historically have, which is without independent
irrigation and drainage, until such a time as any of the parcels noted above are sold or a change in land
use occurs. OID staff has developed and recommends approval of the attached Deferred Conditions
of Approval Agreement.

FISCAL IMPACT: Staff time for document preparation.

ATTACHMENTS:
» Deferred Conditions of Approval Agreement

Board Motion:

Motion by: Second by:

VOTE
Orvis (Yes/No) Altieri (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) DeBoer (Yes/No)

Action(s) to be taken:




RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:

oIlD
-
NS

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
1205 East F Street
Oakdale, CA 95361

APNs: 010-011-072/073/074/077/078/080/081/082/083/084/085/086/089/090/091

DEFERRED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL AGREEMENT
BETWEEN MONTPELIER FARMING CORPORATION

AND OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

The parcels noted above were created as the result of a parcel split. The landowner of the
parcels noted above will continue to farm the parcels as one property and have no intention of
selling the parcels or changing the current land use. The landowner has requested that they be
permitted to continue irrigating the parcels noted above as they historically have, which is
without an independent irrigation system, until any of the parcels noted above change
ownership or land use. On November 20, 2018, the Oakdale Irrigation District (DISTRICT)
Board of Directors approved this Deferred Conditions of Approval Agreement with
MONTPELIER FARMING CORPORATION (OWNER) regarding continued irrigation.

NOW THEREFORE IT IS AGREED by and between DISTRICT and OWNER as follows:

The following project condition shall apply to the parcels noted above, as described in the
attached Exhibit “A” Legal Description of the Subject Properties and shown on the attached
Exhibit “B” Project Site Map.

1. Prior to such time as any of the parcels are sold, or there is a change in ownership, or
there is a change in the current agricultural land use of said parcels, the parcels shall be
prepared to irrigate and drain independently. Private irrigation pipelines shall be installed
from the historic point(s) of delivery, in a manner that will provide independent and
measureable irrigation to the parcels. OWNER shall be responsible for all costs incurred.

By signing below, Montpelier Farming Corporation, the legally titted OWNER of the subject
parcels, hereby agrees to comply with the above-described condition of approval. Failure to
comply with this Agreement shall result in DISTRICT withholding irrigation water until such time
as the listed condition is met.



THIS AGREEMENT shall be a covenant binding upon both DISTRICT and OWNER.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, DISTRICT and OWNER have caused their names to be affixed.

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
"DISTRICT"

Date:
Thomas D. Orvis, President
Board of Directors
Date:
Steve Knell, P. E
General Manager/ Secretary
"OWNER"
Date: 3,"6-/ 6

Jameg G. Crecelius, President
Montpelier Farming Corporation

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 619
Denair, CA, 95316

SIGNATURES MUST BE NOTARIZED AND BE PER RECORDED DEED



NOTARY

CERTIFICATE OF ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A notary pubiic or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

Stateof _ArDe N4

County of " rilo)a

on p#tn (P4, (€ before me Se1én P\\ M\N\ . Notary Public,
personally appeared James (1 feee |S4S

who proved to me on the basis of satlsfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to
the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized
capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of
which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

| certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the St ornia that the foregoing paragraph is
true and correct. Sezan Almalin

Notary Public
na
aricopa County, Arizo
Commission Expires
n7-10-2020

WITNESS my hand and official seal

=

Signature s (Seal)

CERTIFICATE OF ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of
County of
On before me . Notary Public,

personally appeared
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to
the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized
capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of
which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

| certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is
true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal

Signature (Seal)



EXHIBIT "A"
Legal Description of Subject Property

The land referred to herein below is situated in an unincorporated area, County of Stanislaus, State of
California and is described as follows:

Parcel 4 as shown on Parcel Map filed for record May 30, 2014 in Book 56 of Parcel Maps at Page 97,
Stanislaus County Records.

APN: 010-011-072

Parcel 5 as shown on Parcel Map filed for record May 30, 2014 in Book 56 of Parcel Maps at Page 97,
Stanislaus County Records.

APN: 010-011-073

Parcel 6 as shown on Parcel Map filed for record May 30, 2014 in Book 56 of Parcel Maps at Page 97,
Stanislaus County Records.

APN: 010-011-074

Parcel 9 as shown on Parcel Map filed for record May 30, 2014 in Book 56 of Parcel Maps at Page 97,
Stanislaus County Records.

APN: 010-011-077

Parcel 10 as shown on Parcel Map filed for record May 30, 2014 in Book 56 of Parcel Maps at Page 97,
Stanislaus County Records.

APN: 010-011-078

Parcel 12 as shown on Parcel Map filed for record May 30, 2014 in Book 56 of Parcel Maps at Page 97,
Stanislaus County Records.

APN: 010-011-080

Parcel 13 as shown on Parcel Map filed for record May 30, 2014 in Book 56 of Parcel Maps at Page 97,
Stanislaus County Records.

APN: 010-011-081

Parcel 14 as shown on Parcel Map filed for record May 30, 2014 in Book 56 of Parcel Maps at Page 97,
Stanislaus County Records.

APN: 010-011-082

Parcel 15 as shown on Parcel Map filed for record May 30, 2014 in Book 56 of Parcel Maps at Page 97,
Stanislaus County Records.

APN: 010-011-083



Parcel 7 as shown on Parcel Map filed for record May 30, 2014 in Book 56 of Parcel Maps at Page 97,
Stanislaus County Records.

APN: 010-011-084

Parcel 8 as shown on Parcel Map filed for record May 30, 2014 in Book 56 of Parcel Maps at Page 97,
Stanislaus County Records.

APN: 010-011-085

Parcel 1 as shown on Parcel Map filed for record May 30, 2014 in Book 56 of Parcel Maps at Page 97,
Stanislaus County Records.

APN: 010-011-086

Parcel 11 as shown on Parcel Map filed for record May 30, 2014 in Book 56 of Parcel Maps at Page 97,
Stanislaus County Records.

APN: 010-011-089

Parcel 2 as shown on Parcel Map filed for record May 30, 2014 in Book 56 of Parcel Maps at Page 97,
Stanislaus County Records.

APN: 010-011-090

Parcel 3 as shown on Parcel Map filed for record May 30, 2014 in Book 56 of Parcel Maps at Page 97,
Stanislaus County Records.

APN: 010-011-091

End of Description



o10-011-060
010-011-059

010-011-061

010-011-034
yo-011-038

wRSIA o IO

District Boundagy
Out of District

010-01-089 010-01-080 010-011-074

- _South Maln Canal

f Jj%,”;:,;:\\ x. ;‘//&&\’\‘} wl,/:)
District P

Out of

District Bounciary,

010-011-077 DIO01-078

010-0O1-073 010-011-072

010-011-068

0O10-011-086
010-011-090

4 /‘
et e y/ _” 010-015-075 ‘3\' \
N o o B ;/ d‘ &

OAKDALE_IRRIGATION DISTRICT
o l D 1205 EAST F STREET

OAKDALE CALIFORNIA 95361

PROJECT SITE MAP

DEFERRED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL AGREEMENT
APNS:010-011-072/073/074/077/078/
080,/081,/082/083,/084,/084,/086,/089,/090,/091

DATE: FEB. 14, 2018

' NOT TO SCALE
iR CMK EXHIBIT ”B”
CHECKED BY: ECT SHEET 1 of 1




AGENDA ITEMS
ACTION CALENDAR

BOARD MEETING OF
NOVEMBER 20, 2018




BOARD AGENDA REPORT

Date: November 20, 2018
Item Number: 9
APN: N/A

SUBJECT: REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT THE 2019 BUDGET

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the 2019 Budget

BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY:

Planning, forecasting and budgeting are all part of a three-step process for determining and detailing
an organization’s long-term and short-term financial goals. A budget is an estimate of revenues and
expenditures for a set period of time which forecasts future financial conditions and goals for an
organization. The budget serves as a plan of action for achieving quantified objectives and a standard
of measuring performance. Budget development is a year-long process. Once adopted, we begin to
track expenses on a real-time basis and compare those actual expenses to the budget over the course
of the year.

This budget projection for 2019 was based on the implementation of the Water Resource Plan that was
developed to meet the District's Mission Statement goals:
e Long-term protection of Water Rights
o 1926 Adjudication, BOR-1988 Agreement, D-1641
e Address Federal, State, Local Water Challenges
o WQCP (40% unimpaired flows), WaterFix, SGMA, TMDLs, Public Trust, Public Right to
Water, drought resiliency
e Rebuild/modernization of an aged and out-of-date water delivery system
o $3.6 million in life cycle replacements
o $3.0 million in modernization
o $1.8 million in COP payments
e Develop affordable ways to finance improvements
o Find way to generate $8.8 million annually using surplus water and NOT water rate
increases.

OID’s short term goals are to:
e Finish the new 5,984 foot tunnel on the South Main Canal and Segment 4 repairs.
e Continue automation and modernization of OID’s canal system (WC §10608.48).
e Renew OID’s focus for the future by developing a Basin Plan with those objectives.
e Build-up funds to pay-off all OID debt in 2023.

The focus of the proposed 2019 budget is:
1. Protection of the District's Water Rights
2. Meet Capital Improvement Project needs:
a. Life-cycle replacement — Two-Mile Bar completion included
b. Modernization — Continuation of TCC grant project
c. Mission critical water resource plan projects
3. Maintain and retain a high quality workforce




4. Manage finances to protect reserves and assets
a. All budget expenditures are “value added”
5. Accomplish our daily work by focusing on Safety, Quality and Quantity of work, in that order

This budget projection is based on the implementation of the Water Resource Plan which was
developed with public input over a 2-year period to meet the long-term goals of OID. The prudent fiscal
management and investments, as outlined in the Water Resources Plan, have resulted in OID having
a strong financial position today.

It is these accomplishments and the anticipation of doing more for OID water users that staff presents
the 2019 budget for the Board’s approval. The attached proposed budget for 2019 was reviewed by
the Finance Committee on November 6, 2018.

ATTACHMENTS:
» 2019 Proposed Budget
> 2019 Proposed Detail Operating Expenses Budget

Board Motion:

Motion by: Second by:

VOTE:
Orvis (Yes/No) Altieri (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) DeBoer (Yes/No)

Action(s) to be taken:




W02 uoieSI3eP RO MMM  THE0-LP8 (607) TIES6 2luUlOyI|e) ‘BjepyeQ ‘19341S 4 1se3 G071

N

t'\

1JHLSIO NOILYORHI 3 1VAAVO

\ k

1495dN4d L4ViId d4SOdOdd 6107




Jaaui8u3 pue Ja3euep suonesadQ J91epn ‘uIngaoy] o3
198euey sad1AIas Loddng ‘sauor uosef
12210 |e1dURUL JBIYD ‘SOI3USID) uoIRYyS
J98eue|\ |BIBUID ‘|]DU) Y UDADILS

Aq paiedaid 198png 610¢

Jainseal] ‘soJaust) uoteys
AJe1a10ag pue Ja8euey [BISUID ‘||BUY Y UDARIS

FEETIT]

G UOIsIAIg 490ga(Q pead
 UOISIAI(] ‘sojues epul
Z UOISIAIQ ‘|lequaulioo ueway
T uoIsiAI] QuapiIsald AIA ‘UBIYY |1eD
€ UOISIAIQ “JUapISald ‘ SINIQ wo]

siopaaq



1 28ed

‘Ayajes aakojdwo Sunowoid Ag e

pue {a21nosal 1sa1eald s,10U1sIq 2y a4e ,a)doad,, 1eyl Suiziugoodal ‘1sa||n4 118y} 01 seakojdwa 3uidojansp Ag e
‘sallljioe) pue syIom Jou3sIq droadw pue ‘aalasald uiejuiew ‘alesado Ajusiod 0} A3010uyda) 1sale| ay) Suisn Ag e
‘seonoe.d |eloueul) punos Suimo|(0) pue SulnUlIsul Ag e

{SWa)sAs Jamod pue 191em S Jo Alugaul
2y Sulalasald ajiym JUSWUOIIAUD BY) YUM SIUSNHISUOD S)I JO SPaauU ay) aduk|eq 0] SuolIn|os Suiyaas Ajaaitoeold Ag e

‘spuswialinbal A101e|ngal Sunsixe Yyum asueldwod ul ale suolelado 1013sIq |ie 1.yl suunsua Ag e
..s90110R1d JUBWaBeUB| 158G, JO UonEIUaWS|dw] pue UoIeAIaSuU0d SUISeINOJUD Ag e

{590JN0S3J |eINRU JBY10 aZI|13n 0} AYjIqe 3yl pue s1ysu 1alem Sunoalold Ag e

“quawsgeuew 221n0Sal U101 104 sued o1gajen)s [eIdlyauaq WId)-guo} suituaws|dwi pue guidojaAap Ag e
‘weidoid uonewloul ojgnd e Suidojanap Ag e

{510103.1Q 4O p1eog ayy jo sgunsaw 1e uonedionsed oljgnd Suideinoous Ag e

1921A18S SN0aJN02 Ydwoid Suipinoid Ag e

:SMOJ|O} SB UOISSIW S}l 9A3IYDE [|IM 1011SIq uonesiul| ajepyeo ayl
NOISSIN S.10141S1d JHL HSITdWOOJV O1 SAOHLIN

. "92INIBS 18]1EM D11SaLIOP pue UoNESLLI 1Ua|[99xa SuIpiroid AQ AUNWILWOD 10111SIg UoReSLL|
ajepyeQ ay} Jo Njauaq TWWNTIIXBW 3Y) 10 S32IN0SS. Ja1em 1011sIg uonesiu| ajepyeQ TojoAsp pue 193304d 0,
ANJWIIVLS NOISSIA 10141S1d NOLIVYDIYHI ITVANVO




¢ 98ed

'SpUOg aNUAAdY 011109|3 0IPAH 109l0id Jeg pues ul uol|jiw
Z9$ panssi Auoyiny au3 ‘y8ET Ul Jamod 0L1Id9Ie JO uonesausd sy Jo) saniioe) Sululejulew pue ‘Sunelado ‘Sujumo
‘8U1NONISU0D Ul siemod UoWWIoD BuIsioIdxd Jo sasodind ay) Joj (Auoyiny) Auoyiny Jamod weq-lil syl wJio) 0} Japio
ul Juswaa.ge siamod 40 9S1049Xa UIof B OJUI PAJSIUL JoUISIg uonesdiul| uinbeor ues Yyinos ayl pue 101sig ayl ‘286T Ul

"‘pajuasaidal suleq
JOLISIP Yoea WoJy SI0103JIp |8 10 pasudwod s1010alip JO pieoq ulof e ysnoiyy (,S101asIq aui,,) 1011sIq uonesii uinbeor
ues Yinos pue 1011siq a8yl Aq pageuew si 109[0id weq-14] 8y 'syue|d 011109]9-0JpAY pPaleIdoSSe YUIM JaY1a80] ‘SIIONISSaY
pue sweq Yyoo||nL pue ‘“Asjspieag ‘sjlauuoq ayl uip|ing Jo palsisuod 103foid ay] “I9AlY Sne|siuels ayl uo 10afoid weq-1L
ay1 SunonJIsSuod Jo S1S00 8} JO 8JeyS j|ey-auo S| 9dUeUl) O} SPUOg dnuaAal weq-lUl panss! GGET Ul 101asIg Syl

*1eak Yoea JI0AI9S9Y SSUOIO M\ 01 MOJJUI JO 199} 8108 000009 1SA1} 9Y1 S1I0LISIQ Y3 0} S|ge|ieAR dyew 0}
HESN sa4inbas pue s1ys1 Ja1eM JOoIUSS S,10111SI Y3 SWIIJUOD pue sazjugodal eyl (HGSN) uonewe|oay Jo neaing soleis
palun 3yl yum juswsaide suonesado ue aAey (,S10M3SIQ 9Y3,) ‘UoneBi| uiInbeor ues UINOS Yyum Suoje ‘1o1sIq UL

"19)JewW 9|es3|oym 3]
uo JomodoapAy pue Jayem s||as 1011SIg Y1 ‘UolIppe U] *(SJ8WO0ISNd ,S1ouIsig Juswanoidwy] JO SAISN|OUL) SISWOISND 99/
0} J91EM D[}SOWOP pue SIBWOISNd 0OO‘E Aldrewixoidde 0} Jajem uonegLul sapiaoid 10141SIg S "9dIAISS Ja)eM D1)Sawop
sopinoud pue sdwnd uoneweoal Ja)em pue |[am dasp ‘sjeued ‘sjessie| sajelsado pue SUMO JoLISIJ Y} ‘saii|ioel
191EM 90BLINS YONS 0] UONIPPE U] "S|eued ulew S,10LisIg 8y} 01Ul PSLISAIP S| JoleM UdIym 1e ‘weq SJUOIS|N MaN syl
MO[Oq JOAIY SNne(SIUeIS 3yl Uo (WeQg UIMpPoon) weq UOISISAIQ UIMPOOL) ay] SapNjoul WaisAs uoinguisip S,10M1sIqg aulL

Hun
Juauodwos s} pue 19ISIg 9Y] U9SaIda) SJUSWSLE]S [BIOURULL 9SaY] ‘eolIaWly JO S81B1S pallun ay) ul paydaooe Ajelouad
sajdiounid Bununoooe Aq palinbal sy "S1010311Q 10 pieog Jaquiaw-aAl) pPaload ue Ag paulanog 1o1ISIp jeioads e si 10u1sIg
uonesi] ajepyeQ 8yl "Sanuno) snejsiuels pue uinbeor ues Jo slied sassedwoous 10uU3SIg 2y} ‘Ajjediydelgoan -apo)
121BM BILIOYI|ED Byl JO suoisincid 0) uensind ‘GO6T ‘T JoqWaAoN pawliol sem (10L3sIg 8Y)) 10L1siq uonesil) ajepyeo

NOILVIWHOINI TVH3IN3O



[eDuBUL] jerTy

UBLRIAIBS 9}
sojesady —
e dmnbg
(€2} somesedn |
uRIsAS LOSNGLREIQ) [OE
o UBRLSMIDG JoEupIo0l) ||
T Fhe. 71 Vavos [
: _ ﬁ!-_aﬁa (01) o0 WED
(€) ueiwpea] l |
Wgopoieedo (BE] fosied
A uonnassq weoiLYy0 — o
= ﬂaueu:&ahmaﬁ vavos (5) vewpes 1420
psiwadng _ [ ] I
suogesd( Jaien b
‘ (Fa] |
osnadng piet
3 e} w=0
&smaﬁa& _ mnoaay edouy
.
gesnd B SRS G
. E X
) Be: sfeuy
Wor) epdpmd) | ueEssy uaupy _Em,.-wo ”_h%..,ﬁ | Sounosay Lewny
[
Amjonag
meitnes | frmomenn]

siapaq Jopseog
, {esUncy Jaie _

AUWOLITE

uey) jeuonjeziuesio




1 98ed

1038[01d IN04 JUBWBas - UlRA YInoS

uona|dwod 108loid |suunj Jeg 9|IN-OM]

spuny 8ujyodlew a1e1s yum uonejuswa|dwi D1 9nupuo) e

ue|d S82IN0Say Ja1eM dY1 JO uoleluswaldwi panupuo) o

SOAIBSO. [elOURUIL SUOIIS PUB MOJ) YSEO BAINSOd *©

(X'T'T -uawasinbal) XQ°/ JO o1kl 83eI8A00 32IAISS 108p S1oa8lold
wswAed |94 puog sapnjouj e

(weig0id UOIBAISSUOD Wied-UQ) SJUSWSNNSS |elual0d Suluieway e
SOSEaJOUl JJBUa( % 98EM S1RISPOIN *©

(2) @seasoul Jamoduey -

S9|es J91eM BalY-JO-IN0 pue J0UISId-Jo-InQ |B00T ¢

(Juawaa.3dy 1edA QT 10 G JBAA) SONUBAS. 211109|904pAY JeaA [BWLION *©
9SBaloU| 9181 J91eM OLIIBWNIOA %G T puk 91kl 8seq %& *

MAIAYFAO 199dNd ddSOdOdd 6107




G 98ed

| 0T 008 ONI44VLS TV10L
00 0'8¢ suoljesadQ J21em [B10L
00 0T UBIDIUYII] SN JOIEM
00 0T UBWIIIAIDG $33|11N 1918
00 0T Josinuadng yayds / S9n1|1N 1918M
00 0c 1318 ‘Y - s10s1uadng suoljesadQ Jo1em
0T~ 0¢ URWIIDIAIRS YAVIS
0T 00 UBDIUYIDL YAVDIS
00 0c uewpes - JUIBA )y UoIPNIISUOD / 0SA
00 (0274 JUIBIA 13 UOIIDNAISUOD) / OSG
00 0¢C Jaau(8uz 2epossy
00 0T Jadeuey suonesadQ Ja1ep JUBISISSY
00 0T J33u18u3g JUeIsISSY
00 0T 193ui8u3 PUISI] / J98eue suoleiadQ Jarem
suonesadQ J91epm
0T 0'TE sa01AIRS poddng |elo)
01- 0T 13p[am/uewn1/9S/ *b3 19914
0T 0t Jtueyda uawdinbl /199(4
00 0T J31YD dUBUBIUIRA OINY
071 Uewasnoyalem
0 1XJOM suoie1dQ 3 UBUIIUIB
00 UBWPET suoesadQ 1§ SduUrUUIBKN
00 09 Jojesadp uawdinbg
00 oS UBWPETT - 3JUBUSIUIBA /UOIIINIISUOD
00 001 S2UBUIIUIRAI/UOIIINIISUOD
00 0¢ J0s1/19dns pIald - $8013S Woddng
00 01T Jadeue seo1nas poddng
$201A9S Joddnsg
00 0L 0k, JVueUld [BI0]
00 01 A Joleuipioo) 1|
00 0T 01 3D JUNODY
00 0T 33D ||0iAed
00 033 0't SB[ 3UNoXY |edpulld
00 0T 0'1 1210 |eRUBUL JBIYD
adueuly
0T ov [ORS UOIIRJISIUIWPY [B10L
00 0T 01 381D 914 / 351dAL 3D /1s1uondaoay
0T- 01 00 JURISISSY SUOIIR|DY 1|qnd
01 00 07 15Ajeuy 201n0SaY UBWNYH mmr// A—ZE
00 0T 071 JURISISSY SAIIBIISIUIWPY
H 00 0T J13geUBA [BJDUSD JURISISSY
00 0T 0'T J98eueA| (RJOUDD
uonesiuwpy
ey veyd wey) "di0
*810 pasodoid 6102 210 pasodouy

*sa uey) 810 8102 8102 6102




9 a8ed

%re-  (052'9/5°6) S %S¢ 00S‘1EV'C $ 00268121 S 056°S9L°LTS 00T7'8SL'6 S suonesijqo1gap pue sainjipuadxs |eyide) :a10N
%Ty-  (L20'T09°L) S %L TEL'6T6 S 008'€92°0T $ LI8'VIE'8TS 6LETIB'ETS uonisod 1sN ul sfuey)
%00T  008°C¢LY'T %00T  000'00S‘T 008°2Lb T - 000°00S'T suonnquiuo) erde)

%6y~ (LT8'€L0'6) %S- (692°085) 000'162°6 LT8'VIE'8T  BLETIVTT suonnqUIuo) |eyide) 21043q (SSO[) SWodU|

%/T- (00V'6SY'E) %- {rzz'sz9) 00S'7€S'9T 006°€66°6T  ¥CL'BST LT (sasuadx3) senuanay Suneiadouoy |eio}f

%£9-  (000'00t°€) %9y~  (00S'T69'T) 000°000°C 000°00t'S 00S°169°€ suonnquisiq AluoyIny Jamod weg-ul

%9- (0o00‘007) %6 005‘0v6 000°00S'TT 000°002°¢T  00S'655°0T suonnqulsig1afoid weg-ul

%¢e- 009°TE %ET-  9L6'T9T {005'SS0°T) (00T'£80'T)  (94¥'LTT'T) asuadx3 1sa131u|

%SL 000'659 %E- (0o0z'vv) 000°0%S°T 000°188 00C‘v8S‘T sdujuieg Juswisanul

%C- (000°0S) %0 0008 000°08S'¢C 000°009°C 000°2¥5°C suopjeudoiddy xe} Auadoid Atunod
(ISNIdX3) SINNIATY ONILYHIdONON

%Sve  (LTv'¥T19'S) %I0T  SS6vY {00S'evT'L) (€£0'629'T)  (SvE'SVLY) suonesadQ wodd (ssof) awodu| 13N
%Z €11°S¥E %8 SS0°0LT'T 00£'62€ 9T €/0'G/9°9T  S¥T'650°GT sasuadx3 Sunesadp |ejoy

%9- (005°€ST) %9 00T'sST 0000097 00S°9%¥'C 008‘PP'e uoneziuowy pue uonempaldag

%91 007’268 %L SS0°C0€ 00£'S€8'Y 00S°ZEL'S SYT'EES'y AN BNSIUIWPY pue |RIBUIDH

%6- (62¥'L2T) %b- (ot8‘qeT) 009'€98'C TLT'9€9°C 0T¥'686°C suonesadQ arem

%E- (86%°0LT) %8T 019'8¢6 00%'0£0°9 206°658'S 06L160°S aueudlule pue suonesado
SISNIdX3 ONILYHIMO

%0r-  (00C°096°S) %ZI- (00T'See'T) 008'680°6 000'9%0'ST  006°0TE'0T anuaAay Junesadp 101

%T 008 %8t-  (000°SS) 006'8S 001°8S 006°€TT SSNUINIY SNOJUE||VSIA
%0 . %T 00S 005°09 00509 000°09 s394 P IS IuawWaAoidw|
%I 000°€V %0T 000 000'8%C 00050C 000'6Z¢ J31em ansawog
%00T- (000°002'S) %0 = 000°002°S - $934 uonexauuy
%IT-  (00T€18) %91-  (00€'evT'T) 00v'92Lg 009°6€5'L 00£'696'L s9|eSJSIeM
%0 00Z'6 S %E 00L'6Y S 0007661 008°C86'T S 00€CY6'T S (1e4 3seq) s93iey) MaAIISQ J192BM |RINI N UBY

SINN3IAIY ONILVY3IAO

135dnd SIVNIOV A310310Ydd
8T0Z WOYH4d IONVHD 8T0¢ INOYH IDONVHD

135ang
Q3S0d0yd
610¢

135an4d 8102 SIVNLVY
a3d3Irodd

8T0¢

NOILISOd JAN NI 99NVHO ANV ‘SASNAd XA ‘SHNANAATY AILVIVANOD




[ 98ed

%9z- (00Z‘TSV'6) S %/-  {(00€710C) $
%/T- (000'T6¥'E) %b-  (00718L)
%€£9-  (000°00%€) %9r-  (00S'T69'T)
%9-  {000'00£) %6 005°0v6
%/-  (000°9€) %9-  (007'67)
%v/T  000'S69 %I-  (000ST)
%z-  (000°0S) %0 0008
%0r-  (002°096°S) %ZI- (001°SCC'T)
%0 - %08-  (009°09)
%0 - %09T 0096
%0 - %L9 00v'z
%v 008 %zz-  (0ov‘9)
%0 = %T 00S

%Iz  000'cy %0T 000°€T
%00T- (000°002'S) %0 =

%0 = %00T  (009'T8T'T)
%0z-  (000°00T) %L 000°0S
%00T- (000'5/8) %0 -

%91 000901 %Zz-  (00v'ST)
%IT 008'SS %T 002°€
%00T- (009'SS) %0 =

%E 00£'9 %t 0006
%P’ 0018 S %Z ooL'or S

135ang
8102 INOYd IDNVHD

SIVNLOV A311310¥d
8T0Z WOY4 IONVHD

008'649°9C $

000065 LT
000°000°C
000°'00S'TT
000'svy
000'560'T

000°0SS'C

008'S80°'6
000'sT
009'ST
0009
00€7¢

00509
000'8¥C
0000
00000t
009652
008995

000'¢g?
000°094°T S

135ang
a3S0d0dd
6T0¢

000°£TT'9e$ 00T'889°8C S SINN3IAIY 1VIOL

000T80'TZ 00T LLEST sonuanay Sujiesadouon |e101

00000v'S  00ST69°€ suonngu1sip Asuoyiny 1amod wed-uL

00000T°2T  0056SS°0T suongquUIsIp afold weq-uL
000°18% 00T'vLY (ss10u) 1sa431Ul |RIBURD
000°00¥% 000°0TT'T SSUIUIE3 1USWSIAU]

sSujuIed JUBWISAAU|

000°009°C 000°2¥5°C suoneudosdde xer Apadoid Ayuno)

SANNIAIY ONILVHIJONON

0009¥0'ST  006°0TE'0T anuanay Suneradp k101
000°ST 009°GL 3nUaAaYy snoaue||{dSIA
009'st 0009 saiuadold [eauay Puisia
0009 009°€ $994 Jajsuel)
00STC 00£'8¢ safneuad

SaNuUaAal SNOBUR||AISIN

00509 00009 $9941011sIg JudWanocidw |

000502 000522 131em o1sawoq

000'00Z's = (swi-auo) saa4 uonexauuy
000°000°S 0091829 ea1e-}0-1n0
000°00S 0000S€ 1OLISIP-40-1N0 |€D0
000°5/8 - ISEIN
009°€S9 000'S/L zi191)
000'TTS 001‘€99 1911

sajes Ja1em
009'sS - SEIN
00€‘S2¢ 000°€TT zi91L
006‘T0LT § O0O0E6TLT S T 1911

139an9 8102

(9184 35€EQ) S81eYyd ABAl|ap J31eM |RAM NI USBY
SINNIATY ONILVYHIdO
SIvNIVY
a313310yd
810¢

SHNANAATY ONILVIddONON ANV ONILVHAJO ddTIV.LId d;



g 98ed

%C €LT'VIE S %6 TEOCEV'T S
%e-  (009°1€) %ET  9L6T9T
%E- (009°1€) %ET  9/6'T9T
%z €11°SYE %8 9S0°0L2°T
%6 00L"EVL %L QSTLSY
%9- (005'€ST) %9 00Z'SST
%97 00Z'£68 %/ S50°20€
%6-  (6¢v'LTT) %v-  (018'SCT)
%0 . %z 00T'LT
%0 - %6T  066C
%01-  (00Z'STT) %S- (009°29)
%01-  (008CTT) %I7-  (000'6YT)
%0 148 %ze ~ 00L'0L
%¢- (86%'0LT) %87 0T9'8€6
%L~ (cs6'Lg) %Z- {oss'ot)
%9- (000'sT) %pe-  (006'TVE)
%~ (0o08cT) %8T 00L°LY
%07  ¥SL'90T %0T  LST'6E
%S- (oot'eL) %ST 005°21€
%~ (00z'18) %62 £58°01Y
%r1-  (000°8€) %TL 009°T9T
%~ (00z'LT) %0z  0S9'C8
%s-  (0007) S %S 008'T S

1395adng
8T0C NOYd IDNVHD

SIVNIDV d3103r0dd
8T0C INOY4 IONVHD

008'V8ELT S

005'S50'T
00S'550°T

00£'62€°9T

00g'Set'L
000°009°C
00€°SER VS

009°€98°C
008'LS
009'8T
00T'8%T'T
0028’1
006'06¢

00%'0£0'9
00€ €99
00S'0LZ
006'4T¢
006'9¢Y
008°08S'T
006'156'T
00%7'68¢
00L'68%
000°0F

13oangd
a350d404d
610¢

€LTTIL LTS TTL'ILTITS
00T'/80°T UV LT
00T'£80°T 9 ITTT
€40'G/9°9TS  SPC'6S0°STS
000°6/T'8 S¥08/6'9
005972 008'7irtr'C
00STEL’S SYT'eesy
TLT'9E9°C 0T¥'686°C
008°LS 00£°0Y
00981 019'sT
006°TETT 00£'STE'T
007'SET’T 00T°L6E'T
TLY'T6T 00z‘0ze
206°658°S 06L160°S
8YE'SCS 0STvLS
005'55¢ 00v'ZTY
00T's0€ 00z‘0Le
¥S9°€€S €¥9°/8€
00£°20S°T 00€°€92'T
00£'0/8°T LVO'TTS'T
00v'1S€ 008°LTT
00SeLY 0S0°L0v
ooo'se ¢ 00C'8E S

1354N4 8T0¢

SNV
g3.3ro0ud
810¢

SISNIdX3 ONILVHIdONON ANV DNILVHIdO 1V1OL

SISNIAXT ONILYHIdONON TV10L
EEL N ERETE T

SISN3IdX3 ONILVYIdONON
S3ISN3IdX3 ONILVHIdO TVIOL

"Hd3IA ANV ‘NOILVHISININGY “TVYHINID TV.10L
uoneziuowy pue uonepaidag
uone)NSIUIWPY pue [eISUdY

NOILVID3Y¥dIA ANV ‘NOILVYISININGY “TVHINID

SNOILYH3dO HILVM TViOL
1uswWadeue JUBWINSEIN J31eM

suonesadp Jarep adeuiesq

uoisiAlg Yinos - suoliesadQ Jarepm uonesuu|

UOISIAIQ YHON - suonesadQ 191 uonegug

dueUIUIR WDLSAS JD1BA 21S2WOQ
SNOILVYYIdO H31vM

FONVYNILNIVIN TVLOL
soueualulep Juawdinb3l pue apPIYysA
3jueuslu|ey spunosn pue Suip|ing
aoueUIU IR WILSAS feulelq
oueudjulepy pue suonesadgiue|d Suidwng
3PIS YINOS - 92U BUDUIEIA |BAS1ET JS1BAN UO RS
9pIS YHON - SdUBUBlULIBA |BJ3)E] I3l uolledul
SJUeBUDUIB |RUED UIBRN YINOS
JdUBUANUIB |RUBD UIRA YUON
SO uoisianig Ajddns uteiy irss
FDNVYNILNIVIA
S3SN3dX3 ONILVYIHO

SASNAd XA ONILVIAdO-NON ANV ONILVYAJO FALLVYVdINOO



6 98ed

maN 008'TC
wowsoedaymeN  000°6
wawasedeymaN 00T‘8
moN  000°8
meN 006°L
wowaoeidey Q0S‘9
meN 005’9
wswoaoeday 00V‘9
wawoasedaimoN 00C°C
wawaoeday 000°C
wawooeidey 00L°T
meN  000°0SC
MoN  000°90C
wowsdeidey 000°GLT
Juswooeidey 00518
moN 00S§°tS
moN  00S‘S
Juswaoeidey  000°89T
Jswaoeidey 00005
wowooeidey  000°000°€
JuswooeidasmaN 000°00S‘T
uoneziwspo iy 000°000°€
Jewsoeidey  000°00T°C $

3S0ddNd g EDLIepk:!

6T0C

J9|teasr/madydouail Aynp Areay puiyag-jem
(€) M e1s21P3|9 Y1IM |Sd G/ T 10ssaldwod Jty
(€) we1souP3I3 YIIM MY 9°G 103IBIBUBD
JaAUp 1sod 1991sp S
(£) s12uiqed adeJo1s a|qewwield
JU1D9(d ‘4aysem ainssald
11Un 9AUp J38ne Ja3spys
sed ‘Jojesauad/isp|am
(2) mes Jjo-1n)
L€ ‘dwnd ysea) juawdinbg uondNIISUO)
.¢ ‘dwnd ysesg snoaue||ISIN
3ani] woog 3ppnuy
sjusawyoee/m J01eAedxy OrTNS 02|2qo)
13zoq
Joleaedx3y pedwo)
1udWydeIIE JO1RARIXD JoWWeY uoniijowaq
19ong 8utueap S 0TS 021290y wuawdinb3z Aveay / ssoyoeg
(%8t a10) Paloid uonezijiqels [eue) uleny qulof
siiedas solep sjue|d Suidwnd 8y
Jno4 juawsdag - [eue) Ule Yyinos
[suunj Jeg 3|IN-OM]
(uonezjuwapow) dym 4ad se spafoid uondnisuod jeyide)
(d1D 2ul|9seq) d4m 4ad se spaloid uondnisuod [eyide) SMOM |eride)

00-€81ST-000-00

00-T8TST-000-00
00-¥/159T-000-00
00-0STST-000-00

00-00¢ST-000-00

NOILdIYDS3A LO310Ud NOILdIYIS3A 19

‘'ON LNNOJJV 19

1944da »

TVLIdVO
ddSO0dO0dd




0T 28ed

00£°68T°CTS SIYNLIANIdXT 1930 ANV TVLIdVD TV1OL
wswhed wawieisy  000'G6/L d0) 9T0Z S913S jo 1uswAed jedidulg 192a d0) - uouod Juaund  00-0ZECZ-000-00
00LV6ETT SIYNLIANIAXI SISVHOUNC ANV S1O3(0Ud TVLIdVI TVLOL
maN  000°00C udisap 13foid usapenbpeay Auadoid piep pue 32140 00-68TST-000-00
wowaoeidey 000°SS walsAs |ensia/oipne woolpieoq
moN 000'SE SI9AID S HIOMIDU 104 JojReIaUdF Jamod dnyoeg piep/Suip|ing 14O  00-88TST-000-00
wowsoedey 000°0E apesddn asemijos sueuld
Jswsoeiday 000VT suoilelsyIom 1andwo)
wowsaoeidey 000'S D INBP A1UN23S JIoM1au |jemally 1uawdinby
waweoedey 0059 04D 84n1iuing UO1BISHIOM 3lWwouosi3 8uueaulBul pue PO  00-L8TST-000-00
wowoaoeidey 00EV S9|21Yyan g-9 sseaojiauuedsaisoudelq 1usawdinb3
weweoedey 008°C S9[21Ydn G-T SseJojiauuedrsonsousdelq piep /asnoyasepy/doys  00-98TST-000-00
uawaoeidey 000°0ET (19so1p) doys Buip|am/oine 104 3oNnJ3 IS UOY-C
wewsoeidey 000°T8 (z) dnx21d aAlIp |99ym  UOY-p/€
wowosedey 00S'SYH }onu1 321as Allin uol-t
wowsoedoy 000°CE sQSa 404 dnypid saup [99ym ¢ UOL-Z/T
wowooeiday 00S'ST sO0sq 404 dnydid uol-g/1
wowsoeidey 00SZT (9z# yona) Ajquiasse aui3us pasamod [asalp Aeljixny
meN 000°LT Ja|len pag-1jiL si9|lel]
moN 000°9T UEBID pajunow YanJyd1neipAy/oua|g /$yonup/sdnyoid/soiny  00-#8T1ST-000-00
350d4Nd g EIedpk:] NOILdI¥DS3A 1LO3f0¥d NOILdI¥ISIA 1D "ON LNNOJJV 19

610¢

TVLIdVO
dd4s0d0dd




1T 28ed

0S6°0T6°0T
0SS'SE0C

%00L

0050S8°T S
000°S6L
005'SS0°T

00S'9P6'CT S

00€'6ZLET
00£'SE8'Y
009°€98'C
001‘0€09

0085997
000°000°C
000°00S‘TT
000°0¥S‘T
000'055°C
006°8S
00509
000°8%C
000'000°s
00v‘8TLE $

135an4d 14vya

a3S0d0¥d 610¢

SINUIABI 13U SS3IXT
{28e19n00 %0TT apinoid 01) dnUIASI 13U patinbas wnwuy

oney a8esano0) IS 192

Jedpund 6107
159191U] 6TOT
spuog 910z 221A3S 192Q

SaNUAAdY J9N

sosuadx3 Sunesadg |eloL
SA[1EBIISIUJWPY PUB [BIBUID
suonesadp  arem
ddueUUIBN pue suonelado
SISNIdX3 ONILVY3IdO

anuaAay |eloL
suoiingus|g Aluoyiny 1smod weg-uj
suonnguisiqgslold weq-uL
sSujuie3z JuswisaAu|
suoneudoiddy xej Auadosd Ayuno)
S9NUINIY SNOJUB||ISIN
$99410131S1Q Juawaanoidw |
J91eAA 213S”WO(Q
s9|esJalem
(164 aseq) sadiey) AuoAl|DQ J91EM |BINNDLIBY
SINNIATY

O dOIAMAS 1.93d







lle1aq sasuadx3 sunesadQ

1938png pasodoud 6T0C

)

tL

1081913 NOILVOIHHI ITVAXVO




viioL

00£'9 (ooz) 00L'2Y 0079 0062t [e10L
0 00z 000°¢ 000°S 008'Z uoneyodsuel]  ObZS  OF - 00¥2S - SET
0 (ooozt) 000'€Z 000'€2 000'SE sleuolBN  0EbZS  OE - 00V2S - GEZ
0¥z oo0r' 00v'9 000'y 0002 pesy@ArQ  Ogves  0Z - 00¥2S - SeT
006 00z% 00€'0L 00t'9 00L'€ Joge1 OLyeS 01 - 00v¥eS - S€C [01U0D 1584
0047 0002, 001°6¥2 00%'9%C 00L'2LL |e1oL
0 0090% 000'tZ1 000'v2k 00t'€8 o  09kzS 09 - 00¥eS - S91
0 (oot 01) 000'0¢ 00002 001'0 uonewodsuel)  Ovkes Oy - 00¥2S - S9I
0 (ooo'ot) 002'8 002'8 00Z'81 sleusiey  0g¥2S  OF - 00veS - SOt
000°t 0091z 0oL'LE 00L'9e 008'S) pesysarQ  Ogpes 0Z - 00bZS - SO
00t 006 't€ 008'65 00185 006'v2 Joge1 OMyZS Ol - 00¥ZS - S9L SoURUBIUIRK [BUED YLEeT
0 (oor) 009°L 009'L 0008 |e1oL
0 (vos't) 00L'9 001'9 009°'L Yo 09¥Zs 09 - 00¥2S - 0SL
0 (vor) 00€ 00€ 0ov sleusiely  ogkes  O€ - 00¥2S - 061
0 005 00S 005 0 pesuyAQ  0ZFZS 0C - 00VZS - OSh
0 0oL 00 00L 0 Joge1 Olvgzs OL - 00bZS - OSk 3oUeUSUlel JIOABS3Y pue sweq
005 (oo6) 00€'0C 00861 00Z'LZ leloL
0 (voz) 000'L 000't 002t JBYI0  09¥Zs 09 - 00¥ZS - oYL
0 (ooe2) 00€'2 00£'Z 009't uopeyodsuell  OF¥ZS  OF - 00VZS - Obk
0 (oo0'c) 0002 000'2 000's sleuaiB  0cyzS 0 - 00bZS - Ol
ooz 008t 008'S 009's 0007 pesuylAQ  Ozk2S 0C - 00vZS - Ovk
00€ 0087 00Z'6 006'8 00t'9 Joge]  Olves 0L - 00¥ZS - Obl aoueUBIUIRY [BUBD B)3I0U0D
0 00L 008'S 008'€ 00L'E je1oL
0 00z 00z 002 0 Y0  09vZS 09 - 00bZS - SZb
0 005 00S 00S 0 uonewodsuel}  O¥bZS Ov - 00veS - SZ)
0 (ooz') 00€ 00¢ 008'2 sleudley  Ogves  0F - 00bZS - St
0 006 00L'L 00L'L 00z peayerQ  0ZkeS  0C - 00¥eS - G2t
0 00¢t 00L't 00L'L 0oV logel  OLyZS 0L - 00¥eS - <21 soueuauiely Buissoiebpug
008t 0019 005'9Z 002's2 00v'02 |20
005 00tZ 002’0k 00L'6 008'L pesyeAQ  0Z¥2S  0Z - 00ZS - OO
008 0oL 00€'gL 008'S1 0092t loge1 olLves 0L - 00vb2S - 001 uoiensiuIWpY
IONVNILNIVIN TYNYO NIV HLHON
0007 $ 008't $  oo00'OF 0008 00Z'8 $ Byl0 09026 09 - 0002S - S6¢
SHHOM NOISHIAIA ATddNS NIYIN AIFSS
139an4d 8102 STWLOY 139ang 1390ana 8102 SIVNLOV NOILONNS 'ON LNNO2OY NOILLIHOS3A LNNOJDY
WOYH FONVHO a3LI3roMd 8102 J3S0dOYHd 6102 d3Lo3royd 810z
WOY FONVHI

O

139dan4d 14vdd d3sOd0ud 6102
1IvL13d - SISN3AdX3 ONILLVH3IdO

10141S1d NOILVYDIHHI ITVAAVO



vijozc

00€ 008 006'v1 009'vL 000'%L |20
0 (0052) 005’1 00S°L 000"t BO 09928 09 - 0092 - OFl
0 (voz't) 009'c 009'C 008't uoneyodsuel|  0v92S Oy - 00925 - O
0 0 00v 00t 00¥ seusely  0£92S 0 - 0092S - Ol
001 008t 000'y 006'€ 002z pesulsAQ 02928 0Z - 00925 - Ol
(114 008C 00v'9 002'9 009't joqe]  0l9ZS Ol - 0092 - OFL 9dUBUBIUIR| [EUBD 3)aI0LU0D
001 0006 001'S 000's 00t {e10L
0 005 00S 005 0 YO 09928 09 - 00928 - 2k
0 00z 002 002 0 uoneuodsuel)  Ov92s  OF - 0092S - S¢b
0 (/74 008 008 00l slepslely  0g9zs  0€ - 0092S - Sk
0 00%'t 00v'L 00v'L 0 pesyoAQ  0292§ 0 - 00928 - G2t
00! 002 002 0oLz 0 Joge7 0lgeS OF - 0092§ - Sck adueuautely BuissoD/ebpug
7% 000°L 0oLzt 00021 00L'LL [e0L
00E o0¥ 006't 009't 005y peayleAQ 07928 02 - 00925 - 00
0o0r 009 008'L 00F'L 00Z'L Joge] Ql9ZS Ol - 00925 - 004 uonenswpy
FONVNILNIVIN VNV NIVW HLNOS
00z 21 05978 00L'68Y 00S'ZLY 0G0'L0Y JONVNILNIVIA TYNYO NIVIN HLHON Tv10L
008 059 €€ 009°8¢ 008'L€ 056'% |eoL
0 0567 000°€ 000'€ 0% ByO  09¥ZS 09 - 00vZS - SOE
0 001t 002'L 002't 001 uoneyodsuel]  O¥b2S  OF - 00¥ZS - SOE
0 000 008'9 008'9 008'€ sfeuslely  0gkes  0€ - 00¥eS - SOE
00¢ 00Z 04 009'0L 00€°0L 00t peawleA0  QZveS 02 - 00veS - SO€
00§ 00894 000'LL 005'91 009 loge7  QOLbgs 0L - 00bZS - SOE 9OUBUBIUIRI JNOUIN | PUE SDIMDNIG
008 0062 00S°€E 00L'82 009's2 |20
00§ (009°t) 009°'L 001'L 002'e YO 09¥ZS 09 - 00¥eS - 0LC
0 (0or) 000'tL 000't 00v'L nn 0skeS 05 - 00¥eS - 02
g 00§ 006'L 006°1 00v'L uonepodsuel]  Ov¥gS OF - 00veS - 042
00t 002z 00L'€ 0092 00S't sleuslely 0e¥2s O0€ - 00¥eS - 0LC
00zt 008 00L'6 005'8 006'9 peaylsAQ  0ZbZS 02 - 00¥2S - 0i¢
0007 oov'y 009'S} 009'tt 002't1 Joge7 QivgS OF - 00¥2S - 0LC soueuauiey YAYOS
008 (voz'it) 009°L9 008'99 008°801 |e10)
0 00828/ 000'8¢ 000'82 008's8 B0 09¥ZS 09 - 00¥eS - 09¢
0 00€t 00€'S 00€'s 000'v uonepodsuell  O¥2S  OF - 00veS - 09¢
1/ (oor's) 009'c 009'c 00021 sieusley  0e¥2S  0€ - 00WZS - 092
00¢ 0016 008'LL 00S°LL 00L' peswisAQ  0zZbeS 02 - 0028 - 092
005 009'¢1L 006'8) 00%7'81 00€'t loqeq  0l¥eS 0l - 00FeS - 09¢ aoueus)ule peoy
1394dng 810z STVNLOV 13nana 139and 8102 STVNLIY NOILONNS “ON 1INNOJJV NOILdIZOS3A LNNOJIY
WOHS FONVHI a71Lo3royd 8102 a3S0d0y4d 6102 a3Lo3arodd 810z
WO FONVHO

139an4g 14vdd a3s0d0dd 610¢
1Iv13a - SASNIdX3 ONILVHIdO

10141S1d NOILVYOIHHI FTVAMVO




vLio¢g

0008 009194 007¥'68¢ 00%'16€ 008'.ez FONVNILNIVIN TYNYD NIVIN HLNOS 1vV.10L
05 00041 009°L 0oL'Le 009'v g0l
0 oov’t 00S’1 00S'L oot Byl 09928 09 - 00925 - SOE
0 14 000'L 000} 00 uoneyodsuell  0¥925  OF - 00925 - SOE
0 oor 00s'e 00S'€ ool'e sleusley  0€92S OE - 009¢S - SO€
ooz 009’6 000'9 008'S oov peaylsAQ  0¢9eS 0Z - 0092S - S0€
00€ 0068 009'6 00€'6 00L Jodgeq 019¢S OF - 00925 - SOE 9OUBUSIUIBIA JNOLIN| pue sainponig
00Z'6 009°cy 008'¥9 009'SS 00e'1e 210l
o0L't (0oe) 002’ 00Le 00S'E BUyl0  099¢s 09 - 00925 - 0L¢
0 008C 008'e 008'€ 000} uonepodsuel]  0v92S  OF - 00928 - 0LZ
/1] %4 oor'’9 oov'L 00E'S 000'L sleusle  0£9¢s 0c - 00928 - 0i2
006 00E€L 00€'61 000'LL 000'9 pesysisAQ  0Z29¢S 0¢ - 00928 - 0L¢
00L'e 171 474 001'1E oov'Le 00L'6 loge  Qlges 0L - 00925 - 0L¢ SdueUBUIBIY YAVYOS
000t 00, '9¢ 0oty oov'ey 00L'9 2101
0 00£G 005°'s 00S'S 002 BYRO  099¢S 09 - 0092S - 092
4 00€€ 000'S 000'S 00L't uopepodsuell  0¥9ZS  OF - 00928 - 092
0 008¢C 00S'€ 00S'e 0oL sleuslely  0€92S  O€ - 009¢S - 09¢
aor 0L'6 00€'LL 006'0L 009'L pesym@AQ 02928 0C - 0092S - 098¢
009 00961 001'81 00S'LL 00s'z Joge§ Q0legs  OF - 009¢S - 09¢ SoUBUSIIEl peoy
0096z [12/1¥4 4 009'vLL 000'671 009°LZ) 1e10L
4 [21/4 005’9 005’9 008'G uonepodsuel]  0¥9ZS 0y - 009¢s - SeC
4 ooz zt) 000'00} 000'00% 00C'ZLL sleuslely  0£9ZS 0€ - 009¢S - SEC
0086 ooree 00l'9z 00€'91 00L'€ PESYIBAQ  029¢S 0¢ - 00928 - GEC
00861 001 °9¢ 000'ch 002'92 006'S Joqe]  0)92s oL - 009¢s - G€¢ 02U 189d
(13 000Z 006'8¢ 009'8¢ 006'9€ [e10L
[/ 00£€) oot'te 00L°LZ 008'vC BYo 09928 09 - 0092s - S9I
0 (009) 00S't 005'L 0012 uonepodsuel]  0y9ZS  OF - 00928 - S9I
[/ (001 ) 00S'2 005'2 009'S sleusiely  0€9¢s 0g - 0092S - S9I
001 009 00€'s 00Z's 00L'} pesysAQ 02925 0C - 00925 - SS1
00c 008G 00S'8 00€'8 00L'C Jogeq Q19¢s O - 00925 - S9i aoueusjuley feue)d yreg
00€ oov's 00V €L 0oLl 000'S |BJ0]
0 4 o 0 0 PYOo 0992 09 - 00925 - 0Sl
0 (114 ooy 4164 0 uoneuodsuesl  0¥92S  OF - 00925 - 0Gl
0 (ooe't) 0092 009'c 006'€ sleusiely  0€92S 0t - 009¢S - 0St
oot 09’ 000'v 006'€ oov pesyleAQ  029¢S 02 - 00925 - 0OSt
0oz ooL's 00t'9 002’9 00L logen  Q19¢s 0L - 00925 - 0SI S0UBUBIUIBH JI0AIBSSY pue sweq
139ang 810 STNLOY 139ang 1394an9g 810¢ STVNLIV NOILONNS "ON LNNODJV NOILdIHOS3A LINNODOY
WOYS FONVHI a7193rodd 810z d3S0d40¥d 610¢ d3103royd 8i0c
WOHA FONVHO

139dng 14vdd a3S0d0dd 610¢
1IV13d - SISN3IdXd ONILVH3dO

10141S1d NOILVOIdYI ITVANVO




viiovy

oor'e £#8'15) 000°981 009'8L LY8'LET |eloL
0 00t ¥ 000°€E 000'€E 009'8 BUYIO 0925 09 - 00425 - OFC
0 (00s'81) 00S'LE 00S'LE 000'0S uoneyodsuel]l  QvLgS Ov - 0025 - ObC
0 ©rz'1e) 000' 000°€ L2've sleudley  06L2S Of - 0025 - OFe
00€'t (009'%1) 00v'sy 00L'v¥ 000'09 peaydAQ  0ZL2S  0Z - 0028 - OFe
00t e (006'12) 00L'eL 000'LL 000'c6 joqe]  01/2§ Ol - 00425 - 0T soueusjuley suyadid
00E €€ 00829 000'822 00L'v61 002'S91 (8101
0 ooz 002 002 0 U0 09428 09 - 00L2S - SE€T
0 000 000'6¢ 000'62 000'2 uonepodsues)  Ob/2S  OF - 00428 - S€T
0 oozZ 000'0LL 000°0L} 008'201 sleustely  0££2S 0€ - 002§ - S€C
00L L 00€'61 000'€ 00€'Le 00L'v1 peauloAQ  0z/gS 0Z - 00L2S - S€T
00902 001 1€ 008'vS 00Z've 00L'€C Joge7 QeSO - 00LeS - S€e joNuoQ 1594
0089 000611 00€'SLY 00S'89% 00€'95€ |e10L
0 00602 000's9} 000°S94 0Ll Py0 0925 09 - 00LZS - S9I
0 (009 z¢) 000'0v 000°0F 009'28 uonepodsuell  0¥LZS OV - 00L25 - S9L
0 00502 000°0€ 000°0€E 005'6 Sleusiey  0£/2S  0€ - 00L25 - S9l
009 00E'S¥ 000'26 00¥'68 00L'9Y pRAYIBAQ  0ZL25 OC - 0025 - SOl
(1744 0067, 00€'8yL 00L'vrl 00v'€L Joge  QLLZS  OF - 00LZ5 - SOL soueusjulel [eue) yue3
009 00912 00k'LE 006'9€ 005°SL {e1oL
0 00ze 00v'E 00V’ 002 Y0  09/25 09  00L2S Ol
0 00%'4 00v'e 00b'e 000'2 uoneyodsuell  Ov/zG OF 002§ OVl
0 (oos) 002'v 00¢'y 000'S sleusleW  0€LgS 0t 0028 OFl
ooz 0089 000°0L 008'6 00z'e pESYBAQ  02L2S 0Z 00428 Ol
o0r 000°tL 001'9L 00L'SL 00L's Jogey  01L28 0L 00LZS  Obh S0UBUSUIB JEURD 3)2.10U0D
001 0006 00L'S 000'S 001 (2101
0 008 005 00S 0 YO 09425 09 - 00L2S - Sclb
0 005 005 008 0 uonjewodsuell  Ov/gS OF - 0025 - SCl
0 00¥ 005 005 00t sleus)ely  QELZS  OE - 00428 - G2t
0 005t 00%'1 00F'L 0 PESWBAQ 0228 0T - 002§ - G2k
00t 1144 002’z 00L'C 0 iogel  QbLeS 0L - 00428 - SZL soueuajuieyy Buissoid/ebpug
00t 2 (006 '6¢) 009°9 1 005'6€4 00S'981 |e10f
0 ooy 009'L 009'L 00Z'L 0N 06428 0§ - 0042 - 00l
0 (o0ez) 000'9 000'9 00€'8 SleUSlRN  0£L2S 0€ - 00/2S - 00
00LZ (oos01) 00Z'€S 005°0S 005'€9 pesaysarQ  0ZLgS  0¢ - 00LgS - 001
00y’ (0oL 22) 008'S8 00¥'1L8 00S'ELL Jogen  OLLgS O - 0025 - 00L uonensiuwpy
30IS HLHYON - SIONVNIALNIVIN TvHILYT HILVM NOLLYDIHHI
139and 8102 SLOV 139dng 139ang 8102 SIVNLOY NOILONNZ "ON LNNODOV NOILIHOS3A LNNOJOY
WOYS FONVHO aFL03rokd 8102 g350d04d 6102 Qa3103royd 8102
WOHS FONVHO

N

i
5

g
O

139an9 14vda d3s0doyd 610¢
1vL3d - SASNIdX3 ONILVH3dO

10141S1d NOILVOIdHI ITVAMVO



viiog

00¢ 0019 002°S1 0061 0016 |20y
0 ooz 00S 005 00€ aylo 09825 09 - 00825 - OVl
0 0oL 't) 00L'L 00L'L 002'2 uonepodsuel]  Ov8ZS Oy - 0082 - OVl
0 (00sZ) 002’z 00Z'c 00L'Y sleusiey €82S 0€ - 00825 - OVl
001 00L'€ 00t'y 00€'y 00L pesylsAO  (0Z825 0T - 00826 - OFl
ooz 008G 000°L 008'9 00z'L logel 082S Ob - 0082S - Ovl 9dueusUIB [BUED 91910U0D
00¢ (oooz) 002'SL 006'tL 002’22 [e10L
0 004 008'L 008'L 00L't JBYIO 09828 09 - 00825 - STl
0 (005%) 0002 0002 00S'9 uopepodsuell  Op8ZS OF - 00825 - Sel
0 (008Z) 000°tL 000'L 008'c sleusleN  0€826 Of - 00828 - S¢l
001 o0t 000'v 006'€ 006'€ pesylsAO  (g8gs  0Z - 00825 - S¢lb
00z 00t 00t'9 002'9 00€'9 loqeq 082S OF - 00825 - SZL aoueusjuiey Buissor)/ebpug
0086 (008°€) 009'I2L 008'GL1L 00v'SZL |e0)
0 00! 00L'L 00L't 009't samInN 06825 0§ - 008ZS - 00l
0 (oozz) 00S'9 00S'9 00L'8 sleusleN  0g8¢S  0€ - 00825 - OO
00zz o0g 00v'eY 00Z' Ly 001'eh peayssAQ 02828 0Z - 008¢S - 0Ok
009%€ {oo0z) 000'0L 00¥99 000'2L Joge7 (L8250l - 00825 - 00L uonesnsiuupy
3QIS HLNOS - 3ONYNILNIVIN VY3 LY HILYM NOILYDIHY!
00218 £58°08F 006'156'} 00£'0L8'} LYO'LLS'L 3AIS HLYON - SONYNILNIVIN TvHILYT H3LYM NOILYDIHY! Tv10oL
009'6 000604 001'98¢ 005082 00L°LLL |eoL
0 008t 000'62 000'62 002'v¢ SO 09426 09 - 00L2S - SO€
0 (ooz'e) 000'€2 000°€ 00Z'sZ uonepodsuel]  Oy/2S  Ov - 00L28 - SOE
0 000 000'sE 000'SE 000°1€ sleusle  0£/Z6  0€ - 00428 - SOE
11714 00Z'6¢ 002'9L 00L'vL 000°LE pesuAO  02L2ZG 0Z - 00428 - SOE
00sE 00Z'€9 006°z2k 00¥'6L1 00L'65 Joqel  0LLgS Ol - 002§ - SOE 9OUBUSUIBA INCUIN] PUE SBINONIS
00691 00881 00S'+01 009'68 00458 |e10L,
009t (000°s) 000'S oov'e 00001 BUYI0 0925 09 - 00425 - 0LT
0 00e 000'L 000} 00L saniInN 0§28 0S - 00L2S - 0LZ
0 (006°€) 001'9 ool'9 000'0L uoneyodsuell  opLZS OV - 00L2S - OLZ
oor'e ooz L) 008'LL oor's 000'sZ sleuslely  0€LZS O - 00LeS - 0LZ
008°c 00664 006'0€ 00L'Le 000'G1 peaysAQ  0ZLZS  OC - 00428 - 0LC
0019 004 '¥2 00L'6¥ 009'€ 000'se logel 0LLgS Ol - 004§ - 02 aoueudJuIR VAYOS
00t'6 008961 00Z'€8% 008°cLY 008982 |e10y
0 000y 000°29 000'29 000'02 JBYI0 0928 09 - 00LZS - 09T
0 (005's) 000'SL 000'GL 005'08 uoneyodsuell  QpLZS  OF - 00425 - 09C
0 (00e's5%) 00002 000'02 00£'s9 sleuslely  0£/ZS Ot - 00428 - 092
009°€ 0068, 006'2L 00€'Let 000'9¥ pesylsAQ  0z/ZS 02 - 00428 - 092
008G 00€°9Z1 00€'102 005'G61 000'SL logel 0LLZS Ol - 002§ - 092 QouBUBIUEl PeoY
139and 810z STYNLOV 139ang 1394dnd 8102 STVNLOVY NOILONNA ‘ON LNNOO0Y NOILdIMOS3A INNOJOY
WO+ FONVHI d3LI93ro8d 8102 Q3S0d0OHd 6102 Q3L03rodd 8102
WOYS FONVHO

139an4g 14vdd a3sOd0dd 610¢
1Iv13a - SASN3IdX3 ONILVH3dO

10/H1SIAd NOILLYDIHHI 31vVAaMVO




v 409

006t 00ZZL 008'90L 00616 009'68 |eloL

008l (00r'c) 00Z's oov'e 009’8 BYI0  098¢S 03 - 0082s - 0L

0 g 000'L 000'L 000'L ssmmn 0S8¢Ss 0S - 008¢S - 0L¢

0 ooz %) 002'9 00Z'9 006'0L uopevodsues]  Op8ZS o - 00828 - 0.2

oor'e {ooL's) ooL'zh 00L'8 008'LL s|eusey  0e8Zs 0€ - 008¢S - 0L¢

ooL'e 000t 00S'LE 008'LZ 00581 pesyisAQ 02828 0C - 0082S - 042

0009 00081 008'0S 008'v¥ 0082t Jogeq  0L8es 0L - 00828 - 042 [dueUdLIRW YAYOS

006 006 008°a9¢ 006'092 00S'9S2 |elol

[/ 0 000°SY 000°GY 000'SY Yo 098¢s 09 - 00828 - 09¢C

0 (00z'69) 008'0E 008'0€ 000'08 uopeuwodsues)  Op8ZS ot - 00828 - 09¢

a 000 000'61 000'61 000'S1 s|euslel] 082S 0€ - 00825 - 09¢

0064 o0o'rZ 005'S9 009't9 00S'L pedylsAQ  028¢S 0Z - 0082S - 09¢

o00'e 005°0¢ 00S'S0L 005201 000'SL logen 01828 0L - 00828 - 092 ddueUaIBN peoY

0019 o00r €S 00S°L0E 00r'see ooL'sve |eloL

0 00ZZ1 000'LE 000°'LE 008'cl LU0 09828 09 - 008¢S - O¥C

0 ooo'st) 000'6E 000'GE 000'0S uonepodsuel]  op8ZS OF - 008ZS - OPZ

0 (voe’s) 000'9¢ 000'92 00€'6Z sleuslely  0£8¢s Ot - 00825 - OFC

00€Z 00z'02 002'08 006'LL 00009 PE3YIDAO  (28ZS 0¢ - 008¢S - Ofc

008°¢ 005 V€ 00E'62k 005'sgl 000'S6 loge7 (QL82s Ol - 00825 - Ove soueuBiulep auljledid

006 0 00628 00€'LIC 00’081 00¥'8¢21 |eloL

0 (000°€) 000'L¢ 000'L¢ 000'0¢ uoneuodsuel]  0¥8ZS o - 008¢S - GEC

0 [711¥43 000201 000201 000'S9 S|euaBN  0€8ZS 0€ - 00825 - S€C

00814 00594 00S'L€ 00L'6l 000'SL PESYIBAQ  (0282S 0¢c - 00828 - SEC

001 61 00 Z€ 00805 00L'LE 00¥'8l Jogeq  018es 0L - 008258 - S€¢ [onuo) 1sed

o0z'’s o0e6 009'c0€ 00v's6e 00E'vLC |1ejo0L

] (0o026) 000°¢L 000'cL 000'0LL Yo 09828 09 - 00828 - S9l

0 0 000'L2 000'L2 000'.2 uonevodsuel]  O¥8ZS oy - 00828 - <9l

0 (009°c) 000'G2 000'Se 009'8¢ SleusieN  0ER2S Ot - 008¢S - S9l

000e 008'6v 00t'89 00v'99 009'81 peayssAQ  0282s 0¢ - 00825 - <9l

00Z€ 001 08 00zZ'0L1 000'£01 oot'oe 0BT 018ZS 0L - 008¢s - €9l adUBUIEN [BUBD YLB]
1394an8d 8to¢ STVNLOV 139ang 1395ang 8loe SIVNLOY NOILONNA "ON LNNODOJV NOILdIH0S3A LNNOJJY

WOHS FONVHO ailo3rodd 8Loz d3S0d0Hd 6102 a3103royd 8102
WOHL FIONVHO

N 139dN4g 14vda a3s0d0ud 610¢
1V13d - SISNIdX3 ONILVYH3IdO

alo 12141S1a NOILYDIYYHI TVAIVO



vlio L

008 £06°t 0ov'8 009'2 €679 letol
(voz) 5% 008 00£ £r PYI0  092€S 09 - 00CES - 00Z
0 0se 00Z'L 00Z'L 088 0sZeS 05 - 00ZES - 002
00t 001t 00S'L oov'L ooy uoneyodsueil  OFZES OF - 00ZES - 00Z
0 (oos) 005 00S oov'L sleuoleN  0£2€S O - 00CES - 002
00 oog 008'L 005"t 005'L pesyeAQ  022€5 02 - 00ZES - 002
009 009 006'2 00€'C 00€'2 Joqe7  01ZES  Of - 0028 - 00C 1weld Buidwing Auay sybiuy
(005°501) (005°5%) 000251 005'L52 00G'L61 |e1o0]
0 0005 000°S 000'G 0 J2YI0  09Z€S 09 - 00Z€S - SSI
(o00'001) ooy '02) 000004 000'002 00%'0LL sammn  0SZes  0S - 0025 - SSL
(oor't) 009 009'8 000'01 000's uopepodsuell  OpgeS  OF - 00Z€S - SSH
oose) 005 00S's 008'L 0002 slelaBN  0gZeS  OE - 002ES - SSI
(ooz) 006t 009'zL 00E'cL 00L'L pesylAO  02Ze§ 02 - 002ES - SSI
(voLt) 0062 00€°0C oov'Lz oov'zL Jogey  0LZes  OL - 002ES - SSI SIIoM MO|[eYS B doQ
00, 056C 00Z'vL 005°€L 0sZ'LL |eioL
0 008t 00%'L 00t} 0 BYI0 09266 09 - 00ZES - 0ZL
(ooe) (o08't) 006'L 00Z'3 00L'6 semIpn  0SZeS  0S - 00ZES - Ozl
0 05y 009 009 ost uonewodsuell  OpZES  OF - 00ZES - 02l
oot (oo1) 008 00L 006 sleusleN  0£2€S  0€ - 002eS - 021
00y 00zt oov'L 000'L 00z peayldAQ  0ZZes 0T - 002€S - OCh
00§ 008t 0012 009’1 00€ loge1 o0lzes Ol - 002es - 0OZ) sdwnd Ja1s00g
96 00ZLE 006°LY vS6'9t 00’01 |e10).
7] 00e 000'L 000'L 00L sleudlely  0£ZeS  OE - 002€S - 00l
o0y 002 ¥1 000'8L 009'LL 008'c pesydAQ  0ZzeS 02 - O00CES - OOl
98 o00L2Z 006'82 ¥5£'82 00Z'9 Joge7 0lLzes  OL - 00cCeS - 00k uonensuwpy
FONVNILNIVIN B SNOILYHIHO LNV 1d DNIdWNd
001 el 00521€ 008'085'L 00L°£0S'L 00€'€92'L 3QIS HLNOS - IDONVYNILNIVIN TYHILYT HILYM NOLLYDIHHI TVLOL
0oLy 001 0¢1 008'6€2 001'6€2 00£'60L |e10).
0 005’6 000°£2 000°£L2Z 009'LL BYO 09828 09 - 008ZS - SOE
0 0059 000'81 00081 009'LL uopepodsuell  0p8ZS  OF - 00825 - SOE
0 000t 000'0€ 000'0€ 000'62 sleusjely  0gs8zs 0€ - 00825 - GOE
008't 00E €t 00L'e9 00€'1L9 008'6lL PEsYIsAO 02825 02 - 008ZS - SOE
006 0000, 00L'101 008'86 00L'LE Jogeq (18ZS Ol - 00828 - SOE 9oUeUBUIB INOUINL PUE SAINRNIS
139a0n8 8i0¢ STVNLIV 132dng 135ang siloe STIVNLOY NOILONNA ‘ON LNNOJJVY NOILAIHNOSIA INNODDY
oY FONVHO a3.1L93ro¥d §102 a3S0d0Y¥d 6102 g3103royd 810z
WOHH FONVHO

139dNg 14vdad d3sOd0dd 610¢
1V13d - SISNIdX3 ONILVH3IdO

10141S1d NOILVOIHHI ITvAMVvO




viiog

0089 006t 000'9¥ 00Z°6€ 001’1 |e10L
0 (oo1°t) 000°¢l 000'€L 001'%L uonepodsuell  OFpES  OF - 00PES - SET
0 00 000'Gt 000's} 00€°LL seusleN  0syes  0€ - 00VES - S€¢
0097 00¢ 006'9 00E'y 009'9 pesylsAO  0ZPES 0T - O00OVES - S€2
00z 000C 00L'LL 006'9 00L'6 loge7 OLVES  OL - O0O¥ES - SEC jonuo) 1sad
001 € 008€S 005'651 00v'951 00£'S0L B0
0 (7% 000'z2 00022 00.'0¢€ YO 09¥ES 09 - 00FES - OLL
0 (008) 000'c€2 000'€Z 008'c2 uopepodsuel]  OpbES  OF - 00PES - OLL
0 foos's) 000'8 000'8 00L'6 sleusiely  Qebes  0f - 00vES - OLL
00zt 006'+Z 008°0¥ 009'6¢ 006'SL pesuldsAQ  0ZbeS 0T - 0OvES - OLL
006t 004 0% 00£'s9 008'c9 009'sz loge1  OLPES  OL - 0O¥ES - OLL soueuajUlel ulelq yues
0 (voz'v) 008'E 008'€ 000'8 [elol
0 fo0g) 00z 00z 005 JBYI0  09¥ES 09 - O0OVES - Sel
0 (009°s) 008 008 00v'9 sieuoBN  0EvES O - OO¥ES - G2l
0 0oL 00L'L 0oL} 0ot peayarQ  OgbES 02 - OOVES - G2l
0 000t 00L'L 00L'L 00L logel OL¥ES 0L - O0OvES - S2I soueusjuiely Buissosn/ebpug
00t 0006 005'SZ 00242 005'02 [e10).
00§ 0098 008'6 00€'6 002’1 pesyleAQ  0ZbES  0Z - O00VES - 00
008 (009%) 00L'SL 006'vL 00g'sl Joge] QLPES  OL - 00¥ES - 00L uonensuIIpY
JONVNILNIVIN WILSAS 3OVNIVHA
(v52°901) £526E 006'92Y ¥S9'ces £+9'L8E JONVNILNIVIN ANV SNOILYHIO LNV1d ONIdWNd Tv1OL
00%'t 0016 000'%¢ 009'CE 006'7Z |elol
0 009 009 009 0 JByl0  09zeS 09 - 002ES - SST
0 (oor'1) 00002 000'02 oor'Lz sonNN  09ZeS  0S - 00CES - SSC
0 00t 006'L 006'} 005 uonepodsuell  OpZES  OF - 00Z€S - SSC
0 0Lt 00L'z 00L'Z 0o¥ slepsley  0£ze§  OE - 00285 - SSC
008 0092 009'€ ooL'e 000'} PeaYlAQ  0ZZ€S 0T - 00ZES - SST
006 00zt 008'S 006't 009'L joge1 QlZeS Ol - 00ZES - SSC sdwng oAy
(oo1's) 009°€E 00F'0LL 00S'GL) 008'9€1 [e10L
0 (oo6'1) 000'8 000'8 006'6 BYO  0926S 09 - 00CES - S¥e
0 0059 000'6L 000'6L 00S'2L SN 0S2es  0S - 002ES - Sve
000's) 0092 000'0L 000'S1 00'L uonepodsuell  QygeS OF - 002ES - ShT
0 (008°¢) 000'GL 000'SL 008°6L sleldleN  0EZeS  0€ - 00Z€S - Sbe
0 0001 00v'zZ 00v'2e 00%'0L pEAYIBAQ  0ZZES 02 - 00Z€S - She
{oot) 002 61 000'9¢ ooL'eg 008'94 loge7 01ZeS Ol - 002ES - Sbe sdwnd aBeuleiq @ uonewe|oay
139an4 8ioz STVNLOY 139an8 1390and 8102 SIVNLOY NOILONNS "ON LNNOOJJV NOILdI49$3d INNOJDV
WOY S FONVHI Q3LOIrOHd 8102 g3as0d0Hd 6102 a3103royd 8102
WOYH FONVHI

1390dN8g 14vdad d3sOdOydd 610¢
1IvL3d - SASN3IdX3 ONILVYHIdO

10141SId NOILVYOIHHI 3TvAaMVvO




vl jo6

008 fooL'2) 005'£9 000'£9 0020, [eloL
0 (oo601) 000'G} 000'SL 006'6Z B0 099eS 09 - 009€S - S0C
0 009 000'€2 000'€2 00b'2e samn  0S9ES 0§ - 009€S - SOC
0 00LZ 000'SL 000'SL 006'L sjeuslely  0€9€§  0€ - 009€S - S0C
ooz 00z 009'S 00v's 0ov's pesyldAQ  OZ9ES  0C - 009€S - SOZ
00€ 00€ 006'8 009'8 009'8 loge7  0L9ES  OF - 009€S - SOZ 8010 uley
0 000t 1) 000'} 000°'L 000'2L |e10L
0 (oot 1) 000°L 000°'L 00021 SN0 099€S 09 - 009ES - SEL sapuadold [eway uisiq
0 fooe't) 009°2¢ 009'L2 00682 |eloL
0 00v 00¥ oov 0 BYIO  099€S 09 - 009eS - 00I
0 toos't) 006'C 006'C 009'v sleuslely  0€9€S  OE - 009€S - 0Ok
0 0 00€'6 00€'6 00€E'6 pesydAQ  0Z9€S  0C - 009€S - 00k
0 0 000'SL 000'SL 000'S) Jogel (QL9ES  OL - 009€S - 00k uofensuIpY
JONVNILNIYW SONNOYHD B ONIQTING
008°¢L 00L'LY 006°LLE 001'50€ 00z'0Le FONVNILNIVIN WALSAS IOVYNIVEA TVLOL
00€ 004t 008'vL 00S'vL 00L'EL |eoL
0 0 0001 000'L 000'L PYIO0  09¥ES 09 - 00¥ES - SOE
0 0 0 0 saMIIn  0SPES 0S5 - O0O¥ES - SOE
0 009 000'} 000°'L 0¥ uonepodsuell  OFvES  OF - OOVES - SOE
0 (001 't/ 0012 00L'Z 00Z'9 S|eURe  QEveS  OF - 00¥ES - GOE
001 008°t 00L'y 000y 00€'C peaysAD  0ZPbeS  0C - 00VES - SOE
00z 008 009'9 00t'9 008'€ Joge QLPES Ol - 00¥ES - GOE SDUEUSJUIBI INOLIN | PUE SAINDNIS
008 00€°t 005'0¢ 000'02 002’61 |eo]
0 00L°L 002t 002l 00l BYo  0SveS 09 - 00vES - 092
0 (voz's) 0082 008'2 000'8 uonepodsuell  OvvES  OF - O0OVES - 092
0 001 005"} 00S'L 00'L sleuslely  OeEveS 0 - 00VES - 092
o0z 0oLz 008's 009'S 00L's peaylsaQ  0ZveS 0 - OOVES - 092
00g 002°¢ 002'6 006'8 000'9 loge7  QL¥ES OF - OOPES - 092 9dueuaUIe ) peoy
008 (ooz'rt) 008'Ly 000°L¥ 000'29 [e1oL
0 oot 9t) 005'9 005’9 009'22 BY0  09veS 09 - O0VES - OFC
0 (00z's) 0082 008'C 000'8 uonepodsuell  O¥¥ES  OF - QOVES - OFT
0 (001 6) 00S'9 00S'9 00911 sleuely  0EvES 0 - 00VES - OFC
00€ 00L't 00€'2L 00021 009'L pesayldAO  0Z¥ES  0C - 00VES - OFC
005 005¢ 00L'6L 00¢'6L 002'zZ) Jogel OL¥ES 0L - 00¥ES - OFC aoueusjulely aunadid
1390n8 8L0¢ STVNLOV 13oans 1395and 8102 SIVNLOV NOILLONNA "ON LNNOJ2V NOILdIYOS3IA LNNOJDY
WO FONVHO aFLI3rOYd 8102 d3S0d0Yd 6102 a3L03rodd 8102
WNOYS FONVHO

139an9 14vdd d3s0d0odd 610¢
1Iv.13d - SISNIdX3 ONILVYHIdO

10141S1d NOILVOIHYI 3TVAMVO



Lo 0l

861°0LL 019966 00'0€£0'9 206'658'S 06L'160'S FONVYNILNIVW TVLOL
0089 (€658°9¢) 002'508 00¥'86L £60'2¥8 Y0 098€S 09
(oos‘oot) (00€'001) 00.2'192 000°Z9€ 000°29¢ sammn  0S8eS 0S
(00e'9) (0oc9) 00t'80S 00L'71S 00L'¥LS uoneuodsuel]  O¥8ES or
eos'soz't) eos's0z°'t) 002'0e8 206'£0'Z 206'S€0'2 s|leualey  OE8ES o¢
00€°004 00€°001 000'68€"L 00,'882'L 00.'882'} PEayIsAO  (0Z8ES (174
861294 861 291 006'S€2'Z Z0L'€L0'T Z0L'€L0'T Joge7  OLBES oL
FONYNILNIYW TVLOL
Z662E (osg'o1) 00€'€9S 81€'52S 0SL'vLS IONVNILNIVIN LNIWCIND3 B TTOIHIA TYLOL
001 €€ (ooz't) 00€'9¢Y 00Z°€6€ 00§'L2Y |elol
0 00§ 000'0L 000'01 0056 Y0 098€§ 09 - 008eS - 08¢
0 00672 005'62 005'6Z 009'LL uoneyodsuel]  ObBES O - 008ES - 08T
0 (oor201) 000'0CL 000'02} oov'Lze sleusieN  0£8eS  0F - 008SS - 08T
0oLy 00528 00£'€0L 000'16 002'98 pesyldAO 0285 02 - 008ES - 08T
00v'0Z 0009 00L'£9L 00L'svl 008'901 Joge1 018€S O - 008ES - 08Z doys
768t (0596 000'LEL 8yl'zel 059°9pL
0 foot) 009 009 00L 098eS 09 - 008€S - 0OI
0 051 00€ 00€ ost 0S8€S 0SS - 008ES - OOl
0 (114 00L'L 00L'L 006 uonepodsuedy  Op8ES  OF - 008ES - 00L
0 (voz) 00L'L 00L'L 00S'} sleyoley  0E8eS O - 008ES - 0O0L
006t (009°¢) 00€'LS 00v'6¥ 00645 pesyoAQ  0Z8ES  0Z - 008€S - 00L
266¢C (oo6°’s) 009'z8 879'6/ 005'88 Joge1  018eS 0L - 008€S - 001 uonensuIupy
JONVYNILNIVIN LNIWINO3T B F1DIHIA
00061 (vos°154) 005'0L2 005'652 00v'ZLY FONVNILNIVIN SONNOHD B DNIATING TV.LOL
000'7L (voz'sst) 009°€ZL 009'601 008'29¢ |e10L
0 (ooo't) 000°LL 000° kL 0002} PO 0995S 09 - 009ES - G¥E
0 (voz's) 008'S 008's 000't1 uoneyodsuely  OP9ES O - 009ES - GbE
0 (0062 002'6 002'6 00121 slewalely  0€9€S  OF - Q09ES - GPE
005G (009°'8%) 00v'LE 000'¢e 000'98 peayeAQ  029€S 0Z - 009ES - SvE
0098 (vos82) 00Z'09 009'LG 00L'8€L Jogel  0l9ES Ol - 009ES - G¥E pleA
005 00£Zt 008'06 00£'0S 00G'8€E |el0].
0 000t 000'2 0002 000'} BYI0  0996S 09 - 009ES - SLZ
0 009 000'¥C 000'v2 00v'z2 samin  0S9ES  0S - 009ES - GLT
0 (ooo't) 00E'0L 00€'0L 00€' L1 slelsley  0£9eS 0 - 00985 - SLZ
00z %4 009's oov's 00€') pesylAQ  029¢S  0Z - 009£S - SLT
oos 00v'9 006'8 009'8 0052 loge]  Q19ES Ol - 009€S - SLZ sbuiping doys
139an4 8102 STVYLOV 1390n8 139an4d 8102 SIVNLOV NOILONNA 'ON LNNODOV NOILdIZD$3a INNOJOV
WO FONVHD a3Lo3rOHd 8102 Q3S0d0Yd 6102 g3103royd 8102
WOY- FONVHO

139dnN9g 1dvda a3sodoydd 6102
1Iv13A - SISN3IdXd ONILVH3IdO

10141SId NOILVOIHHI 3TvANVO



Lo Ll

008Zii (o00'681) 002'8v2't 00F'SEL'L 00Z'L6E'L NOISIAIQ HLHON - SNOILYHIHO TvHI LY HIALVYM NOILYDIHYI TYLOL
006101 (00L°951) 005'9L6 009'vL8 00Z'€EL'L [e101
0 ooz 002 00¢ 0 BYO  092¥s 09 - 002KS - GEE
0 00! 000'8 000'8 006'L samn  0S2¥S 0§ - 002vS - GEE
0 (00€'92) 000'002 000'002 00€'922 uonepodsuesl  0¥Z¥S  OF - 002¥S - GEE
0 0 0008 000'8 000'8 sleusleN  0€Z¥S  OF - 002PS - GEE
000'6¢ (ooo'0s) 000°162 000'252 000'L¥E pesyiBAQ  0Zg¥S 02 - 002vS - SEE
00629 ooz '08) 00€'69Y 00%'90% 000'0SS Jogeq  QlZ¥s  OF - 00ZvS - SE€E uonngLIsIq Jalem
00601 00”2 00L'LLE 008092 000792 |e101
0 (ooz) 008'91 008'9L 000'LL RPYIO  09Z¥S 09 - 00ZKS - 001
0 0 00S'e 008'€ 00S'e sann  0S¢¥S 0§ - Q0ZvS - 00k
(00s) 000t 00S'L 0002 00S sleusiey  0ggys  0€ - 00Z¥S - 00)
o00v'y 0042 00L'S6 00€'L6 000'€6 pesyidAQ  022¥S 0¢ - 002¥S - 001
0007 ooz’ 002'¥St 00Z'LyL 00005} logeq  QlZkS  OF - 00Z¥S - 00l uonensiuiwpy
NOISIAIQ HLHON - SNOILVHIdO TVHILY T HaALVM NOILYOIHY|
(1£8) 00 0L 006'062 LLY'L6T 002'022 JONVNILNIVIN WILSAS HILVYM J1LSIN0A V1oL
(914) 000°0¢ 00¢2'0€2 9LE'0ET 002°061 el
0 008 0009t 000°9L 00z’ JYIO  090¥S 09 - 000¥S - S92
000 (0os°s) 000'59 000'29 006°0L sanimn  0S0¥S  0S - 000vS - S92
0 0 00L'6 00l'6 00L'6 uoneyodsuel]l  OvOPS  OF - 000¥VS - S9C
(006°s) (000°t) 000'L 006'Z1 000'8 sleusiely  0g0¥S  0€ - 000¥S - S92
004t 00014 000'LS 006'6% 000°0F pEAYISAQ  0ZOVS 02 - 000¥S - S9¢
#89°L oot ze 00L'z8 91¥'08 000'0S logel  QLOYS  OL - 000¥S - S92 walsAg Jajep onsawoq
(55%) 00£ 08 00£°09 [SNT) 000'0€ |e10L
(0os't) 008 00§ 000 0 JBYIO  090¥S 09 - 000¥S - 00l
0 (ooz) ool'l 00L'L 00€'L n 0S0¥S 0S - 000¥S - OOL
0 009 006'L 006°} 00g't sleuslely  0govS  OE - 000¥S - 00
oor 000°LL 006'Le 00S'Le 006'0L peayldAQ  0Z0¥S  OC - 000¥S - OOl
599 00881 00€'SE G59'vE 00591 loge7 0LOPS  OF - 00OYS - COL uonessiuwpy
JONVNILNIVIN WILSAS HILYM OILSINOA
139an8 8toz STVNLIV 135ang 4135an9g 8Loe SIVNLOY NOILONNS 'ON LNNOJ2V NOILJIYOS3IA LNNODDY
WOY S FONVHO a3193royd 8102 g3S0d0OHd 6102 Q3L03rodd 810¢
WOH- FONVHOI

139dn4g 14vdad a3S0d0dd 610¢
V134 - SISNIdX3 ONILVH3IdO

10141S1d NOILVYOIHYHI 3TvANVO



vijozci

0 00121 008'LS 008'LS 00L'0F LNIWADYNYIN LNIJWITHNSYIW H3LYM TVLOL
0 002°91 009'LY 009'LY 00¥'LE {210
0 0087 000'8 0008 00z YO  098FPS 09 - 008YS - ZvE
0 009 00S'8 005'8 0062 uoneyodsuell  0¥8YS  OF - 008¥S - ZHE
0 (00r ) 0000} 000°0L 00p'2h slewolely  0g8¥S 0 - 008YS - 2vE
0 000 0oL’ 001'8 001'9 pesyYleAQ  02Z8YS  0C - 008YS - Z¥E
/] 002 000'€} 000°€El 008'6 iogel QI8YS Ol - 008YS - ZPE weibold WawaINSes |y 1218
0 006 00Z°0L 00Z'0L 00€'6 {e10L
0 0z 000°L 000'L 008t YO 098¥S 09 - 008¥S - OLL
0 (voz) 005 00S 00L uoneyodsuel]l  Qy8YS  OF - 008¥S - OLL
0 00€ 000'L 000't 00L sleusley  0g8yS Q€ - 008¥YS - Okl
0 (00s) 00L 00L 002'L pesy’sAQ  (0¢8¥S 02 - 008¥S - OLL
0 (ooe) 000°'L 000'} 006'L Jogel 018¥S  OL - 008¥S - Ol souendwo) abisieyasiq / Jaalepm By
ANTFWIDYNVYIN LNIWIHNSYIW HILYM
0 0662 009'81 009'81 019'SL SNOILYHIHO HILYM IOVNIVEA TVLOL
0 066 009'8L 009°81 0L9'SL
0 0 005’y 00S'v 005y 0So¥S 0§ - 009vS - SLI
0 005t 00S'¢ 00S'2 000'} uoneyodsuel]  O¥9¥S  OF - 009¥S - GLI
0 0654 00S'y 008V 016z pESWISAQ  0Z9YS 02 - 009¥S - SLI
0 (vo1) 00L'L 00L'L 00e'L Joge7 QI9¥S O - 009¥S - SLI Juswabeuepy tslep W01
SNOILYHIJO HILYM TOVYNIVHA
002611 (00929) 00L'8vZ' | 006'2EL'L 00L'GLE"L NOISIAIQ HLNOS - SNOILYHIdO TvHALY 1 HILYM NOILYDIHHI TVLO0L
00€v01 (00¥'8L) 00t'9L6 001L'zL8 008'¥50'} |e101
0 002 002 002 0 Yo  09¥PS 09 - 00PPS - SEE
0051 15671 000'8 00S'9 6¥0'9 sanln - 0S¥bS 0S5 - 00b¥S - SEE
0 (000 've) 000'002 000'002 000'vee uoneyodsuel]  OpbvS  OF - 00PYS - GEE
000t (008't) 000'8 000'L 008'6 sleuoely  OevbS  0€ - 00bPS - GEE
000'6¢ (006 02) 000°L62 000'252 006°LLE pesuylsAQ  QckbS 02 - OOb¥S - GEE
00829 (168°¢e) 00Z'69Y 00v'90¥ 1S0'€0S loge7  OiF¥S  OF - 00PPS - SEE uounguisiq Jalep
006 0L 00801 00L'LLe 008'092 006092 |20
0 (00z) 008'91 0089l 000'LL BYO  09Y¥S 09 - 00¥PS - 00L
0 00/ 00s'e 00S°€ oov'e samn  0Sk¥S  0S - 00F¥¥S - 00t
(oos) 002t 00S'} 0002 00€ sjeustleN  0evbS O - 00PPS - 001
o0t 008'€ 00£'66 00€'L6 006'L6 peaylBAQ  QzZbvs 02 - 00WYS - 00}
0002 0066 002'vSL 00Z'LYL 00€'8PL Joge]  QL¥YS O - 00PPS - 0Ol uonensiuwpy
NOISIAIQ HLNOS - SNOILYHIJO TvHaLY 1 H3LVM NOILYDIHHI
139an4g 8ioc STWUIV 139ang 139ang 8102 SIVNLOV NOILONNS "ON LNNOOJJVY NOILLIHOS3A INNODJY
WOYHA FONVHI a37.1L03roYd 8102 Q3S0d0OHd 6102 a3103rodd 8102
WOYS FONVHO

139dnd 14vdd d3S0d0dd 610¢
1IvLi3A - SASN3IdX3 ONILvH3dO

10141S1d NOILVYDIHYI ITvaMvO




vlLiogl

0 008t 00S'Le 005'L2 00L'S 09296 09 - 00295 - 0/ weiBoig AARONPOId '® SANUSDY| AIBjes
0 005t 000°€L 000'€l 00G'LL 09295 09 - 0029G - S9L  SYI_YD punoibyoeg/esusdxy [edlsAud
0 (000°9¢) 0 ¢ 000'9€ 09295 09 - 00288 - 09 osuadx3 uonas|g
006°c ooLe 006'0F 000'LE 002'8 09295 09 - 00295 - GG/ $984 ® sanq diysiequaiy
(ooozt) 0 00S'¥S 00S'LL 00S'¥S 09296 09 - 0029 - 0SL asuadx3 [aaed | /Bujutes j juoneonp3
009 005} 00L'LL 00L'LL 00Z'01 06298 0S - 00295 - OFL asuadx3 Jejnjiad g suoydsipL
(006°€) 001 009'61 005'€Z 00S'LL sleusleN 06295 O - 00Z9S - SeL SNoBUE|e3SIN
(ooe't) (008'8) 005'9 008'L 00€'sL sleuslely  0£g9s  OE - 00298 - 02L spy uswholdw3 / spy pauisse|D
(o0g) 006 000'6 00S'6 001'8 sleuslely  0g£Z98 0 - 00298 - SOL s9|ddng pue s|eusie|y A19)es
(ove) SoLS 000'cL 00€'eL G5T'L9 slesley 06296 O£ - 0029S - 00L Ing g ‘dinb3 ‘saliddng Jaindwo) B 9910
001t 009821 00S'16% 00t'06% 006'29¢ peaudAO 02295 0Z - 00298 - S89 2.4edIpa B A1INd3S [B100S
0 0SEE 000'S 000's 059'L pEsYdAO 02295 0T - 00295 - 089 asuadx3 uswiodwaun sl
00L19 00896 002'72e 005'29¢ 00v'L22 pesudAO  0ZZ9S O - 0029 - G/9 2oueINsu| uonesusdwoy ,SISYIOM
00zzt 00€ 6% 000°00¢ 008'£8 00£'0G peauYIBAQ  0229S 0C - 00298 - LL9 uonngiiuo) dwo) panajeg
0008 o00roLl 00L'€SL 00£'699 00€'€8S peayleAQ  0Z29S 02 - 0029S - OL9 uonnquUIUoD Ue|d Juswainay
002t 0098 0oL 00Z'st 008'S pesysAQ  0Zg9S 02 - 00298 - 899 weifoid sseun B WiesH
006 0044 008t 006'€ 00L'E pesylsAQ  0Z¢9S 02 - 0029S - L[99 sueid dv3 ? euareeD
000e 00572 009'9L 009'v1 00L's pesylPAQ 02298 0Z - 00298 - S99 doueINSu| 91
008 o0r's 00€'ze 008'Le 006'91 PesydAQ 02295  0Z - 00295 - 099 aoueInsu| UOISIA
00LL 00894 0010} 00076 006'+8 pesyeAQ  0zg9S OC - 0029 - SS9 souelnsu| |guaQ
00601 00£ 202 008'0£0'} 00%'196 005'€98 pesweAQ  0Z¢9S  0Z - 00298 - 0S9 souelnsu| yiesy
0 0 002'2€ 00¢'LE 002'LE pesy®AQ 02298 0Z - 00295 - O¥9 uonesuadwo) sJo1d311q
0 0 000'09 00009 000'09 joqe7  0lzes Ol - 00295 - OF9 uonesuadwo) s,1010311q
(000's) 009 000'86 000'c0!1 00t'e6 pesyldAQ  0Z296 02 - 00295 - SE9 “dwoQ dSAIONPOIG-UON JAUI0
(0008) 0057 000'8SL 000'991 00S'0S1 Jogeq Q01298  OL - 00298 - G€9 ‘dwo9 9ARONPOI4-UON JBYIO
(0oL 't) 00se 009'60L 00€'£201 00L°€0L PedYISAQ 02298  0C - 0029S - 0€9 uonesuadwe) AepijoH
oos2) 90y 00E'0LL 000'€L) $SzZ'99L joge7 04296 O - 00295 - O€9 uonesusdwo) AepijoH
(0oL 2) (ooe'tt) 00v'86 005001 00LCLE PEOUBAO  0ZZ9S 0Z - 0029S - S29 uonesusdwoy aAesT YIS
(00s') (z60€2) 009'8S1L 000'291 769'181 loge7 0lzes Ol - 0029 - SZ9 uonesusdwoy aAeaT YIS
(006'v2) 008 ooL'ske 000'0¥2 00€'vie pesyldAQ  0gZ9§ 0T - 00295 - 029 uonesuadwo) uoeoep
ooz 09) orZ't 008'9v¢ 000'£8¢ 09G'GVE loqe]  01g9s  OF - 0029S - 029 uopesuadwoy uoliedep
(009) 00z 00L'8 00E'6 005'8 peayloAQ 02295 0C - 00298 - 819 Buluesy |euoissajoid
(ooo‘t) 0LE 000'v} 000'GL 0€9'El loge7 01Z9S 0L - 00295 - 8IL9 Buluies jeuoissajoid
006°€ 00094 005'z2¢ 009'8¢ 005'9L peaylsAnO 02295 0T - 00298 - S19 Buiutes / sbunaspy
00£'9 ££862 00€'2S 000'9F L9v'ez loqel 0129 Ol - 0029 - GI9 Buiutes 7 sBunasyy
ooy’ 00LZ 00€£'S0C 006'00Z 009'£61 peayloAQ  0Zg9S 0Z - 00295 - 809 [edwyoa ] / bunsauibuz
0012 L6ECL 00L'LEE 000'vee 60L'8LE loge  0Lg9s  Ob - 00298 - 809 [ealuyos) / Bupsauibugy
0069 oLe'sL 00L'Lve 008'0¥C 0€E2Ll pesyAQ  02z9S  0Z - 00Z9S - S09 [ETET)
00Z'tL o A A 005'66€ 00€'88¢ 256'LLT Joge7  QLzeS OL - 00295 - SO9 [CRTET)
0096¢L 6pp et 001'vOr 005'892 198°LLT peaysAQ  0Zg9S 0Z - 00295 - 009 uoisiuadng / uswabeuepy
00£81Z PEGEIC 00L'1S9 000'cEY 9vL'sey Joge7  QLZgS 0L - 00295 - 009 uoisinsadng / juswabeuepy

NOILVHLSININGY ® TYH3INID
6crLee (018%z1) 009'€98°2 1£1'9€9'Z 017'686°C SNOLLVYHILO YTLVYM TV.LOL
(00s°1) 001 005°69 000°£9 00Z'LS Byo 09
(/)44 676€) 009°€6 001'68 6V5'L6 samun 0S
0 ooy €v) 009'02y 009'0z¥ 000'v9% uonepodsuel| of
(006°s) (oot 2) 006'8¢ 008'vt 000'LY sjenaiep oe
00€ 98 (0i1e'68) 009'658 00€'LLL 016'868 PESYISAQ 0z
620 (15¢15) oov'age’l LLE'EVE'L LGL'9EY'L logen ot

SNOILYYTAO HILYM TVLOL
139an4 8t0¢ STVNLOV 135ang 139an4 8102 SIVYNLIY NOILONNS ‘ON LNNOJ2V NOILdIY2S3A LINNOD2Y
WOHS FONVHO GILOF O 810 d3S0d0Hd 8102 a3L03royd 810e

WOYH FONVHI

1393dng 14vda dasododd 610¢
1v13d - SASN3dX3 ONILvH3dO

10141SId NOILVOIHHI FTVAMVO



vliovl

(€2, °5v€8) §50'0L2°L$ 00£'62€'91L$ €L0'SL9'9L$ S¥2'650°S1% S3ISN3dXT DNILYHIdO TVLOL
foos ) G52 LSk 00€'SEY'L 000'6LL'8 G10'8L6'9 NOLLVYHLSININGY B TYHINTD TVLOL
005651 00Z'651L 000'009'2 00S'9¥+'Z 008'vtv'2 ‘dxjuoneesdaq  09Z9S L6 - 00295 - 666 asuadx3 uopeziuowy 1 uojeraideq
(oo0's62) ooz 261) 000'001L 000'S6E 00£'£62 JBYI0 0929 09 - 00295 - 026 yoeannQ Ajunwwiod
0 (006°61) 009'0¢ 009'02 005'9¢ YO 09295 09 - 0029 - GI6 S)UB)INSUOD JAYIO
0 0 000'002 000'002 000'00Z PYI0 09295 09 - 00295 - 016 suensuog / Bupeauibug
006 000t 00082 0oL'2z 00042 Y0  0929S 09 - 0029S - 506 SlueyNSU0D 8ouUBUl4
0 000021 000'052 000052 000'0€L BYlo 09295 09 - 0029S - 106 uonebn - eba]
0 (oo82z) 000'0LL 000'0LL 008°¢61 BYI0 0929 09 - 00295 - 006 Jessuag - |efa
oove 008t oov'sy 000'ey 009'el Yo 09298 09 - 0029S - G/8 5994 uonessiunupy Aunod
(oos) 00z 009'99 001'29 00t'99 JBylo  09Z9S 09 - 00298 - ZL8 s394 soueldwo) Aiojejnbay
000004 00005 000'00€ 000'002 000'052 BYI0 09296 09 - 00295 - 0.8 uonNgIUoY JWBN MD “URIS B VLIS
0 00002 (000'052) (000'052) (000'0L2) BUYI0 09295 09 - 00295 - 098 (peayIaAQ) SIpa1D esuadxg
0 000001 (000'000°1) (000'000'1) (000'001'1) wawdinby  09z95  OF - 00295 - 098 (peayianQ) supaiD asuadx3
(vos 082) (0s1 562) (000'506'2} (00g've9'e) (058'609'2) PesuyloAQ 0929 0Z - 00295 - 098 (peayiaaQ) supaiD esuadx3
(ooo‘oo0°t) (oosczz) 000'00S 000'005'} 00S'€22't Byo 09298 09 - 00295 - 0S8 sebeweq g wawbpnp
000 (oo0'8) 000'09 000'sS 000'89 Y0 09295 09 - 00295 - 508 asuadx3 uaunseau|
00v<LZ ooy oy oov'L6L 000'0LL 000'£S1 PO 09296 09 - 00295 - 008 asuadx3 aoueinsu|
(oor'ez) 009 000'sL 00v'8€ 00v'v1 1BYI0 0929 09 - 00T9S - 08L  SISULII/suonedliand / suonduosqng
0 (00z22) 00L'L8 00£'18 006'801 PO 09298 09 - 00298 - SLL speuo) Auessep daes
139an4d 8.02 STYnLOY 139ang 139ana sLoz SIVNLOY NOILONNA "ON LNNOJ2Y NOILdIHOS3d INNODOY
WO FONVHO a3193rodd 810C a3S0d0Yd 6102 d3aL03royd 8102
WOHH FONVYHO

139dng 14vdd d3s0dodd 6102
1IvV13d - SASNIdX3 ONILYHIdO

10141SId NOILVYOIHYI ITVAMVO



COMMUNICATIONS

BOARD MEETING OF
NOVEMBER 20, 2018




CONDOR EARTH

21663 Brian Lanc, PO. Box 3905
Sonora, CA 95370

209.532.0361

Fax 209.532.0773

CO N DO R www,condorearth.com
WEEKLY CONSTRUCTION MANAGER’S REPORT

Oakdale Irrigation District
Two-Mile Bar Tunnel Project

WEEK 80
TO: Scott Lewis, Project Manager
COPY: Jason Jones, Eric Thorburn, Emily Sheldon — OID
Ron Skaggs and Kim Tarantino — Condor
FROM: Kyle White, Assistant Resident Engineer
DAY/DATE: Friday, November 9, 2018

PROJECT NO.: 3818G4

DISCUSSION
1. No accidents, injuries or near-misses to repott.

2. DTDS continued placement of tunnel concrete invert slab this week. The tunnel concrete invert
slab was placed along approximately 1,056 linear feet of the tunnel this week. Tunnel concrete
invert slab placement was substantially completed on Thursday.

3. DTDS began construction of the downstream canal plug this week, including installation of the
pre-cast canal bypass segment drainage structures and pipe.

4. Schedule Update:

e DTDS submitted an updated baseline schedule on October 16, which indicates that DTDS will
have the tunnel and canal work items completed in mid-January 2019, approximately 2 weeks
before the date of the substantial completion schedule included in the Contract (no change from
prior report).

e Anticipated project substantial completion date remains January 2019 to accommodate
wintertime canal tie-in (no change from prior report).

e Contract Substantial Completion date is February 1, 2019 (no change from prior report).

o Final site restoration and site demobilization is scheduled to be achieved by March 1, 2019 (no
change from prior report).

5. Submittals and RFI’s:
o There are currently no outstanding submittals.
e There are currently no outstanding RFI’s:

»  RFI 034, related to downstream concrete canal invert replacement, was submitted by
DTDS on November 5. Condor accepted the language and backup documentation in the
RFI on November 7.



Two-Mile Bar Tunnel 11/9/2018 WCMR
oD
Page 2

6. Contract Updates:

e DTDS submitted a draft Invoice No. 19 (October) on November 6. Condor is currently
reviewing the quantities on the invoice. No eCPR (Prevailing Wage) documentation has yet
been submitted for the invoice.

e Change Order 33, related to the downstream concrete canal invert replacement detailed in RFI
034 (above), was signed by DTDS on November 8. OID signature is pending.

X:\Project\3000_pri\3818G OID 2-Mile Bar\3818G4 TMB Construction\Construction Management\Condor Field Reports and Photos\Weekly Construction Reports\WCMR 20181109 OID
TMB docx

CONDOR



CLOSED SESSION
ITEMS

BOARD MEETING OF
NOVEMBER 20, 2018




